
Sam CERA Notice of Special Meetings 
The Board of Retirement 

of the San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association 
will convene two special meetings to be held on 

Tuesday, April 26, 2016, starting at 9:00 a.m. and 
Wednesday, April 27, 2016, starting at 9:00a.m. 

Please take notice that the Chair of the Board of Retirement, acting pursuant to the authority of Government 
Code §54956, hereby calls two special meetings to take place at the times and dates listed above. The meeting 
is for the purpose of discussing and transacting the following business: 

Agenda for Tuesday, April 26, 2016 
PUBLIC SESSION - The Board will meet in Public Session at 9:00a.m. 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 

2. Oral Communications and Retreat Activities 
2.1 Oral Communications From the Board 
2.2 Oral Communications From the Public 
2.3 Retreat Presentations and Discussions (See attached agenda and list of presenters) 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

4. Approval of the Consent Agenda (* Set for a time certain of 2:30p.m.) 
{Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be taken up during the Regular Agenda under Item 5.1 and in the order determined 

by the Board Chair.) 

4.1 Disability Retirements 

• 
• 
• 

Galindo, Patrick 
Golda, Voytek 
Vogt, Tully 

4.2 Service Retirements 
4.3 Continuances 

4.4 Deferred Retirements 
4.5 Member Account Refunds 
4.6 Member Account Rollovers 

5. Benefit & Actuarial Services 

4.7 Report on Audit Workplan for the 2015-
16 Fiscal Year Financial Audit 

4.8 Approval of Required Documentation 
for Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited's 
Separate Account for Investments in 
Indian Securities 

4.9 Approval of Fiduciary Liability Insurance 
Policy 

5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, Removed From the Consent Agenda 
6. Investment Services 

6.1 Preliminary Monthly Performance Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2016 
6.2 Educational Presentation on Mining Opportunities in Private Real Assets 
6.3 Purchase of Alternative Investment (to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential Under Gov. Code 

§54956.81 and §6254.26, see item C2) 
7. Board & Management Support Services 

7.1 Introduction of SamCERA's 2016-17 Budget 
7.2 Approval of SamCERA Voting Delegates and Direction for Voting at SACRS Spring Conference 
7.3 Report on Status of SamCERA's 2016-17 Strategic Plan 

8. Management Reports 
8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report 
8.2 Assistant Executive Officer's Report 
8.3 Chief Investment Officer's Report 
8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report 

* Matters set for a time certain. Time listed is approximate. In no case will any item be heard before the time it is scheduled. 



Notice of Special Meetings 
Page 2 of 2 

CLOSED SESSION- The Board may meet in closed session prior to adjournment 
C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, Removed from the Consent Agenda 
C2 Purchase of Alternative Investment {Confidential Under Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.26- see also 

item 6.3) 
9. Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session 

10. Adjournment 

Agenda for Wednesday, April 27, 2016 

PUBLIC SESSION -The Board will convene at 9:00a.m. 
1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 
2. Oral Communications and Retreat Activities 

2.1 Oral Communications From the Board 
2.2 Oral Communications From the Public 
2.3 Retreat Presentations and Discussion (Continued from Tuesday, April 26, 2016, see attached 

agenda and list of presenters) 
3. Adjournment in Memory of the Following Deceased Members: 

Schowengerdt, Harold March 3, 2016 

Kennon, Lana 

McReynolds, Sol 

Wilcox, Dorothy 

Scotch, George 

Hanson, Mildred 

Kato, Grayce 

Schmidt, Paul 

Pedrini, Pamela 

Caldwell, Karen 

Glomb, Margaret 

.~w .. 
Paul Hackleman 
Chair, Board of Retirement 

March 11, 2016 

March 14, 2016 

March 17, 2016 

March 19, 2016 

March 20, 2016 

March 27, 2016 

March 27, 2016 

March 30, 2016 

March 31, 2016 

March 31, 2016 

Courts 

Probation 

Publi c Works 

County Clerk 

Controller's 

Social Services 

Human Services Agency 

Planning & Building 

Superior Court 

Superior Court 

Library 

Posted: April 20, 2016 

THE BOARD MEETS AT 100 MARINE PARKWAY, SUITE 160, 
WHICH IS LOCATED ON THESE CORNER OF TWIN DOLPHIN & MARINE PARKWAY IN REDWOOD SHORES. 

Detailed directions are ava ilable on the "Contact Us" page of the website www.samcera.org 
Free Parking is available in all fats in the vicinity of the building. 

A copy of the Board of Retirement's open session agenda packet is available for review at the SamCERA offices and on our 
website unless the writings are privileged or otherwise exempt from disclosure under the provisions of the California Public 

Records Act. Office hours are Monday through Thursday 7 a.m. - 6 p.m. 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH TH E CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: SamCERA's facil ities and 
board and committee meetings are accessible to individuals with disabilities. Contact SamCERA at (650) 599-1234 at least 
three business days prior to the meeting if (1) you need special assistance or a disability-related modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this meeting; or (2) you have a disability and 
wish to receive the agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting in an 
alternative format. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable Sam CERA to make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure full accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it. 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 1 of 6 

 SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  
MARCH 22, 2016 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

1603.1 Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business  
Call to Order:  Mr. Paul Hackleman, Chair, called the Regular Meeting of the Board of Retirement to 
order at 10:00 a.m.  
 

 Roll Call:  
Present: Sandie Arnott, Mark Battey, Ben Bowler (arrived at 10:06 a.m.), Paul Hackleman, Natalie Kwan 
Lloyd, Michal Settles, David Spinello and Shirley Tourel.   
Excused: Eric Tashman. 
Alternates present: Susan Lee, Alma Salas. 
Staff:  Scott Hood, Michael Coultrip, Brenda Carlson, Gladys Smith, Doris Ng and Kristina Perez (arrived 
12:15 p.m.).  
Consultants: Margaret Jadallah, Stephen Quirk, John Nicolini (Verus). 
 

1603.2.1 Oral Communications from the Board:  Mr. Spinello reported his attendance at the IMN ABS 
Conference in Las Vegas, February 28-March 2, 2016, and the CALAPRS General Assembly in Indian 
Wells, on March 3-5, 2016.   Ms. Kwan-Lloyd and Ms. Tourel also reported their attendance at the 
CALAPRS General Assembly. 
 

1603.2.2 Oral Communications from the Public:  Ms. Lee reported her attendance at the CALAPRS General 
Assembly in Indian Wells, on March 3-5, 2016. 
 

1603.3.1 Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes from February 23, 2016:  Mr. Hackleman asked if there 
were any changes or corrections to the Regular Board Meeting minutes from February 23, 2016, and 
none were noted.   
 
Action: Ms. Kwan Lloyd moved to approve the minutes from the Regular Meeting of February 23, 2016, 
and the motion was seconded by Ms. Settles. The motion carried with a vote of 7-0; with trustees 
Arnott, Battey, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; none opposed. 
 

1603.4.0 Approval of the Consent Agenda:  Mr. Hackleman asked if there were any items to be removed from 
the Consent Agenda, and the disability application of Joanne Demattei was removed from the Consent 
Agenda and discussed in Closed Session (See 5.1).   
 
Action:  Ms. Kwan Lloyd moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda, and the 
motion was seconded by Ms. Settles. The motion carried with a vote of 7-0; with trustees Arnott, 
Battey, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; none opposed. 
 

1603.4.1 Disability Retirements:   

The Board found that Arlette Hess is (1) permanently incapacitated from the performance of her usual 
and customary duties as an Information Technology Analyst, (2) found that her disability was the result 
of an injury arising out of and in the course of her employment and (3) granted her application for a 
service-connected disability retirement. 

1603.4.2 Service Retirements: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding service retirements: 
Member Name                                    Effective Retirement Date                                                    Department 
Baca-Jenkins, Betty  January 11, 2016 Courts 
Balestin, Gary January 30, 2016 Behavioral Health 
Bonar, Michael January 12, 2016 Deferred from Child Welfare 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2 of 6 

Cabotaje, Rosenda January 26, 2016 Deferred from Medical Center 
Carlson, Gregory January 9, 2016 Behavioral Health 
Galang, Anita January 11, 2016 Courts 
Gettle, Amy December 31, 2015 Deferred from Library 
Helms, Gordon January 2, 2016 Information Services Department 
Holmlund, Christine January 26, 2016 Deferred from Assessor 
Houston, Ruby January 30, 2016 Probation 
Johnson, Ann January 29, 2016 Human Services Agency 
Moresco, Gail January 16, 2016 Courts 
Murphy, Ann-Marie January 23, 2016 Behavioral Health 
Nassarre, Rebecca January 13, 2016 Human Services Agency 
Nath, Nalini January 21, 2016 Human Services Agency 
Smith, Elizabeth January 30, 2016 Deferred from District Attorney 
Vidal-Noriega, Betty January 16, 2015 Medical Center 
Whitmer, Irene January 16, 2016 Sheriff's 
Wilson, Anna January 11, 2016 Medical Center 
Wright, Cherlene January 25, 2016 Probation 
Yan, Jimmy February 1, 2016 Public Health/Family Health 
 

1603.4.3 Continuances:   
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding continuances: 
Survivor’s Name Beneficiary of: 
Ayon, Celia Ayon, Alexander 
Collins, Portia Jackson, Beatrice 
Jackson, Teri Jackson, Beatrice 
O'Brien, Victoria Verber, Steven 
Reid, Constance Reid, Michael 
Stamper, Dorothy Stamper, William 
Valera-Gomez, Bernardita Gomez, Oscar  
 

1603.4.4 Deferred Retirements: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding deferred 
retirements: 
Member Name    Retirement Plan Type 
Bilodeau, Michelle N. G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Bradshaw, Charlotte L. G2 & 3, Vested 
Cardenas, Edith G4, Vested 
Cavazos, Angie G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Fantozzi, Peter J. G4, Vested 
O’Keefe, Carmen G4, Vested 
Pawlowsky, Eric G4, Vested - Reciprocity 
Swillinger, Timothy R. G4, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
Thachet, Lisu M. G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
Velazquez, Tania A. G4, Vested 
Wade, Felix A. G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
Wong, Mamie G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 
 

1603.4.5 Member Account Refunds:  
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding refunds: 
Member Name                                      Retirement Plan Type 
Anthony, Reymundo G4, Non-vested 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 3 of 6 

Cheung, May G7, Non-vested 
De Leon, Victoria G7, Non-vested 
Debord, Barbara G4, Non-vested 
Sedreddin, Babak G7, Non-vested 
Stevenson, Monique G7, Non-vested 
 

1603.4.6 Member Account Rollovers: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding rollovers: 
Member Name                                        Retirement Plan Type 
Yoo, Steven G7, Non-vested 
 

1603.4.7 Approval of 2015 Actuarial Valuation Addendum and Resolution Accepting Contribution Rates to 
Recommend to the Board of Supervisors for the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year:  The Board accepted the June 
30, 2015 Actuarial Valuation Addendum dated March 13, 2016, and approved the Resolution Accepting 
Contribution Rates to be Recommended to the County of San Mateo Board of Supervisors for the Fiscal 
Year 2016-17. 
 

1603.5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  The Board adjourned into 
closed session at 10:04 a.m. to consider the disability application of Ms. Joanne Demattei, as well as 
consideration of Item 6.7 (taken out of order).      
 
Mr. Bowler arrived at 10:06 a.m. and joined the closed session.    
 
The meeting reconvened into public session at 10:34 a.m., and Ms. Carlson reported the following 
action, related to Ms. Demattei, taken by the Board in closed session.    
 
Action:  Mr. Spinello moved to deny Ms. Demattei’s application for a service-connected disability 
retirement; and the motion was seconded by Ms. Tourel.   The motion carried with a vote of 8-0; with 
trustees Arnott, Battey, Bowler, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; none 
opposed. 
 

1603.6.7 Discussion of Proposed Alternative Investments (to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential Under 
Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.26, see item C2):  While the Board was in closed session from 10:04 
a.m. to 10:34 a.m., the Board discussed Item 6.7.    
 
After the meeting was reconvened, Ms. Carlson reported that the Board discussed item 6.7 in the 
closed session but that no reportable action was taken. 
   

1603.5.2 Approval of Resolutions Defining (1) Compensation Earnable pursuant to Government Code §31461 
and (2) Pensionable Compensation pursuant to Government Code §7522.34.:  Mr. Hood introduced 
this item, stating it was a “housecleaning” item.  These resolutions will add new pay codes and delete 
obsolete ones to match the pay codes used by the County in Workday.  Ms. Smith and Ms. Carlson also 
answered questions from Board members about the changes and how these codes operate within 
SamCERA’s system.  There are two resolutions to be approved, one for PEPRA and one for non-PEPRA 
members.   A single vote of the Board was taken to approve both resolutions as presented.   
 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 4 of 6 

 Action:   Ms. Arnott moved to approve the following two resolutions to be effective March 27, 2016: 
(1) Resolution defining Compensation Earnable, pursuant to Government Code §31461 for members 
who are not subject to Government Code §7522.34 and (2) Resolution defining Pensionable 
Compensation pursuant to Government Code §7522.34 for members who are not subject to 
Government Code §31461. The motion was seconded by Mr. Bowler and carried with a vote of 8-0; 
with trustees Arnott, Battey, Bowler, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; 
none opposed. 
 

1603.6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ending February 29, 2016:  Mr. 
Coultrip discussed the preliminary monthly performance report with the Board.  He reported the fund’s 
net preliminary return for February was -0.05%, while the preliminary trailing twelve-month return 
ending February 2016 was -5.3% net. This report was informational and for discussion only; no action 
was taken.  
 

1603.6.2 Report on the Global Custodian (Northern Trust) Annual Review:  Ms. Ng stated that SamCERA staff 
met with Northern Trust representatives on March 3, 2016 at SamCERA, and reported that Northern 
Trust continues to provide an excellent level of service to staff in accordance with expectations.  No 
major concerns were identified during the review. This report was informational and for discussion 
only; no action was taken.   
 

1603.6.3 Report on Cash Overlay (Parametric Minneapolis) Annual Review:  Mr. Coultrip stated that SamCERA 
staff met with the CIO of Parametric Minneapolis (formerly The Clifton Group) on March 3, 2016 at 
SamCERA.   There was discussion with the Board about possible impacts to SamCERA due to personnel 
changes at Parametric. No major concerns were identified during the review. This report was 
informational and for discussion only; no action was taken.   
 

1603.6.4 Report on Proxy Voting Summary for Quarter Ended December 31, 2015: Mr. Coultrip and Ms. Ng 
reviewed the proxy voting process.  They, along with Ms. Jadallah, discussed the summarized proxy 
voting data with the Board.  This report was informational and for discussion only; no action was taken.   
 

1603.6.5 Update on U.S. Core Small-Capitalization Equity Manager Search:   Mr. Coultrip and Ms. Jadallah 
reviewed the selection criteria and updated the Board on this search.  Verus and SamCERA staff have 
identified a short-list of five U.S. Core Small-Capitalization Equity managers and due diligence 
questionnaires will be sent to these firms.   This report was informational and for discussion only; no 
action was taken.   
 

1603.6.6 Approval to Establish a Dedicated Inflation Protection Pool:   Mr. Coultrip discussed the rationale for 
combining the current inflation-sensitive portfolio exposures into a single asset class., in order to better 
manage the assets, and the overall portfolio.  Mr. Nicolini then reviewed the potential future 
implementation of this proposed change with the Board.     
 

1603.6.6 Action:  Mr. Battey moved to approve the staff and consultant recommendation to form a dedicated 
inflation protection pool.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Spinello and carried with a vote of 8-0; with 
trustees Arnott, Battey, Bowler, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; none 
opposed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned for lunch at 11:56 a.m., and reconvened at 12:17 p.m. 
 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 5 of 6 

1603.7.1 Approval of Resolution Authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to Execute a Third Amendment to the 
Agreement with Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation for Audit Services:   Mr. Hood presented 
the staff report; and reviewed the terms of the contract amendment with the Board.  The Third 
Amendment would extend the current term for three more fiscal years, to include the June 30, 2018 
audit.  
 
Action:  Ms. Settles moved to approve the resolution authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
a third amendment to the agreement with Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation for Audit 
Services. The motion was seconded by Ms. Kwan Lloyd and carried with a vote of 8-0; with trustees 
Arnott, Battey, Bowler, Hackleman, Kwan Lloyd, Settles, Spinello and Tourel all in favor; none opposed. 
 

1603.7.2 Report on Status of April 26 and 27, 2016 Board-Staff Retreat Planning: Mr. Hood reviewed the 
proposed agenda for the 2016 Board-Staff Retreat with the Board, and noted the schedule changes 
made following the Board’s discussion during the March meeting.  This report was informational and 
for discussion only; no action was taken.   
 

1603.7.3 Report on Progress of SamCERA’s Information Technology Projects:  Mr. Ali updated the Board on the 
on-going IT projects, and Mr. Morrow followed up with information on status of the PASS 
implementation.   This report was informational and for discussion only; no action was taken.   
 

1603.8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report:   Mr. Hood reviewed the items in the “Day of Meeting” folder with the 
Board; and updated them on the construction at 100 Marine Parkway and the status of lease 
negotiations with the landlord.  He alerted the Board to upcoming items expected on the April board 
meeting agenda.   
 

1603.8.2 Assistant Executive Officer’s Report:  Ms. Smith reported staff was working on the Spring edition of the 
SamCERA newsletter; and reminded the Board members that the $25 fee for each trustee’s non-
recourse insurance would be due at the next meeting.   She also reported that SamCERA had will enter 
into a new contract with Financial Knowledge Network.   Ms. Perez spoke to the Board about upcoming 
education opportunities and conferences.    
 

1603.8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report:  Mr. Coultrip reported that John Nicolini from Verus would provide 
an educational presentation in regard to mining investments at a future meeting.  Mr. Coultrip also 
reviewed two portfolio rebalancing events.   
 

1603.8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report:  Ms. Carlson updated the Board on AB 1853 (Cooper), which, if passed, 
would authorize the retirement board of any retirement system operating under CERL to elect, by 
resolution, to be a district under the law.   She also noted a trial court decision regarding a felony 
forfeiture matter.  
 
Mr. Ali then presented an IT demonstration for the Board members.   
 

CLOSED SESSION  
C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, Removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 

 

C2 
 

Consideration of Approval to Sell Alternative Investment (to be heard in Closed Session, Confidential 
Under Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.26): (Confidential Under Gov. Code §54956.81 and §6254.2) – 
No reportable action was taken, see item 6.7.  
 

 

 



 

March 22, 2016, DRAFT Minutes                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 6 of 6 

1603.9 Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session:  See item 6.7. 
 

1603.10 Adjournment:   Mr. Hackleman adjourned the meeting at 1:17 p.m. in memory of the deceased 
members listed below.   
 

 Williams, Deartis January 20, 2016 Crystal Springs Rehab Center 

De Angelis, Gennaro February 8, 2016 Parks and Recreation 

Schultz, Dolores February 15, 2016 County Clerk 

Woodworth, Virginia February 15, 2016 County Clerk 

Carr-Glass, Iola February 19, 2016 Mental Health 

Molina, Dora February 19, 2016 Hospital 

Ferree, David February 21, 2016 Sheriff's 

Nicholson, Carolee February 23, 2016 Public Health 

Handley, Chantal February 25, 2016 Public Health 

Misculin, Guido February 26, 2016 Public Works 

Bodey, Charles February 29, 2016 Public Works 
 

 
 
 
 
____________________________                              __________________________________     
Scott Hood   Kristina Perez 
Chief Executive Officer  Retirement Executive Secretary 



 

                     
                                                                SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

 

 

April 26, 2016    Agenda Items 4.1- 4.6   

    
TO:               Board of Retirement 

FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager      
 
SUBJECT:     Approval of Consent Agenda Items 4.1 – 4.6 

 
4.1 Disability Retirements 
    a) The Board find that Patrick Galindo is (1) permanently incapacitated from the performance 

of his usual and customary duties as a Correctional Officer, (2) find that his disability was 
the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) grant his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
    b) The Board find that Voytek Golda is (1) permanently incapacitated from the performance 

of his usual and customary duties as a Correctional Officer, (2) find that his disability was 
the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment and (3) grant his 
application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
    c) The Board refer Tully Vogt’s application for service-connected disability to a hearing officer 

for proposed findings and recommendations.  
 
4.2 Service Retirements 

The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
service retirements: 
 

Member Name Effective Retirement Date Department 

Brumfield, Duane February 28, 2016 Sheriff's 

David, Sonia February 7, 2016 Deferred from Medical Center 

Johnson, Lily February 28, 2016 Sheriff's 

Jumper, Janice February 16, 2016 Human Services Agency 

Lillie, Mark February 29, 2016 Deferred from District Attorney 

Manjarrez, Kathleen March 1, 2016 District Attorney 

McClure, Christopher February 27, 2016 Probation 

Melendy, Laura February 27, 2016 Probation 

Narayan, Yattra February 8, 2016 Deferred from Medical Center 

Ottolini, Jennifer February 22, 2016 Deferred from Superior Court 

Pedrini, Pamela February 27, 2016 Superior Court 



   

2 

 

Peralta, Sandra February 22, 2016 Medical Center 

Piamonte, Cesario February 26, 2016 Probation 

Sanchez, Ana January 24, 2016 Sheriff's 

Saraza, Feliciana March 1, 2016 Deferred from Medical Center 

Stanfield, Timothy February 27, 2016 Public Works 

Tsang, Raymond February 27, 2016 Assessor's 

 
 
4.3 Continuances 
 The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 

continuances: 

Survivor’s Name Beneficiary of: 

Browning, Linda Marsh  Browning Jr., James 

De Angelis, Antoinette De Angelis, Gennaro 

Ferree, Janet Ferree, David 

Forbes, Phillys Forbes, Glenn 

Fristup, Jean Fristup, Carroll 

O'Rourke, Marie O’Rourke, Thomas 

Overstreet, Lorraine Sims, Lorraine 

Sims-Bzoskie, Lisanne Sims, Lorraine 

Springer, Richard Springer, Gerda 

 
 
4.4 Deferred Retirements 
 The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 

deferred retirements: 

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Antony Anthanatt, Anupama G4, Vested 

Carr, Kacy G4, Vested - Reciprocity 

Cassidy-White, Nicole G4, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

Espinoza, Cirilo C. G4, Vested 

Fischer, Jacqueline A. G4, Vested 

Hassel Shearer, Meaghan G5, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 



   

3 

 

Hernandez, Hector A. G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

Jimenez, Chellee L.  G4, Vested 

Mahoney, Brian G7, Non-Vested - Reciprocity 

Melendrez, Jorge G4/S4, Vested 

Pasos, Addy K.  G4, Vested 

Rusmisel, Benjamin G4, Vested 

Torres, Jane M.  G4, Vested 

Webb, Tequila L.  P4, Vested 

 
 
 
 
4.5 Member Account Refunds 

 The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 
refunds: 

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Bevis, Donna G7, Non-vested 

Bradshaw, Charlotte G2/Plan 3, Vested 

Chuey, Mandy G4, Vested 

Fathi, Maryam G7, Non-vested 

Flores, Lydia G5, Non-vested 

Giannini, Michael (FBO: Hope Firenze) G4, Vested 

Jurow, Jason S4, Vested 

Misculin, Guido (FBO: Lavinia Accioly) G4/Plan 3, Vested 

Misculin, Guido (FBO: Lorena Misculin) G4/Plan 3, Vested 

Misculin, Guido (FBO: Marina Misculin) G4/Plan 3, Vested 

Mroz, Matthew S7, Non-vested 

Sonntag, Roberta G2, Non-vested 

Stillwell, Debra G7, Non-vested 

Williams, Sara G4, Vested 

Zamora, Yecenia G7, Non-vested 

 
 



   

4 

 

4.6 Member Account Rollovers 
 The Board ratifies the actions as listed below for the following members regarding 

rollovers:    
 

Member Name Retirement Plan Type 

Enriquez, Robert G7, Non-vested 

Hinkamp, James G7, Non-vested 

Miller, Christina G5, Non-vested 

 



April 26, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

Board of Retirement 

Agenda Item 4.7 

SUBJECT: 

Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer ~dJ j 
Report on Financial Audit Work Plan for the Fiscal Year 2015-16 

Staff Recommendation 
Accept staff report on the Financial Audit Work Plan for the fisca l year ending June 30, 
2016. 

Background 
Government Code Section 31593 mandates that : "The retirement board shall conduct 
an audit of the retirement system at least once every 12 months and report upon its 
financial condition." SamCERA's f iscal year runs from July 1 through June 30. 
SamCERA's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with its auditor's report will be 
submitted to the Board's review and approval in October each year. 

Discussion 
The audit process starts in May 2016 with staff providing information to the auditor, 
Brown Armstrong Certified Public Accountants . The interim audit fieldwork will be 

conducted from June 27 to June 30, and the final audit fieldwork from August 22 to 
August 25. 

Below are the tentative dates that specific reports in connection with the audit will 
be delivered to the Audit Committee or the Board for review and approval as 
appropriate. 

• On October 6, 2016, the Audit Committee Report in draft format will be available 
for the Audit Committee's review. 

• On October 19, 2016, the following reports in final format will be submitted for 
the Board's review and subsequent approval on October 25, 2016. 

- Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
- Letter to Management 

- Report on Compliance and Internal Control 
- Audit Committee Report 

• On October 25, 2016, the auditor will present the CAFR at the Board's meeting. 



April 26, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOClA T ION 

Board of Retirement 

Agenda Item 4.8 

Board of Retirement 

~l/J,~ 
Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 4{ 
Required Documentation for Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited 's Separate Account 

for Investments in Indian Securities. 

Staff Recommendation 

Approve a resolution authorizing investments in securities in India and authorizing the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute documents necessary to effectuate such investments. 

Background 

In 2012, the Board entered into an investment manager agreement with Baillie Gifford 
Overseas Limited for an international equity growth mandate. Pursuant to the agreement, the 
Board delegated to Baillie Gifford full discretion to invest in a manner consistent with its 
Investment Policy Statement, which authorizes investments in international equity, including 
emerging markets. 

Discussion 
Baillie Gifford manages a separate account on SamCERA's behalf and India is one of the 
intended emerging market s that SamCERA is to invest in. At the request of Baillie Gifford, 
SamCERA will file an application with the Designated Depository Participant pursuant to 
Securities and Exchange Board of India regulations to register as a Foreign Portfolio Investor 
(FPI). This FPI status will allow Baillie Gifford to trade Indian securities in the local market on 
behalf of Sam CERA's separate account. Staff, with assistance of the Northern Trust' s sub
custodian in India, is finalizing the FPI registration application for submission. To that end, staff 

was instructed to submit a resolution of the Board, specifically authorizing investments in 
Indian securities and authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to sign required documents in 
relation to SamCERA's trading of such investments. 

The attached resolution is in a required format for SamCERA's registration submission . 

Attachment 
Resolution Authorizing Investments in Securities in India and Authorizing the Chief Executive 
Officer to Execute Documents Necessary to Effectuate Such Investments. 



 

 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
RESOLUTION 2016-__ 

 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES IN INDIA  

AND AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE DOCUMENTS  
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SUCH INVESTMENTS 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, this Board has determined that as part of the Retirement Fund’s investment program 

to diversify the portfolio across domestic and international investments and to give 
its investment managers full discretion to invest in a manner consistent with its 
Investment Policy Statement; and  
 

 WHEREAS, this Board authorizes the investment in securities in India as part of its international 
emerging markets portfolio; thereby be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association is hereby authorized 
to invest in securities in India.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to 

execute subsequent documents necessary to effectuate such investments.  

* * * * * 
 

 
Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association, 
Board of Retirement, on April 26, 2016. 
 

Ayes, Trustees:    
  
Noes, Trustees:  
 
Absent, Trustees:  
 
Abstain, Trustees:  

 
 
__________________________________________ 
Natalie Kwan Lloyd, Board Secretary 
 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 

 

 

 
April 26, 2016 Agenda Item 4.9 

 
 
TO:  Board of Retirement 
 

FROM: Gladys Smith, Assistant Executive Officer   
 
SUBJECT: Approval to Renew Fiduciary Liability Insurance Policy 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the County’s Risk Manager to renew fiduciary 
liability insurance coverage with AIG (National Union Fire Insurance Company) through 
May 27, 2017. 
 
Background 
The Government Code requires SamCERA to defend trustees and staff against claims and 
litigation which arises from the performance of their duties.  Because the assets of the 
retirement fund would be used to provide such defense, since 1998, the Board has 
purchased fiduciary liability insurance to help protect the assets of the fund from the 
expenses and awards resulting from such litigation. 
 
Discussion 
Staff, with the assistance of the County Risk Manager and James and Gable Insurance 
Brokers, Inc., solicited a proposed renewal of SamCERA’s fiduciary liability insurance with 
AIG (National Union Fire Insurance Company).  AIG provided quotes, based on the size of 
SamCERA’s assets, for the $10 million coverage which is the same as the current year’s 
coverage amount. 
 
This year’s premium is $64,700 for $10 million in coverage for May 27, 2016 through May 
27, 2017, which is $900 less than last year’s premium.  The Board’s current fiduciary 
policy deductible amount of $100,000 would remain the same.   
 
SamCERA also received a Waiver of Nonrecourse endorsement in the amount of $450 for 
the 18 identified fiduciaries.  This cannot be paid by the fund and must be paid personally 
by each fiduciary.  For convenience, the fund collects the money from the fiduciary and 
remits payment to the insurance broker.   



April 26, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SAN M ATEO C O UNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT A SSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

Board of Retirement 

Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

Agenda Item 6.1 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended March 31, 2016 

Staff Recommendation 
Accept the preliminary performance report dated March 31, 2016. 

Background 
This preliminary report is intended to provide a high-level view of the portfolio and its trends. It is 
not intended to provide short-term performance upon which the Board would act. As discussed 
previously, preliminary performance estimates are now included for AQR Risk Parity, AQR Delta, 
PanAgora Risk Parity, and Beach Point Select. The quarterly performance metrics are not yet 
available for our private equity, private real asset, and real estate portfolios. The performance for 
these portfolios will be reflected in the quarterly performance report generated by Verus. 

The attached performance report shows both net and gross of fee returns for the total plan on 
page one, with net composite returns (pages 2-3) and net manager returns (pages 4-9) also shown. 

Discussion 
The fund's net preliminary return for March was 4.2%, while the preliminary trail ing twelve-month 
return ending March 2016 was -0.8% net. The twelve-month net return is higher than SamCERA' s 
Total Plan Policy Benchmark return of -0.95%, but below the Actuarial Assumed Earnings Rate of 
7.25%. As a reminder, SamCERA should expect performance to vary substantially from that ofthe 
Total Plan Policy Benchmark in the initial stages of its implementation of private equity and private 
real assets. 

Equity markets surged during the month as a " risk-on" mentality fueled market gains. A dovish 
Federal Reserve statement, continued policy accommodation in Europe, higher oil prices, and 

I 

signs of higher inflation all combined to lower concerns of a deflationary economic downturn. The 
broad U.S. equity market was higher during t he month, with the S&P 500 Index up just under 7%. 

International equity indices were also higher on the month, with developed markets (as measured 
by MSCI EAFE) up 6.5% and emerging markets up 13.2%. 

The U.S. Treasury yields increased slightly, with the 10-year Treasury rate higher by 4 basis points. 
However, credit spreads narrowed considerably, resulting in positive fixed income returns. The 



general U.S. fixed income market return was higher by 0.9%. The high yield market returned 4.4%, 
while emerging debt returned 3.3%. 

Attachments 
A. Verus March 2016 Capital Markets Update 
B. Northern Trust Performance Report 

2 



MARCH 2016
Capital Markets Update



Market commentary

ECONOMIC CLIMATE
— The Federal Reserve left the Federal Funds rate unchanged at its 

March meeting. Janet Yellen cited the continued risks posed by 
global financial markets in her statement, stating the Fed will remain 
accommodative.

— The ISM manufacturing index rose to 51.8 in March, up from 49.5 in 
the previous month. This broke a string of five consecutive sub-50 
readings. The new orders component of the index unexpectedly  
jumped nearly 7 points to 58.3, which is the highest level since 
November 2014.   

— The labor market continued to add jobs, with nonfarm payrolls 
increasing by 215,000 in March. The unemployment rate ticked up 
slightly to 5.0% from 4.9% in February. However, increasing 
unemployment was influenced by a 0.1% rise in the labor 
participation rate to 63.0% as new job seekers entered the market. 

DOMESTIC EQUITIES
— The S&P 500 surged 6.8% during the month, which erased year-to-

date losses and led to a positive first quarter. 
— All 10 sectors of the S&P 500 showed positive returns in March. 

Higher oil prices helped energy lead the way with a return of 9.3%. 
Health care returned was the poorest performing sector at 2.8%. 

— The first quarter earnings growth estimate for the S&P 500 was          
negative at -8.5% as of month end. If an earnings decline is reported, 
it will mark the first time since the four quarters ending Q3 2009 that 
the index has experienced four consecutive quarters of earnings 
contraction.

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

DOMESTIC FIXED INCOME
— Treasury yields rose at the beginning of the month prior to the Fed 

meeting, but fell after Yellen’s dovish statements, finishing the 
month relatively unchanged.  

— Option-adjusted spreads for investment grade and high yield debt 
narrowed 35 bps and 70 bps, respectively, indicating lower perceived 
credit risk across the fixed income market. Despite narrowing in 
March, the current high yield spread of 7.1% remains above its long-
term average of 5.8%.   

INTERNATIONAL MARKETS
— Further monetary easing was announced at the European Central 

Bank meeting. The deposit rate for excess reserves was cut 10 bps to 
-0.4% and the target overnight lending rate was decreased 5 bps to 
0.0%. The asset purchase program was increased to €80 billion a 
month, which will include corporate bonds for the first time. 

— Meanwhile, there were no policy changes at the Bank of Japan 
meeting. The deposit rate for excess reserves remained at -0.1%. 
However, BOJ governor, Haruhiko Kuroda, set the stage for further 
easing if necessary, stating his current policy has no “quantitative 
limit”. 

— A weaker U.S. dollar and higher commodity prices helped fuel an 
emerging markets rally. The MSCI EM Index returned 13.2% during 
the month. Brazil was one of the best performing EM countries, 
supported by an increased speculation that the current political 
regime will be replaced. 

2



Major asset class returns

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

3

ONE YEAR ENDING MARCH TEN YEARS ENDING MARCH

-19.6%

-12.0%

-11.8%

-9.8%

-8.3%

-7.7%

-3.7%

-1.5%

0.9%

1.7%

1.8%

2.0%

2.4%

2.5%

4.8%

-25% -20% -15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EM

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Russell 2000

 MSCI EAFE

 Russell 2000 Value

 BC US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 1000 Value

 BC US Credit

 BC US Agency Interm

 S&P 500

 BC US Agg Bond

 BC US Treasury

 Russell 1000 Growth

 Wilshire US REIT

-6.2%

1.8%

3.0%

3.7%

4.4%

4.6%

4.9%

5.3%

5.7%

5.7%

6.0%

6.3%

7.0%

7.0%

8.3%

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EAFE

 MSCI EM

 BC US Agency Interm

 Russell 2000 Value

 BC US Treasury

 BC US Agg Bond

 Russell 2000

 Russell 1000 Value

 BC US Credit

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Wilshire US REIT

 S&P 500

 BC US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 1000 Growth



US LARGE CAP (S&P 500) VALUATION SNAPSHOT EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN SHILLER PE RATIO S&P 500 VALUATION SNAPSHOT

U.S. large cap equities

Source: Yale/Shiller, as of 3/31/16 Source: Yale/Shiller, Verus Source: Standard & Poor’s, as of 3/31/16

4

— Large cap equities rallied during the month, 
influenced by a strong February jobs report, an 
upward revision to fourth quarter GDP, and the Fed 
reiterating its intentions of a gradual rate increase. 
The S&P 500 returned 6.8% in March. 

— Another earnings decline is predicted as EPS 
estimates for S&P 500 companies were downgraded 
significantly during the first quarter. Per Factset, the 
Q1 bottom-up EPS estimate has dropped 9.6% from 

$29.13 to $26.32 since the beginning of the year.  

— The S&P 500 Shiller P/E ratio increased for the first 
time in three months to 25.6. The Shiller has fallen 
over the past year from 26.6 to 25.6, and is currently 
above its long-term average of 24.0.

— The forward 1-year P/E ratio for the S&P 500 jumped 
to 18.5 from 16.2 in March due to an increase in 
price and lower earnings forecasts. 

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

23.8

18.5

2.1 2.2
4.2

5.4

0

5

10

15

20

25

Trailing
 1 Yr P/E

Forward
 1 Yr P/E

Current
 Div. Yld

(%)

Implied
 Div. Yld

(%)

Trailing
Earnings
Yld (%)

Implied
Earnings
Yld (%)

-57%

-26%

-4%

14%

-58%

-27%

-5%

13%

-70%

-50%

-30%

-10%

10%

30%

50%

4th Quartile
Avg. Since

1926: PE=10

Avg. Since
1926: PE=18

30 Year Avg.
PE=23

1st Quartile
Avg. Since

1926: PE=27

1 
Ye

ar
 R

et
ur

n:
 P

E 
Ra

tio
 R

ea
liz

ed

1 Year Return as of March '16 (Starting PE: 25.6)

1 Year Return as of March '15 (Starting PE: 26.6)
25.6

2.2
3.9

24.3

2.2
4.1

26.6

2.0
3.8

23.6

2.0
4.3

24.0

2.2

5.1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Shiller P/E Ratio Dividend Yield (%) Earnings Yield (%)

Mar-16

Jan-16

Mar-15

5 Year Average

30 Year Average



U.S. TREASURY YIELD CURVE NOMINAL FIXED INCOME YIELDS IMPLIED INFLATION (TIPS BREAKEVEN)

Fixed income

Source: Federal Reserve Source: Ibbotson, JP Morgan Source: Federal Reserve, as of 3/31/16

5

— U.S. Treasury yields rose early in the month, with the 
10-year yield peaking at 1.98% mid-month. Following 
dovish comments by the Fed, the 10-year rate fell to 
1.78%, only 4 bps higher than it started the month.

— The high yield market showed one of the best 
domestic returns on the back of considerable spread 
tightening. The BC High Yield Index returned 4.4%.  

— Inflation expectations picked up in the U.S. in March. 
The 5-year and 10-year TIPS breakeven inflation rates 
rose 26 bps and 20 bps, respectively. The BC U.S. 
TIPS Index (1.8%) outperformed the U.S. Treasuries 
Index (0.2%) during the month. 

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%
Mar-15
Sep-15
Mar-16

1.5%

1.1%

1.5%
1.8% 1.4% 1.6%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

1 Year Prior 6 Months Prior Mar-16

5-Year Implied Inflation

10-Year Implied Inflation

0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

Barclays US
Treasury

Index

Barclays US
Aggregate

Index

Barclays US
Credit Index

Barclays US
Corp

High Yield
Index

EMBI-Global
Index

Mar-16

Mar-15

20-Year Average



GLOBAL SOVEREIGN 10 YEAR INDEX YIELDS U.S. DOLLAR MAJOR CURRENCY INDEX 
MSCI VALUATION METRICS (3 MONTH 
AVERAGE)

Global markets

Source: Bloomberg, JP Morgan, as of 3/31/16                                                Source: Federal Reserve, as of 3/31/16                                                             Source: MSCI, as of 3/31/16

6

— International developed markets (MSCI EAFE +6.5%) 
underperformed both domestic markets (S&P 500 
+6.8%) and emerging markets (MSCI EM +13.2%). 

— Emerging markets (MSCI EM) posted the best 
monthly performance since 2011, positively 
influenced by a weaker dollar and higher commodity 
prices. A 21-month high $36.8 billion flowed into 
emerging markets funds in March.  

— Japan underperformed other developed market as 
the MSCI Japan index returned 4.7% in March. The 
underperformance was influenced by a stronger yen, 

despite the BOJ’s recent monetary easing measures. 

— The dollar weakened for the second straight month 
with the U.S. Dollar Major Currency Index falling 
1.9% in March, partially in response to dovish Fed 
comments. 

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

60

80

100

120

140

Jan-73 Jan-79 Jan-85 Jan-91 Jan-97 Jan-03 Jan-09 Jan-15
US Major Currency Index (real) Average Currency Index Value
Subsequent 10 Year Return

1.5

16.0

8.5

3.4

9.7

2.7

20.0

12.2

2.2

7.2

1.4

13.0

7.8

2.9

10.6

0

5

10

15

20

25

P/BV P/E Price/Cash
Earnings

Dividend
Yield (%)

Earnings +
Dividend
Yield(%)

EAFE

United States

Emerging Markets

0.0%
0.2%

1.8%
1.2%

0.5%

1.4% 1.2%

3.1% 3.3%

5.9%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%



0.9 0.9

-4.1 -4.2

-2.1
-2.6

0.9

-5.0

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 20 Yrs

RELATIVE PE RATIO OF U.S. VALUE VS. GROWTH
U.S. VALUE VS. GROWTH ABSOLUTE 
PERFORMANCE

U.S. VALUE VS GROWTH RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

Style tilts: U.S. large value vs. growth

Source: Russell, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

7

— Value stocks outperformed growth stocks during the 
month as the Russell 1000 Value Index and Russell 
1000 Growth Index returned 7.2% and 6.7%, 
respectively. 

— The relative PE ratio of value to growth stocks (0.81) 
continued to track the long-term average (0.76). This 
metric suggests that although growth stocks have 
recently outperformed, they appear to be fairly 

valued relative to value stocks.

— While value stocks have outperformed year-to-date, 
growth stocks provided a better risk-adjusted return 
over nearly all time periods examined relative to 
value stocks, except over the very long term (20 
years).

Value Outperformance

Growth 
Outperformance

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

RUSSELL 1000 GROWTH 
ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

RUSSELL 1000 VALUE 
ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

QTD 0.7 1.6 
YTD 0.7 1.6 
1 YEAR 2.5 (1.5)
3 YEARS 13.6 9.4 
5 YEARS 12.4 10.2 
7 YEARS 17.9 16.3 
10 YEARS 8.3 5.7 
20 YEARS 7.4 8.3 

SHARPE RATIO SHARPE RATIO
3 YEARS 1.14 0.84 
5 YEARS 0.99 0.83 
7 YEARS 1.29 1.15 
10 YEARS 0.52 0.36 
20 YEARS 0.28 0.39 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5 Rolling 3 Month Avg PE
(Value/Growth)
Relative Average Valuation

Subsequent 5 Year Rolling Excess
Returns (value vs. growth)



-2.7 -2.7

-10.3

-4.7
-4.1

-1.8

-0.4

-11.0

-9.0

-7.0

-5.0

-3.0

-1.0

QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 20 Yrs

Small Outperformance

RELATIVE PE RATIO OF U.S. SMALL VS. LARGE
U.S. LARGE VS. SMALL ABSOLUTE 
PERFORMANCE

U.S. SMALL VS. LARGE RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

Style tilts: U.S. large vs. small

Source: Russell, Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16 Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

8

— Small cap equities outperformed large cap equities 
during the month. The Russell 2000 Index and 
Russell 1000 Index returned 8.0% and 7.0%, 
respectively.

— The Russell 1000 Index has outperformed the Russell 
2000 Index on an absolute and risk-adjusted basis in 
every time period examined over the last 20 years. 

— The relative P/E ratio of small to large cap equities at 

the end of March was 1.85, well above its long-term 
average, suggesting small cap stocks are relatively 
overvalued. 

Large 
Outperformance

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

RUSSELL 1000 INDEX 
ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

RUSSELL 2000 INDEX 
ANNUALIZED RETURN TO DATE %

QTD 1.2 (1.5)
YTD 1.2 (1.5)
1 YEAR 0.5 (9.8)
3 YEARS 11.5 6.8 
5 YEARS 11.4 7.2 
7 YEARS 17.2 16.4 
10 YEARS 7.1 5.3 
20 YEARS 8.1 7.7 

SHARPE RATIO SHARPE RATIO
3 YEARS 1.00 0.50 
5 YEARS 0.92 0.50 
7 YEARS 1.24 0.88 
10 YEARS 0.45 0.30 
20 YEARS 0.37 0.26 

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.9

Rolling 3 Month Avg PE (Small/Large)

Relative Valuation Average

Subsequent 5 Yr Rolling Excess Returns
(Small-Large)



INDEX AND SECTOR PERFORMANCE WTI CRUDE OIL VS. U.S. TOTAL CRUDE OIL INVENTORY

Commodities

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16                                                                           Source: Bloomberg, as of 3/31/16

9

— The Bloomberg Commodity Index advanced for the 
first time in eight months, returning 3.8%. A weaker 
U.S. dollar provided a tailwind for commodity prices. 

— Oil was also up during the month. WTI crude oil 
finished the month at $38.34 per barrel, up 13.6%. 
Oil-producing countries will meet on April 17 in Doha 
in hopes of reaching a production freeze. 

— U.S. crude oil inventories unexpectedly fell by 4.9 

million barrels in March. 

— Energy (7.8%) was the best performing Bloomberg 
Commodity Index sub-sector in March, followed 
closely by softs (7.5%), which includes coffee, sugar, 
and cotton.  

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

QTD YTD
1 

Year
3 

Year
5 

Year
10 

Year

Bloomberg Commodity 0.4 0.4 (19.6) (16.9) (14.1) (6.2)

Bloomberg Agriculture 0.7 0.7 (6.8) (11.9) (10.6) (0.1)

Bloomberg Energy (9.3) (9.3) (39.6) (30.9) (24.1) (20.6)

Bloomberg Grains 0.1 0.1 (12.1) (14.2) (9.5) 0.3 

Bloomberg Industrial Metals 2.3 2.3 (21.0) (13.3) (14.5) (4.2)

Bloomberg Livestock 1.2 1.2 (9.0) (1.9) (4.9) (5.6)

Bloomberg Petroleum (5.7) (5.7) (37.6) (30.9) (20.9) (13.1)

Bloomberg Precious Metals 15.3 15.3 0.8 (11.3) (7.1) 5.9 

Bloomberg Softs (1.0) (1.0) 3.4 (11.7) (16.3) (5.1)

$20
$30
$40
$50
$60
$70
$80
$90
$100
$110

250

300

350

400

450

500

550
N

ov
-1

0

Ja
n-

11
M

ar
-1

1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
l-1

1

Se
p-

11

N
ov

-1
1

Ja
n-

12

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-1

2

Se
p-

12

N
ov

-1
2

Ja
n-

13
M

ar
-1

3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3

Se
p-

13

N
ov

-1
3

Ja
n-

14
M

ar
-1

4

M
ay

-1
4

Ju
l-1

4

Se
p-

14

N
ov

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
M

ar
-1

5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
l-1

5

Se
p-

15

N
ov

-1
5

Ja
n-

16

M
ar

-1
6

M
ill

io
ns

 o
f B

ar
re

ls

U.S. Crude Oil Inventory Oil (WTI)



Appendix

10
March 2016
Capital Markets Update



Periodic table of returns 

11

Source Data: Morningstar, Inc., Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFR), National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF).  Indices used: Russell 1000, Russell 1000 Value, Russell 1000 Growth, Russell 
2000, Russell 2000 Value, Russell 2000 Growth, MSCI EAFE, MSCI EM, BC Agg, T-Bill 90 Day, Bloomberg Commodity, NCREIF Property, HFRI FOF, MSCI ACWI, BC Global Bond. NCREIF Property performance data 
as of 12/31/15.

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

BE
ST

W
O

RS
T Large Cap Equity Small Cap Growth Commodities

Large Cap Value International Equity Real Estate

Large Cap Growth Emerging Markets Equity Hedge Funds of Funds

Small Cap Equity US Bonds 60% MSCI ACWI/40% BC Global Bond

Small Cap Value Cash

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 YTD 5-Year 10-Year

Emerging Markets Equity 74.8 16.6 38.4 23.2 35.2 38.7 66.4 31.8 14.0 25.9 56.3 26.0 34.5 32.6 39.8 5.2 79.0 29.1 14.3 18.6 43.3 13.5 10.1 5.7 12.4 8.3

US Bonds 32.9 8.1 37.8 23.1 32.9 27.0 43.1 22.8 8.4 10.3 48.5 22.2 21.4 26.9 16.2 1.4 37.2 26.9 7.8 18.1 38.8 13.2 5.7 3.0 12.2 7.8

60/40 Global Portfolio 26.3 6.4 37.2 22.4 31.8 20.3 33.2 12.2 7.3 6.7 47.3 20.7 20.1 23.5 15.8 -6.5 34.5 24.5 2.6 17.9 34.5 13.0 0.9 2.6 11.4 7.1

Small Cap Value 23.8 4.4 31.0 21.6 30.5 19.3 27.3 11.6 3.3 1.6 46.0 18.3 14.0 22.2 11.8 -21.4 32.5 19.2 1.5 17.5 33.5 11.8 0.6 1.7 10.2 6.0

Large Cap Value 19.3 3.2 28.5 21.4 22.4 16.2 26.5 7.0 2.8 1.0 39.2 16.5 7.5 18.4 11.6 -25.9 28.4 16.8 0.4 16.4 33.1 6.0 0.0 1.6 7.7 5.7

Large Cap Equity 18.9 2.6 25.7 16.5 16.2 15.6 24.3 6.0 2.5 -5.9 30.0 14.5 7.1 16.6 10.9 -28.9 27.2 16.7 0.1 16.3 32.5 5.6 -0.4 1.2 7.2 5.3

Large Cap Growth 18.1 0.4 19.6 14.4 13.9 8.7 21.3 4.1 -2.4 -6.0 29.9 14.3 6.3 15.5 10.3 -33.8 23.3 16.1 -2.1 15.3 23.3 4.9 -0.8 0.7 6.7 4.9

Commodities 13.4 -1.5 18.5 11.3 12.9 4.9 20.9 -3.0 -5.6 -11.4 29.7 12.9 5.3 15.1 7.0 -35.6 20.6 15.5 -2.9 14.6 12.1 4.2 -1.4 0.4 4.0 4.5

Cash 10.2 -1.8 15.2 10.3 10.6 1.2 13.2 -7.3 -9.1 -15.5 25.2 11.4 4.7 13.3 7.0 -36.8 19.7 13.1 -4.2 11.5 11.0 3.4 -2.5 0.1 3.8 4.4

Small Cap Equity 9.7 -2.0 11.6 9.9 9.7 -2.5 11.4 -7.8 -9.2 -15.7 23.9 9.1 4.6 10.4 5.8 -37.6 18.9 10.2 -5.5 10.5 9.0 2.8 -3.8 -1.5 2.3 3.0

Hedge Funds of Funds 3.1 -2.4 11.1 6.4 5.2 -5.1 7.3 -14.0 -12.4 -20.5 11.6 6.9 4.6 9.1 4.4 -38.4 11.5 8.2 -5.7 4.8 0.1 0.0 -4.4 -2.5 1.4 1.8

International Equity 2.9 -2.9 7.5 6.0 2.1 -6.5 4.8 -22.4 -19.5 -21.7 9.0 6.3 4.2 4.8 -0.2 -38.5 5.9 6.5 -11.7 4.2 -2.0 -1.8 -7.5 -3.0 0.1 1.5

Small Cap Growth 1.4 -3.5 5.7 5.1 -3.4 -25.3 -0.8 -22.4 -20.4 -27.9 4.1 4.3 3.2 4.3 -1.6 -43.1 0.2 5.7 -13.3 0.1 -2.3 -4.5 -14.9 -4.7 -4.1 1.0

Real Estate -1.1 -7.3 -5.2 3.6 -11.6 -27.0 -1.5 -30.6 -21.2 -30.3 1.0 1.4 2.4 2.1 -9.8 -53.2 -16.9 0.1 -18.2 -1.1 -9.5 -17.0 -24.7 N/A -14.1 -6.2



S&P 500 and S&P 500 sector returns

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16                                                                                           Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

12

QTD ONE YEAR ENDING MARCH

-5.5%

-5.1%

1.3%

1.6%

2.6%

3.6%

4.0%

5.0%

5.6%

15.6%

16.6%

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

 Health Care

 Financials

 S&P 500

 Consumer Discretionary

 Information Technology

 Materials

 Energy

 Industrials

 Consumer Staples

 Utilities

 Telecom

-15.5%

-6.0%

-5.2%

-4.5%

1.8%

3.2%

6.7%

8.1%

11.4%

16.0%

18.7%

-25% -15% -5% 5% 15% 25%

 Energy

 Materials

 Health Care

 Financials

 S&P 500

 Industrials

 Consumer Discretionary

 Information Technology

 Consumer Staples

 Utilities

 Telecom



Detailed index returns

13

Source: Morningstar, as of 3/31/16

March 2016
Capital Markets Update

DOMESTIC EQUITY FIXED INCOME
Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

 Core Index  Broad Index
 S&P 500 6.8 1.3 1.3 1.8 11.8 11.6 7.0  BC US Treasury US TIPS 1.8 4.5 4.5 1.5 (0.7) 3.0 4.6 
 S&P 500 Equal Weighted 7.9 3.0 3.0 (1.0) 11.8 11.5 8.2  BC US Treasury Bills 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 1.2 
 DJ Industrial Average 7.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 9.3 10.3 7.5  BC US Agg Bond 0.9 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.5 3.8 4.9 
 Russell Top 200 6.5 0.7 0.7 2.6 12.0 11.8 6.9  Duration
 Russell 1000 7.0 1.2 1.2 0.5 11.5 11.4 7.1  BC US Treasury 1-3 Yr 0.2 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9 2.5 
 Russell 2000 8.0 (1.5) (1.5) (9.8) 6.8 7.2 5.3  BC US Treasury Long (0.0) 8.2 8.2 2.8 6.1 9.7 8.0 
 Russell 3000 7.0 1.0 1.0 (0.3) 11.1 11.0 6.9  BC US Treasury 0.2 3.2 3.2 2.4 2.1 3.6 4.6 
 Russell Mid Cap 8.2 2.2 2.2 (4.0) 10.4 10.3 7.4  Issuer
Style Index  BC US MBS 0.3 2.0 2.0 2.4 2.7 3.2 4.8 
 Russell 1000 Growth 6.7 0.7 0.7 2.5 13.6 12.4 8.3  BC US Corp. High Yield 4.4 3.4 3.4 (3.7) 1.8 4.9 7.0 
 Russell 1000 Value 7.2 1.6 1.6 (1.5) 9.4 10.2 5.7  BC US Agency Interm 0.2 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.3 1.9 3.7 
 Russell 2000 Growth 7.7 (4.7) (4.7) (11.8) 7.9 7.7 6.0  BC US Credit 2.5 3.9 3.9 0.9 2.9 5.0 5.7 
 Russell 2000 Value 8.3 1.7 1.7 (7.7) 5.7 6.7 4.4 

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY OTHER

 Broad Index  Index
 MSCI EAFE 6.5 (3.0) (3.0) (8.3) 2.2 2.3 1.8  Bloomberg Commodity 3.8 0.4 0.4 (19.6) (16.9) (14.1) (6.2)
 MSCI AC World ex US 8.1 (0.4) (0.4) (9.2) 0.3 0.3 1.9  Wilshire US REIT 10.4 5.2 5.2 4.8 11.1 12.1 6.3 
 MSCI EM 13.2 5.7 5.7 (12.0) (4.5) (4.1) 3.0 Regional Index
 MSCI EAFE Small Cap 8.0 (0.6) (0.6) 3.2 7.3 5.6 3.4  JPM EMBI Global Div 3.3 5.0 5.0 4.2 3.4 6.2 7.2 
 Style Index  JPM GBI-EM Global Div 9.1 11.0 11.0 (1.6) (6.7) (2.0) 5.0 
 MSCI EAFE Growth 6.4 (2.1) (2.1) (3.7) 3.8 3.7 2.9 
 MSCI EAFE Value 6.6 (4.0) (4.0) (12.8) 0.6 0.8 0.6 
 Regional Index
 MSCI UK 4.8 (2.3) (2.3) (8.8) 0.2 2.2 2.0 
 MSCI Japan 4.7 (6.5) (6.5) (7.1) 3.8 4.0 (0.4)
 MSCI Euro 7.4 (2.5) (2.5) (9.9) 4.0 0.6 0.8 
 MSCI EM Asia 11.4 1.9 1.9 (12.6) (0.1) (0.7) 5.0 
 MSCI EM Latin American 20.4 19.1 19.1 (9.2) (14.8) (11.5) 1.5 



Notices & disclosures
Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This report or presentation is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and 
eligible institutional counterparties only and should not be relied upon by retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a 
recommendation to buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. The opinions and information expressed are current as 
of the date provided or cited only and are subject to change without notice. This information is obtained from sources deemed reliable, but there is no representation or 
warranty as to its accuracy, completeness or reliability. Verus expressly disclaims any and all implied warranties or originality, accuracy, completeness, non-
infringement, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.  This report or presentation cannot be used by the recipient for advertising or sales promotion 
purposes. 

The material may include estimates, outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.” Such statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as 
“believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,” or the negative of any of the foregoing  or comparable terminology, or by discussion of strategy, or 
assumptions such as economic conditions underlying other statements. No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking 
information will be achieved. Actual events may differ significantly from those presented.  Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Risk controls and 
models do not promise any level of performance or guarantee against loss of principal. 

“VERUS ADVISORY™ and VERUS INVESTORS™ and any associated designs are the respective trademarks of Verus Advisory, Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC.” Additional 
information is available upon request.  

March 2016
Capital Markets Update 14



San Mateo County 

Total Fund Characteristics 
@{ 
Sam CERA 

March 31,2016 

Total Fund Performance Asset Allocation 

8.00 

DOMESTIC EQUITY $1,047,839,914 30 ~% 
7.00 

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY $072,727,724 19.5% 
6.00 

PRIVATE EQUITY $222,451,721 
5.00 

~ 4.00 
RISK PARITY $260,832,521 

E a 3.00 ., HEDGE FUND $186,431,347 

a: 

2.00 
COMMODITES $76,389,315 

1.00 
FIXED INCOME $666,734,370 19.3% 

0.00 
REAL ESTATE $236,647,044 

-1.00 PRIVATE REAL ASSETS $15,787,697 0.5% 

-2.00 CASH $49,014,173 1.4% 
1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 10 Yr. lTD 

. TOTAL FUND - Gross 4.21 1.33 1.33 -1.29 -0.58 6.36 6.76 4.92 6.58 CLIFTON GROUP- CASH OVERLAY $20,080,486 0.6% 

. TOTAL FUND - Net 4.21 1.29 1.29 -1.43 -0.79 6.09 6.43 4.71 6.46 

. SAMCERA PLAN BENCHMARK 4.87 1.36 1.36 -1.48 -0.95 6.06 6.65 5.54 6.74 
TOTAL FUND $3.454,936,310 100.0% 

• Excess (Net) -0.65 -0.07 -O.Q7 0.05 0.16 0.04 -0.22 -0.83 -0.28 0.0% 20.0% 40.0% 600"/o 80.0% 100.0% 120.0% 

Rolling Month End Annual Returns 

10.00 

8.00 

6.00 

0..7-9 

4.00 

~ 2.00 
" 

0.64 --cr.T&--
ll ., 0.00 
a: 

-2.00 

-4.00 

-6.00 

-8.00 

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 

- EXCESS - TOTAL FUND - SAMCERA TOTAL PLAN POLICY BENCHMARK 

• Northern Trust 1 of 13 



San Mateo County 

~~~~~~ Composite Return Summary 

March 31,2016 

Return Comparison 

15.00 
11.17 11.66 

10.00 

4 .21 4.87 
5.00 

1.29 1.36 1.29 1.36 

0.00 

·1.43 · 1.48 ·0.79 ·0.95 
· 5.00 

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. lTD 

• San Mateo County ERA • Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10Yr. lTD 

San Mateo Cou nty ERA 3,454,936,310 4 .21 1.29 1.29 -1.43 -0.79 6.09 6.43 11.17 4.71 6.46 
Samcera Tot al Plan Benchmark 4.87 1.36 1.36 -1.48 -0.95 6.06 6.65 11.66 5.54 6.74 

Excess -0.65 -0.07 -0.07 0.05 0.16 0.04 -0.22 -0.49 -0.83 -0.28 

San Mateo Ex-Clifton Overlay 3,434,855,824 4 .16 1.11 1.11 -1.57 -0.96 5.94 6.39 11.09 4.57 6.39 

Samcera Tot al Plan Benchmark 4.87 1.36 1.36 -1.48 -0.95 6.06 6.65 11.66 5.54 6.74 

Excess -0.70 -0.25 -0.25 -0.10 -0.01 -0.12 -0.27 -0.58 -0.96 -0.36 

Tot al Equ ity 1,720,567,638 7.38 0.62 0.62 -3.29 -2.81 7.50 7.04 13.85 4.20 7.25 

Samcera Tot al Equity Benchmark 7.33 0.50 0.50 -3.02 -2.69 8.31 7.82 15.03 5.54 7.77 

Excess 0 .05 0.11 0.11 -0.28 -0.13 -0.81 -0.77 -1.19 -1.34 -0.52 

Tot al Fixed Income 666,734,370 2.50 1.77 1.77 -0.09 -0.65 1.66 4.23 7.28 5.10 5.56 

Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark 1.81 3.71 3.71 3.04 1.87 1.77 3.59 4.48 4.87 5.22 

Excess 0 .69 -1.93 -1.93 -3.13 -2.52 -0.11 0.64 2.79 0.23 0.34 

Tot al Risk Pa ri ty 260,832,521 3.29 5.61 5.61 -1.61 -5.62 1.23 5.21 5.26 

Samcera Risk Parit y Benchmark 4.59 1.89 1.89 1.42 0.82 7.79 8.29 8.21 
Excess -1.30 3.72 3.72 -3.03 -6.44 -6.56 -3.08 -2.95 

(19 Northern 'Ih1st 
2 of 13 



San Mateo County 

~~~~~~ Composite Return Summary 

March 31,2016 

Return Comparison 

15.00 
11.17 11.66 

10.00 

4 .21 4.87 
5.00 

1.29 1.36 1.29 1.36 

0.00 

·1.43 ·1.48 ·0.79 ·0.95 
· 5.00 

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. lTD 

• San Mat eo County ERA • Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10Yr. lTD 

Tot al Hedge Fund Com posite 186,431,347 -0.87 -1.63 -1.63 8.52 5.51 8.19 5.54 
Samcera LI BOR + 4% 0.36 1.09 1.09 3.19 4.25 4.20 4.22 

Excess -1.23 -2.72 -2.72 5.33 1.26 3.99 1.32 

Tot al Private Equity 222,451,721 -0.66 -0.07 -0.07 3.46 11.80 14.18 6.59 -30.51 

Samcera PE Benchma rk 7.29 1.72 1.72 1.75 2.65 14.36 14.26 16.17 

Excess -7.94 -1.79 -1.79 1.70 9.15 -0.18 -7.67 -46.68 

Total Commod ities 76,389,315 -0.64 -2.72 -2.72 -24.26 -22.42 -15.12 -10.37 

Bloomberg Commodity Index 3.82 0.42 0.42 -23.14 -19.56 -16.87 -14.34 

Excess -4.46 -3.14 -3.14 -1.12 -2.86 1.74 3.97 

Private Real Assets 15,787,697 -1.06 0.10 0.10 74.15 8.81 5.77 

Samcera CPI + 5% 0.00 1.05 1.05 2.68 5.00 4.44 

Excess -1.06 -0.96 -0.96 71.47 3.81 1.33 

Tot al Real Estate 236,647,044 0 .00 2.82 2.82 5.64 14.64 12.59 12.36 7.04 5.79 8.34 

Samcera Real Estate Benchmark 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.18 11.39 12.67 12.67 8.22 5.86 8.80 
Excess 0.00 2.82 2.82 -1.55 3.25 -0.08 -0.31 -1.18 -0.07 -0.46 

Total Cash 49,014,173 0 .03 0 .08 0.08 0.24 0.30 0.46 0.54 0.70 1.10 2.10 

Samcera Cash Benchmark 0 .05 0.07 0.07 0.12 0.12 0.07 0.08 0.10 1.15 1.96 
Excess -0.01 0.01 0.01 0.13 0.17 0.39 0.46 0.59 -0.04 0.14 

(19 Northern 'Ih1st 
3 of 13 



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Equity 1,720,567,638 7.38 0.62 0.62 ‐3.29 ‐2.81 7.50 7.04 13.85 4.20 7.25
Samcera Total Equity Benchmark 7.33 0.50 0.50 ‐3.02 ‐2.69 8.31 7.82 15.03 5.54 7.77
Excess 0.05 0.11 0.11 ‐0.28 ‐0.13 ‐0.81 ‐0.77 ‐1.19 ‐1.34 ‐0.52

Total Domestic Equity 1,047,839,914 6.99 0.45 0.45 ‐1.24 ‐0.88 10.46 9.80 16.45 5.49 8.00
Samcera Dom. Equity Benchmark 7.11 0.79 0.79 ‐1.62 ‐1.43 10.69 10.59 17.09 6.76 8.36
Excess ‐0.12 ‐0.35 ‐0.35 0.38 0.55 ‐0.22 ‐0.79 ‐0.63 ‐1.28 ‐0.36

Total Large Cap Equity 890,690,292 6.65 0.57 0.57 0.44 1.03 11.52 10.57 16.27 5.99 8.78
Russell 1000 6.97 1.17 1.17 0.39 0.50 11.52 11.35 17.15 7.06 9.17
Excess ‐0.31 ‐0.61 ‐0.61 0.05 0.52 ‐0.01 ‐0.78 ‐0.88 ‐1.07 ‐0.39

Barrow Hanley 104,746,480 6.18 ‐1.51 ‐1.51 ‐5.21 ‐2.81 10.06 9.96 ‐‐ ‐‐ 13.04
Russell 1000 Value 7.20 1.64 1.64 ‐1.65 ‐1.54 9.38 10.25 ‐‐ ‐‐ 13.17
Excess ‐1.02 ‐3.14 ‐3.14 ‐3.56 ‐1.27 0.67 ‐0.29 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐0.12

Blackrock S&P 500 Index Fund 561,918,463 6.79 1.36 1.36 1.58 1.91 11.88 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 13.00
S&P 500 6.78 1.35 1.35 1.50 1.78 11.82 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 12.95
Excess 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.08 0.13 0.06 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.06

Brown Advisory 109,830,625 6.79 ‐1.39 ‐1.39 0.76 1.47 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 10.59
Russell 1000 Growth 6.74 0.74 0.74 2.39 2.52 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 13.21
Excess 0.05 ‐2.13 ‐2.13 ‐1.63 ‐1.05 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐2.62

DE Shaw Commingled Fund 114,194,724 6.31 0.56 0.56 0.05 0.35 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.63
Russell 1000 6.97 1.17 1.17 0.39 0.50 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.68
Excess ‐0.66 ‐0.62 ‐0.62 ‐0.34 ‐0.15 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.95

Total Small Cap Equity 157,149,622 8.92 ‐0.23 ‐0.23 ‐8.84 ‐9.41 5.93 7.03 17.43 3.44 5.80
Russell 2000 7.98 ‐1.52 ‐1.52 ‐10.14 ‐9.76 6.84 7.20 16.42 5.26 6.86
Excess 0.93 1.29 1.29 1.30 0.35 ‐0.91 ‐0.17 1.01 ‐1.82 ‐1.06

4 of 13



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Boston Company 80,493,752 8.52 4.13 4.13 ‐4.20 ‐3.73 6.91 8.20 ‐‐ ‐‐ 12.36
Russell 2000 Value 8.29 1.70 1.70 ‐6.60 ‐7.72 5.73 6.67 ‐‐ ‐‐ 11.68
Excess 0.24 2.43 2.43 2.40 3.99 1.18 1.54 ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.68

Chartwell Investment Mgmt 76,655,870 9.33 ‐4.43 ‐4.43 ‐13.26 ‐14.70 4.94 6.75 16.96 5.07 6.86
Russell 2000 Growth 7.66 ‐4.68 ‐4.68 ‐13.55 ‐11.84 7.91 7.70 17.23 6.00 7.25
Excess 1.67 0.26 0.26 0.29 ‐2.86 ‐2.97 ‐0.95 ‐0.28 ‐0.93 ‐0.39

Total International Equity 672,727,724 8.01 0.89 0.89 ‐6.65 ‐5.94 1.96 1.53 8.42 1.69 5.01
MSCI ACW ex US‐IMI 8.21 ‐0.23 ‐0.23 ‐8.99 ‐8.08 0.76 0.58 9.75 2.19 4.43
Excess ‐0.19 1.12 1.12 2.35 2.14 1.20 0.94 ‐1.33 ‐0.50 0.58

Total Developed Markets Equity 601,042,324 7.51 0.08 0.08 ‐6.41 ‐5.71 2.70 2.10 8.91 2.20 3.72
MSCI ACW ex US‐IMI 8.21 ‐0.23 ‐0.23 ‐8.99 ‐8.08 0.76 0.58 9.75 2.19 4.12
Excess ‐0.69 0.31 0.31 2.58 2.37 1.94 1.51 ‐0.84 0.01 ‐0.39

Baillie Gifford 203,704,253 8.08 0.31 0.31 ‐4.77 ‐4.29 4.11 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 6.60
MSCI ACWI ex US Growth 7.64 ‐0.23 ‐0.23 ‐6.45 ‐5.75 2.28 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.26
Excess 0.44 0.54 0.54 1.68 1.47 1.83 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.34

Blackrock EAFE Index Fund 125,939,642 6.59 ‐2.91 ‐2.91 ‐8.73 ‐8.03 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐3.64
MSCI EAFE ND 6.51 ‐3.01 ‐3.01 ‐8.83 ‐8.27 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐3.88
Excess 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.10 0.24 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.23

Mondrian Investment Partners 202,181,119 7.14 1.61 1.61 ‐7.34 ‐7.27 1.83 2.23 8.98 2.71 4.79
MSCI ACWI ex US Value 8.79 ‐0.29 ‐0.29 ‐12.46 ‐11.83 ‐0.82 ‐0.48 8.99 1.53 4.05
Excess ‐1.65 1.91 1.91 5.12 4.56 2.65 2.71 ‐0.02 1.17 0.74

FIAM Intl Small Cap 69,217,310 8.72 0.88 0.88 ‐3.84 ‐0.36 3.50 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.32
MSCI ACWI Small Cap ex US Net 8.68 0.68 0.68 ‐4.63 ‐0.60 3.67 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.33
Excess 0.04 0.20 0.20 0.79 0.24 ‐0.17 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐0.01

5 of 13



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Emerging Markets Equity 71,685,400 12.47 8.45 8.45 ‐9.04 ‐8.32 ‐4.02 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐2.13
MSCI EM ND (USD) 13.23 5.71 5.71 ‐12.63 ‐12.03 ‐4.50 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐2.93
Excess ‐0.77 2.73 2.73 3.60 3.70 0.49 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.79

EV Parametric EM 71,685,400 12.47 8.45 8.45 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐3.21
MSCI Emerging Markets GD 13.26 5.75 5.75 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐5.95
Excess ‐0.79 2.69 2.69 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.74

Total Fixed Income 666,734,370 2.50 1.77 1.77 ‐0.09 ‐0.65 1.66 4.23 7.28 5.10 5.56
Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark 1.81 3.71 3.71 3.04 1.87 1.77 3.59 4.48 4.87 5.22
Excess 0.69 ‐1.93 ‐1.93 ‐3.13 ‐2.52 ‐0.11 0.64 2.79 0.23 0.34

Total Domestic Fixed Income 567,828,754 2.23 2.06 2.06 0.68 ‐0.01 2.06 4.35 7.33 5.20 5.69
Samcera US Fixed Inc Benchmark 1.66 3.34 3.34 2.54 1.39 1.83 3.91 4.70 5.02 5.42
Excess 0.57 ‐1.28 ‐1.28 ‐1.87 ‐1.40 0.24 0.44 2.64 0.19 0.27

Total Core Fixed Income 341,682,728 2.27 2.07 2.07 2.15 0.41 2.54 4.35 7.03 5.00 5.56
BC U.S. Aggregate 0.92 3.03 3.03 3.71 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.52 4.90 5.35
Excess 1.35 ‐0.96 ‐0.96 ‐1.56 ‐1.55 0.04 0.57 2.51 0.10 0.22

FIAM Core Bond 240,572,666 1.77 3.25 3.25 3.29 1.59 2.65 4.23 6.46 5.23 5.08
BC U.S. Aggregate 0.92 3.03 3.03 3.71 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.52 4.90 4.75
Excess 0.85 0.22 0.22 ‐0.42 ‐0.37 0.15 0.45 1.94 0.33 0.34

Western Total Return 101,110,062 3.48 ‐0.64 ‐0.64 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐1.37
BC U.S. Aggregate 0.92 3.03 3.03 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.99
Excess 2.56 ‐3.67 ‐3.67 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐4.36

Brown Brothers Harriman 69,431,137 1.68 3.37 3.37 1.17 1.20 ‐2.09 2.41 ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.74
BC US Tips 1.80 4.46 4.46 2.60 1.51 ‐0.71 3.02 ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.34
Excess ‐0.12 ‐1.09 ‐1.09 ‐1.43 ‐0.31 ‐1.38 ‐0.61 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐0.60

6 of 13



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Opportunistic Credit 156,714,889 2.40 1.50 1.50 ‐2.45 ‐1.36 4.14 6.31 ‐‐ ‐‐ 9.04
BC BA Intermediate HY Index 2.94 3.43 3.43 0.35 0.20 3.43 5.79 ‐‐ ‐‐ 7.55
Excess ‐0.54 ‐1.93 ‐1.93 ‐2.80 ‐1.57 0.71 0.52 ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.49

AG Opportunistic Whole Loan 24,133,012 ‐0.62 0.39 0.39 1.89 3.15 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐0.16
BC BA Intermediate HY Index 2.94 3.43 3.43 0.35 0.20 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.89
Excess ‐3.56 ‐3.04 ‐3.04 1.54 2.95 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐2.05

Angelo Gordon 34,522,994 ‐1.02 ‐1.02 ‐1.02 2.37 5.13 10.27 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 9.39
BC BA Intermediate HY Index 2.94 3.43 3.43 0.35 0.20 3.43 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.01
Excess ‐3.96 ‐4.45 ‐4.45 2.02 4.92 6.85 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.38

Beach Point Select Fund 39,273,351 2.60 1.75 1.75 ‐0.17 2.08 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.65
BC BA Intermediate HY Index 2.94 3.43 3.43 0.35 0.20 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.29
Excess ‐0.34 ‐1.68 ‐1.68 ‐0.52 1.88 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.36

Brigade Cap Mngmt 58,785,532 5.79 3.30 3.30 ‐8.89 ‐9.39 ‐0.79 3.39 ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.63
BC BA Intermediate HY Index 2.94 3.43 3.43 0.35 0.20 3.43 5.79 ‐‐ ‐‐ 6.58
Excess 2.84 ‐0.13 ‐0.13 ‐9.24 ‐9.59 ‐4.22 ‐2.40 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐1.95

Total Global Fixed Income 98,905,616 4.03 0.12 0.12 ‐4.45 ‐4.34 ‐0.30 3.32 ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.80
Samcera Global Fixed Benchmark 2.89 5.88 5.88 5.45 4.36 0.87 1.90 ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.07
Excess 1.14 ‐5.75 ‐5.75 ‐9.91 ‐8.70 ‐1.17 1.42 ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.73

Franklin Templeton 98,905,616 4.03 0.12 0.12 ‐4.45 ‐4.34 ‐0.74 3.04 ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.54
BC Multiverse Index 2.89 5.88 5.88 5.45 4.36 0.87 1.90 ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.07
Excess 1.14 ‐5.75 ‐5.75 ‐9.91 ‐8.70 ‐1.62 1.14 ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.47

Total Risk Parity 260,832,521 3.29 5.61 5.61 ‐1.61 ‐5.62 1.23 5.21 ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.26
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 4.59 1.89 1.89 1.42 0.82 7.79 8.29 ‐‐ ‐‐ 8.21
Excess ‐1.30 3.72 3.72 ‐3.03 ‐6.44 ‐6.56 ‐3.08 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐2.95

7 of 13



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

AQR Global Risk III 120,368,197 2.33 2.74 2.74 ‐7.08 ‐9.61 ‐1.82 3.30 ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.38
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 4.59 1.89 1.89 1.42 0.82 7.79 8.29 ‐‐ ‐‐ 8.21
Excess ‐2.26 0.85 0.85 ‐8.50 ‐10.43 ‐9.60 ‐4.99 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐4.83

Panagora 140,464,324 4.13 8.20 8.20 3.61 ‐1.92 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.47
Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 4.59 1.89 1.89 1.42 0.82 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.77
Excess ‐0.47 6.31 6.31 2.20 ‐2.73 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 0.70

Total Real Estate 236,647,044 0.00 2.82 2.82 5.64 14.64 12.59 12.36 7.04 5.79 8.34
Samcera Real Estate Benchmark 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.18 11.39 12.67 12.67 8.22 5.86 8.80
Excess 0.00 2.82 2.82 ‐1.55 3.25 ‐0.08 ‐0.31 ‐1.18 ‐0.07 ‐0.46

Invesco Core Real Estate 228,498,598 0.00 2.42 2.42 5.37 14.34 12.50 12.27 7.01 5.76 7.66
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.18 11.39 12.67 12.67 8.22 5.86 7.49
Excess 0.00 2.42 2.42 ‐1.81 2.96 ‐0.17 ‐0.40 ‐1.21 ‐0.10 0.17

Invesco US Val IV 8,148,446 0.00 16.27 16.27 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 11.06
Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.43
Excess 0.00 16.27 16.27 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 7.63

Total Alternatives 501,060,079 ‐0.75 ‐1.05 ‐1.05 ‐0.58 1.90 2.80 4.38 ‐11.25 ‐7.27 ‐4.17
Samcera Alternatives Benchmark 2.97 1.23 1.23 ‐2.72 ‐0.94 5.24 6.11 11.44 5.99 6.84
Excess ‐3.71 ‐2.28 ‐2.28 2.14 2.83 ‐2.44 ‐1.74 ‐22.69 ‐13.26 ‐11.01

Total Private Equity 222,451,721 ‐0.66 ‐0.07 ‐0.07 3.46 11.80 14.18 6.59 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐30.51
Samcera PE Benchmark 7.29 1.72 1.72 1.75 2.65 14.36 14.26 ‐‐ ‐‐ 16.17
Excess ‐7.94 ‐1.79 ‐1.79 1.70 9.15 ‐0.18 ‐7.67 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐46.68

Private Real Assets 15,787,697 ‐1.06 0.10 0.10 74.15 8.81 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.77
Samcera CPI + 5% 0.00 1.05 1.05 2.68 5.00 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.44
Excess ‐1.06 ‐0.96 ‐0.96 71.47 3.81 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.33

8 of 13



San Mateo County
Manager Return Summary

March 31,2016

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Hedge Fund Composite 186,431,347 ‐0.87 ‐1.63 ‐1.63 8.52 5.51 8.19 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.54
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.36 1.09 1.09 3.19 4.25 4.20 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.22
Excess ‐1.23 ‐2.72 ‐2.72 5.33 1.26 3.99 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.32

AQR Delta XN 152,708,708 ‐0.94 ‐1.26 ‐1.26 9.33 6.29 8.46 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 5.70
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.36 1.09 1.09 3.19 4.25 4.20 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 4.22
Excess ‐1.31 ‐2.36 ‐2.36 6.14 2.04 4.26 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 1.48

Standard Life GARS 33,722,639 ‐0.52 ‐3.24 ‐3.24 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐3.65
Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.36 1.09 1.09 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 2.14
Excess ‐0.88 ‐4.33 ‐4.33 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐5.79

Total Commodities 76,389,315 ‐0.64 ‐2.72 ‐2.72 ‐24.26 ‐22.42 ‐15.12 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐10.37
Bloomberg Commodity Index 3.82 0.42 0.42 ‐23.14 ‐19.56 ‐16.87 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐14.34
Excess ‐4.46 ‐3.14 ‐3.14 ‐1.12 ‐2.86 1.74 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 3.97

Total Cash 49,014,173 0.03 0.08 0.08 0.24 0.30 0.46 0.54 0.70 1.10 2.10
Samcera Cash Benchmark 0.05 0.07 0.07 0.12 0.12 0.07 0.08 0.10 1.15 1.96
Excess ‐0.01 0.01 0.01 0.13 0.17 0.39 0.46 0.59 ‐0.04 0.14

SamCera General Account 35,886,561 0.04 0.11 0.11 0.29 0.36 0.20 0.24 0.24 1.37 2.10

County Treasury Pool 13,127,611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.55 0.73 0.96 2.82

San Mateo County ERA 3,454,936,310 4.21 1.29 1.29 ‐1.43 ‐0.79 6.09 6.43 11.17 4.71 6.46
Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 4.87 1.36 1.36 ‐1.48 ‐0.95 6.06 6.65 11.66 5.54 6.74
Excess ‐0.65 ‐0.07 ‐0.07 0.05 0.16 0.04 ‐0.22 ‐0.49 ‐0.83 ‐0.28

9 of 13



San Mateo County 

Accounting Change in Market Value Details 

March 31,2016 

4,000 

3,500 

3,000 

"' 2,500 
1:: 
0 = 2,000 
~ 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

Record of Asset Growth 

Three Months 

TOTAL FUND 

Beginning Market Va I ue 3,361,515,085 

Contributions 95,648,960 

Withdrawa Is -47,567,582 

Income Received 10,430,275 

Ga in/Loss 34,999,886 

Ending Market Va I ue 3,454,936,310 

Net Asset Values Over Time ($000} 

@{ 
Sam CERA 

One Year 

3,451,477,612 

311,448,604 

-289,135,495 

38,684,693 

-58,710,931 

3,454,936,310 

3,297 3,451 3,440 3,292 3,362 3,455 

Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 M ar- 13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Ma r-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 

• Northern Trust 10 of 13 



San Mateo County 

Asset Allocation 

March 31,2016 

30.0 

25.8 

25.0 

20.0 

15.0 

10.0 

5.0 

0.0 
Total large Cap 

Equity 

• Northern Trust 

@{ 
Sam CERA 

Actual vs Target Weights 

Total Small Cap Total International Total Fixed Income Total Private Equity Total Risk Parity Total Hedge Fund Total Commodities Total Real Estate Private Real Assets 
Equity Equity Composite 

• Actua l • Target 

Min Actual Target Deviation Max 

Total Large Cap Equity 22 .0 25 .8 24.0 1.8 26.0 
Total Small Cap Equity 2.0 4.5 4 .0 0.5 6.0 
Total International Equity 18.0 19.5 20.0 -0.5 22.0 
Total Fixed Income 18.0 19.3 20.0 -0.7 22.0 
Total Private Equity 5.0 6 .4 7.0 -0.6 9.0 
Total Risk Parity 6.0 7.5 8.0 -0.5 10.0 
Total Hedge Fund Composite 3.0 5.4 5.0 0.4 7.0 
Total Commodities 1.0 2 .2 3 .0 -0.8 5.0 
Total Real Estate 5.0 6 .8 7.0 -0.2 9.0 
Private Real Assets 0.0 0.5 2.0 -1.5 4.0 

11 of 13 



San Mateo County 

Asset Allocation Over Time 

March 31,2016 

90 

80 

70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

6/30/2015 

• Total Cash 

• Tot al Hedge Fund Composite 

• Northern Trust 

@{ 
Sam CERA 

Asset Allocation over Time 

9/30/2015 12/31/2015 3/ 31/2016 

• Total Commodit ies • Total Equit y • Total Fixed Income 

• Total Privat e Equity • Total Real Est at e • Tot al Risk Parity 

12 of 13 



San Mateo County 

Sub-Asset Class Allocation Over Time 

March 31,2016 

90 

80 

70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

6/30/2015 

• Tota l Cash 

• Tota l Large Cap Equity 

Tota l Small Cap Equity 

• Northern Trust 

@{ 
Sam CERA 

Sub-Asset Class Allocation Over Time 

9/30/2015 12/31/2015 3/31/2016 

• Tota l Commodities • Total Fixed Income • Total Hedge Fu nd Composite 

• Tota l Private Equity • Total Rea l Estate • Total Risk Parity 

• Tot al Developed Markets Equity • Total Emerging Markets Equity 

13 of 13 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

April 26, 2016 Agenda Item 6.2 

TO: Board of Retirement 

~ktp 
FROM: Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

SUBJECT: Educational Presentation on Mining Opportunities in Private Real Assets 

Staff Recommendation 
Review the attached presentation materials from Verus regarding an update on the current 
mining sector and resulting potential investment opportunities. 

Background 
John Nicolini from Verus will provide a mining overview, and also discuss today's opportunities 
and risks in this space. 

Attachment 
Verus Mining Education Presentation 

Page 1 of 1 



MARCH 2016

Mining Education Presentation

San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association

PERSPECTIVES 
THAT DRIVE 

ENTERPRISE 
SUCCESS 



VERUSINVESTMENTS.COM

SEATTLE  206-622-3700
LOS ANGELES  310-297-1777

SAN FRANCISCO  415-362-3484

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward-looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment 
Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 

Table of Contents

2

Mining Overview 3

Today’s Opportunity 10

Risks in the Industry 14



Mining Overview

3



Mining Basics

4

— Chemical Elements (i.e. gold, silver, iron, etc.) bond together to form minerals. 

— When minerals concentrate in sufficient amounts, they form mineral deposits or ore deposits.  

— Several factors will determine whether a mineral deposit is economic to mine.

1. Grade – Concentration of a mineral within an ore body, usually expressed as a percentage. 
(ex. A copper deposit with a 2% grade contains 20 tons of copper per 1000 tons of ore rock)  

2. Tonnage – Total amount of metal that can be extracted from an ore deposit

3. Size/Shape – Refers to the total size of the deposit and the geometric shape of the ore 
deposit.  Inconsistent ore shapes will usually result in higher waste ore that must be moved 
to mine the ore body

4. Location – An ore body’s location will determine whether surface or subsurface mining is 
most appropriate



Categories of Minerals

5

l 
IIDI'I a-. riotilm, .......... _ 

illniun 

Aaolpace. 
CXI'I*'dl)fl, 

ela*oric, 
8"1~, 

~ 
aelm:ab)g 

MINERALS 

~ 
lead, rnag'laiun\ 

Non-mataUic 
mi'lerals 

cme,txlrian. Nii'IIIPflt Yl~ . ...... _, ..... 

ndal.zinc 

END USE 

I 



Mining Project Life Cycle

Source: Denham

6

Mining private 

equity has 

traditionally 

invested in the de-

risking/resource 

expansion stage

Funds are 

beginning to invest 

in later stage cycles 

where projects are 

de-risked but 

require large 

capital outlays 



Commodity Cycle

Source: Wood Mackenzie and Greenstone Capital

7

— Around 2002, commodity prices entered a “super cycle” bull market that lasted up the Global Financial 
Crises in 2008

— A number factors contributed to the price action; demand from China’s economic expansion, declining ore 
grades and a lag in supply response as projects take years to move into production

— In response to higher prices, large capex spending in the sector led to a robust supply response

— Slowing demand in China and a supply glut has sent prices falling again

ORE GRADES IN MOST METALS ARE DECLINING RAPIDLY COPPER’S PRICE WENT FROM $0.68 IN ‘02 TO OVER $4 BY ‘11



Ways to Invest in Mining

8

• Invest in publicly-listed shares of mining companies (mostly traded on the 
Toronto, Australian and London exchanges) 

• Invest in private equity mining funds which own shares in listed and private 
mining companies

Equity

• Project Finance (Taurus)

• High Yield/Mezzanine Debt

• Royalty streams are ongoing economic interest in the production of a mine   

• Streaming is an agreement to purchase a fixed amount of a mines 
production at a set price

Royalty/Streaming

— Investors have multiple ways to invest directly or indirectly in mining projects

— Equity offers the highest return potential but carries the most risk

— SamCERA has exposure to mining debt and royalties through Taurus Mining Finance



Historical Returns in Private Mining

Source: Preqin

9

Private Equity Mining Vintage Year Net Multiple Net IRR

Fund A 1998 2.6x 19.0%

Fund B 2000 6.4x 48.0%

Fund C 2002 3.96x 30.1%

Fund D 2003 2.1x 23.0%

Fund E 2006 1.9x 21.0%

Fund F 2007 1.4x 11.0%

Fund G 2007 1.09x 3.3%

Fund H 2007 0.75x (10.20%)

— The mining private equity space is quite small relative to other industries so we don’t have a robust dataset.  

— Returns from funds in vintage years before 2005 were exceptional.  The commodity cycle turned over in 
2011 which impacted all funds post 2005 vintage.  

— Some similarities to venture capital from a risk/return perspective



Today’s Opportunity

10



Valuations in the Mining Sector

Source: Greenstone

11

— The mining sector entered a bear market cycle in 2011 as falling commodity prices dragged down equity 
performance

— Junior mining companies were especially hit hard, losing some 80-90% of their value

— Most junior mining companies have little access to capital in equity or debt markets

— Large cap mining companies are faced with significant capex reductions, forced asset sales and balance sheet 
restructurings.  



Private Capital’s Opportunity

Source: Greenstone

12

— Private capital has an opportunity to step into the void left behind by a closed-off equity and debt market

— Struggling mining companies are being forced to sale assets to shore-up balance sheets or bring in capital 
partners to fund additional capex



Signs of a Reversal in Commodity Prices

Source: Wood Mackenzie and Morgan Stanley

13

— Capex by mining companies has been declining over the last several years following the commodity super 
cycle

— Metal supplies are still in surplus today which is reflected in falling prices

— Prices will have to rise to encourage companies to resume capex spending on future projects

COPPER IS PROJECTED TO BE IN A SUPPLY DEFICIT BY 2018DECLINING CAPEX SINCE 2012



What We Look For

Source: Wood Mackenzie and Morgan Stanley

14

— Verus and Staff are looking at opportunities in both equity and debt in private mining 
strategies

— We plan to focus on investment managers with mining operating experience as 
opposed to traditional finance backgrounds

— There are a few groups in the market with debt-like strategies, Taurus being one

— Despite the opportunity in the mining sector, finding a compelling manager is the first 
priority



Risks in the Industry

15



China

Source: Goldman Sachs

16

— China has been driving much of the growth in demand for industrial and base metals

— A slow down in economic activity and construction in China will have a larger impact on metals relative to 
other commodities

CHINA’S INFLUENCE ON DEMAND FOR METALS LIKE IRON ORE, NICKEL AND COPPER ARE SIGNIFICANT



Lower Prices for Longer

Source: Wood Mackenzie

17

— Short to mid-term downward pressure on commodity prices 

— Surplus supply exists in most industrial and base metals today

— Gold trades more on macroeconomic pressures and fear; less supply/demand driven 

— Investment managers could invest in an unattractive commodity

COPPER PRICES ARE TRADING ABOVE THE 90TH PERCENTILE COST CURVEHUGE SURPLUS IN ALUMINUM AND NICKEL



ESG

18

 Environmental

 Mining will have an environmental impact.  Mining is a resources intensive industry that 
requires large amounts of energy and water to operate.  

 As ore grades decline, projects must move more waste and process more ore to obtain the 
same amount of metal that higher grade ores held. 

 Mining accidents can result in the loss of life, project delays, fines and environmental 
disasters.

 Past mistakes in the sector have led to standardized techniques to help mitigate many of the 
environmental issues in mining.  

 Social

 Working with local community groups to ensure that the local population supports a project.

 Working with labor groups to avoid project delays and addressing mining safety issues.

 Governance

 As projects increasingly move to developing countries, government stability and corruption 
become a larger issue. 

 Good corporate governance doesn’t stop at the Fund Management level.  Any partners in a 
project must also adhere to the same level of corporate governance.  



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

April 26, 2016 Agenda Item 7.1 

TO: Board of Retirement 

' 

FROM: Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer ~~J- fL( 

SUBJECT: Introduction of SamCERA's Budget for the Fiscal~ear 2016-17 

Background 
The preparation of SamCERA's budgetforthe f iscal year (FY} 2016-17 is underway. The discussion 
presented below is for informational purposes only. No action is required. 

Discussion 
SamCERA's budget consists of three components: 

1. Administrative Budget - is for salaries and benefits, services and supplies, and other 
charges. 

2. Technology Budget - is for computers, software, maintenance, and information 
technology projects. 

3. Professional Budget - is for professional services provided by investment managers, 
investment consultants, the global custodian, and the actuary. 

The budget for FY 2016-17 is likely to be $3.5 million, or 11%, higher than that of FY 2015-16. 

• The administrative budget is expected to increase by $0.2 million, or 4%. The increase 
results mainly from a 3% negotiated salary increase in October 2016. 

• The technology budget is expected to grow by $0.7 million, or 12%. Most of this increase 
will be used to supplement the original expenses committed to hosting, developing, 
testing, and implementing the new Pension Administration Software System. 

• The professional budget is expected to surge by $2.6 million, or 13%. The increase 
primarily comes f rom the management decision to include the performance fee estimates 
in the professional budget starting from FY 2016-17. The performance fee is a payment 
made to a fund manager generating positive returns, which is generally calculated as a 
percentage of investment profits. 

Staff will present SamCERA's FY 2016-17 budget with fu rther details for the Board's approval in 

May 2016. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

April 26, 2016 Agenda Item 7.2 

TO: BoardofRetirement 6-J {~ 
FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Approval of SACRS Voting Delegates for the SACRS Spring 2016 Business Meeting 
and General Direction for Voting. 

Recommendation 

Designate Sandie Arnott as SamCERA's Voting Delegate; Alma Salas, First Delegate Alternate; and 
Scott Hood, Second Delegate Alternate, to cast votes for SamCERA at the SACRS May 13, 2016 
business meeting and provide general direction for voting. 

Background 

Prior to each SACRS conference, the Board selects a delegate and two alternates to serve as 
voting delegate for SamCERA. The delegate can be either a member of the Board member or 
staff. The Board normally selects the highest-ranking Board member who will attend the business 
meeting. For the May SACRS business meeting, that member is Sandie Arnott with Alma Salas 
next in order. We typically recommend the CEO be the final alternate. 

Discussion 
The Board should give the Voting Delegates general direction on the both matters listed below: 

2016-17 Officers for SACRS Board of Directors 
As reflected in the attached memo from Ray McCray, t he SACRS Nominating Committee Chair, the 
Committee's recommended ballot for 2016-17 SACRS Board of Directors officers is : 
President Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA 
Vice President Gabe Rodrigues, Contra Costa CERA 
Treasurer Larry Walker, San Bernardino CERA 
Secretary Art Goulet, Ventura CERA 

legislative Proposals 
Because the SACRS legislative proposals were not ready in time for consideration at the Fall 
business meeting, the Committee requested that each Board give feedback on its interest in 
SACRS seeking the legislation. Per the Board's direction given at its December meeting, staff 
provided that feedback. The vote on the proposals will occur at the May meeting. 

Commencing on page 19 of the May 13, 2016 SACRS business meeting packet, are the two 
proposals that authorize: (1) the Board of Retirement to unilaterally determine to become an 
independent special district (AB 1583); and (2) the collection of a certain member information 
from the employer rather than member (AB 2376). At the meeting, staff will review the two 
legislative proposals with the Board and address any questions. 

Attachments 

Memo from Ray McCray, SACRS Nominating Committee Chair, 
SACRS Business Meeting Packet 



 

SACRS MEMORANDUM 

 

March 31, 2016 

Attn: SACRS Administrators  

From:  Raymond McCray, SACRS Nominating Committee Chair 

 SACRS Nominating Committee 

Re: SACRS Board of Directors Elections 2016-2017 – Final Ballot  
 

Per SACRS Bylaws, Article VI ~ Section 2 – Election, Qualification and Term of Office 
 

“The officers of SACRS shall be regular members of SACRS.  The officers shall be 

elected by majority vote of the quorum of delegates and alternate delegates present at the 

first meeting in each calendar year and shall hold office for one (1) year and until a 

successor is elected.” 

 

Per SACRS Bylaws, Article VI ~ Section 4 - Officer Elections 
 

“…The Board of any regular member County Retirement System may submit write-in 

candidates to be included in the Nominating Committee’s final ballot provided the 

Nominating Committee receives those write-in candidates prior to March 25th. 

The Nominating Committee will report a final ballot to each regular member County 

Retirement System prior to April 1. 

 

The Administrator of each regular member County Retirement System shall be 

responsible for communicating the Nominating Committee’s recommended ballot and 

final ballot to each trustee and placing the election of SACRS Officers on his or her 

Board agenda.  The Administrator shall acknowledge the completion of these 

responsibilities with the Nominating Committee…” 
 

Below is the final ballot for the upcoming election.  As in the past, a voting delegate may 

entertain a motion to vote by individual officer positions or by complete ballot.  Please be 

sure to authorize your voting delegate to vote either way. 
 

The elections will be held at the upcoming SACRS Spring Conference May 10-13, 2016 

at the Westin South Coast Plaza Hotel in Costa Mesa.  Elections will be held during the 

Annual Business meeting on Friday, May 13, 2016. 
 

Please distribute the ballot to all standing/eligible board members for approval and 

authorization for your voting delegate.  As stated above, Administrators are required to 

send acknowledgement of completion to our office at sulema@sacrs.org.  

 

Continued 

 

mailto:sulema@sacrs.org


 

SACRS Nominating committee recommended 2016-2017 final ballot: 

 

 President  Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA 

 Vice President  Gabe Rodrigues, Contra Costa CERA 

 Treasurer  Larry Walker, San Bernardino CERA 

 Secretary  Art Goulet, Ventura CERA 

 

If you have any questions or require assistance, please contact me directly at 209-468-

2163 or raym1@sbcglobal.net.  Thank you for your prompt attention to this timely 

matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Raymond McCray 

 

Raymond McCray, San Joaquin County 

SACRS Nominating Committee Chair 

 

 

CC:  SACRS Board of Directors 

        SACRS Nominating Committee Members 

 Sulema H. Peterson, SACRS Administrator  

 

RMC:shp 

 

mailto:raym1@sbcglobal.net


~g~· ... ~,of County Retirement Systems----------------------
SI•D • Tnnltll * Ajfltle111 • S•utu 

A C.l&~r,.a. J'lliaft Pralil C•11N"•t5o• 

SA CRS Parliamentarian - Lance Kjelgaard 

SACRS Business Meeting Agenda 
Friday, May 13,2015 

10:00 AM- Upon Adjournment 
Westin South Coast Plaza Hotel 

Costa Mesa, CA 

Sergeant at Arms - Derwin Brown, Los Angeles CERA 

I. SACRS System Roll Call 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary 

2. Secretary's Report - Receive and File 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary 

A. November 2015 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes 

3. Treasurer's Report - Receive and File 
Dan McAllister, SACRS Treasurer 

A. July 2015 - February 2016 

4. SACRS President Report- No Action 
Yves Chery, SACRS President 

5. SACRS Audit Report - No Action 
Steve Delaney, SACRS Audit Committee Chair 

A. Update on 2014-2015 Audit 

6. SACRS Legislative Committee Update- Vote 
Richard Stensrud, SACRS Legislative Committee Chair 

A. AB 1853 (Cooper)- 1937 Act Operating Authority 
B. AB 2376 (Assembly PERS Committee) - SDCERA Proposal 
C. 2016 SACRS Legislation Update 
D. Jim Lites, SACRS Consultant Update 

CERL & UC Berkeley (No Action) 

7. SACRS Bylaws Committee Report- Vote 
Vivian Gray, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 

A. Amendment to Article IV - Delegates 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441 -1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



')U!@i]!ii]1fuo£ County Retirement Systems ---------------------- -
li•D * Tnnt"' • A./fliU.fiJ • .~tru .. u 

A c.ur_.,,.u S" rra"• Carpctt"aCkln 

8. SACRS Nomination Committee - 2016·2017 SACRS BOD Elections- Vote 
Ray McCray, Nomination Committee Chair 

A. SACRS BOD 2016 - 2017 Ballot 

9. SACRS Committee & Breakout Reports: 

Committee Chair Breakout Reports Representative 
Affiliate Michael Bowman Administrators Linda Webb 
Audit Steve Delaney Attorneys David Lantzer 
Bylaws Vivian Gray Disability Cristal Rodriguez 
Education Christie Porter Internal Auditors Harsh Jadhav 
Legislative Richard Stensrud Investment Officers Steve Marsh 
Nomination Ray McCray Ops & Benefits Jeannine Smart 
Program Gabe Rodrigues Safety Trustees Tracy Towner 

General Trustees Vivian Gray 

Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, 
November 11, 2016, at the Renaissance Esmeralda Resort & Spa, Indian Wells, CA. 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441·1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMP LOYEES RET I REMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEO 



~~m'ii!lh..jof County Retirement Systems --------------------------
51•8 * T,., • ., • ,tJ!;ll.l~ • s.,."'., 

A C.Urttrtlla So,. Prolil C•rporat~n 

1. SACRS System Roll Call 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary 

No printed materials for this item 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEO 



of County Retirement Systems --------------------------
51«1/* Tnlltft * A/f1tltdll • Sunn 

A c...urvtftUI N~ l"ruftl Coi'J'D'Bdun 

2. Secretary's Report- Receive and File 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary 

A. November 2015 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441·1850 I F (916) 441·6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER CO UN T Y EMPLOYEES RETIR EMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CO DE 31450 ET SEQ 



of County Retirement Systems-----------------------
Sttl/1 * Tn11111 * A.lflll•llt * .her~n 

A C.hf" '""- NCI~~t Pruft1 Cmporal"-e 

SACRS Business Meeting Minutes 
Friday, November 20,2015 

10:00 a.m. 
San Diego Marriott Marquis, San Diego, CA 

SACRS Parliamentarian- Lance Kjeldgaard 
Sergeant at Arms - Derwin Brown, Los Angeles CERA 
Meeting called to order at 10:14 am 
Board members present: 
Yves Chery, Gabe Rodrigues, Art Goulet, Dan McAllister, and Michael Bowman 
(Affiliate Advisor to the Board) 
Absent: Ray McCray 

I. County Roll Call 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary 
10:14 am- 18 Systems present, Contra Costa and Santa Barbara absent 
10:30 am - 17 Systems present - Marin delegate left mtg 
10:45 am - 16 Systems present - San Diego delegate left mtg 

Question: Chris Prevatt, OCERS, asked if the parliamentarian could suspend the rules of the 
voting proxy at conference. Parliamentarian clarified that the rules could not be suspended due to 
SACRS Bylaws. 

At this time a request to take up item 6 out of order from the floor. President Yves Chery 
recognized Maya Gladstern, Marin CERA to ask a question of the body. 

Motion: A motion to move to Item 6 Legislative Update was submitted by Marin CERA. 
2nd: San Diego 
Yes: 18 
No: 0 
Absent: Contra Costa, Santa Barbara 
Motion Passes: 18-0-2 

6. SACRS Legislative Proposals 2016- Action Item 
Richard Stensrud, Legislative Committee Chair 

Legislation supported by SACRS Legislative Committee 
I . SACRS BOD District Status Proposal 
2. San Diego Electronic Signature Proposal 

Legislation not supported by SACRS Legislative Committee 
3. Merced Proposal 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 1 Sacramento, CA 95814 1 T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER COUNT Y EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT L AW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



~~mr!;tb~o£ County Retirement Systems ---------~---------------
SJ•U • fr•ttlls • AJillleJn • S•tnn 

A c-.. "tHII4 :-.." rn.r.. c""l'« •• ..,. 

Richard Stensrud, Legislative Committee Chair noted that since some Systems did not have an 
opportunity to review the legislative proposals prior to conference, he would like additional time 
for voting. He asked that the Systems support a "delay of vote" on the proposals until the Spring 
meeting. By Spring conference additional language will be available giving the Systems more 
information to make their decisions to support or not support. Richard also asked that the 
Systems let the Legislative Committee know by December if they feel the concept of legislation 
is worthy to move forward. 

Motion: Sacramento made a motion to delay voting on proposed legislation until the Spring 
meeting. 
2nd: Los Angeles CERA 
Questions: 
San Diego CERA - would like to know if the authors of the legislation would be pursued? 
Response, yes, the lobbyist will begin looking for authors. 
Orange CERS -What is the time line for letting Legislative Committee know if Boards are 
supporting/opposing the proposals? Response, December, however language will not be available 
until January. 
Tulare CERA- If timing is the issue, do Bylaws permit an absentee ballot- to send in prior to 
May conference? Response, Parliamentarian clarified that an "absentee I send in ballot later" is 
not allowed due to the Bylaws. 
Richard clarified that the operating authority proposal is the item that is of concern due to timing 
for the legislature. He offered to attend Retirement Board meetings in December to educate the 
Boards on the language. 
Orange CERS, is there time to call a special meeting? Is it needed? Response, based on the 
feedback Richard receives by December- if a majority is in favor of the concept of the language
the bill can be introduced. If by May Conference the language is no longer approved, SACRS 
can pull the bill. 
All three bills will be included in the motion to table voting until May Conference. 

At this time the delegate from Marin CERA left the meeting. The quorum is at 17 Systems 
present. 

Yes: Alameda, Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, Mendocino, Merced, Orange, Sacramento, 
San Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Tulare, 
Ventura 
No: Fresno 
Absent: Contra Costa, Marin, Santa Barbara 
Motion Passes: 16-1 

At this time the membership returned to the agenda. 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMP LOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEO 



~~~IIW!~o£ County Retirement Systems ------------------------
Sl•H * Tnnffr • A}!ltlaur * s.cc,., 

A ur6t ..... ,.. s." Prvfia c.rporar .... 

2. Secretary's Report- Receive and File 
Art Goulet, SACRS Secretary (Art Goulet was not the Secretary at the May 2015 
Conference, Zandra C/wlmondeley was. Additionally, Art Goulet was not in attendance 
at the Business meeting; therefore, minutes were submitted by staff.) 

• May 2015 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes 
Motion: A motion to approve the May 2015 SACRS Business meeting minutes was 
submitted by Los Angeles CERA. The motion included corrections to a typo found on 
page 74 of the packet. Clarification of vote on Bylaws be corrected to reflect 20 Systems 
not 22. 
2nd: Ventura 
Yes: Alameda, Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, Mendocino, Merced, Orange, 
Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Sonoma, Stanislaus, 
Tulare, Ventura 
No: O 
Absent: Contra Costa, Marin, Santa Barbara 
Motion Passes: 17-0 

3. Treasurer's Report- Receive and File 
Dan McAllister, SACRS Treasurer 

• SACRS financials fiscal 2014-2015 and July - August 2015 
Motion: A motion to approve the Treasurers report was submitted by San Diego CERA. 
2nd: Stanislaus 
Yes: Alameda, Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, Mendocino, Merced, Orange, 
Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Sonoma, Stanislaus, 
Tulare, Ventura 
No: 0 
Absent: Contra Costa, Santa Barbara, Marin 
Motion Passes: 17-0 

4. Board of Director's Report- No Action 
Yves Chery, SACRS President 

• Board of Directors Update 
• Projects for 2015-2016 

Yves Chery discussed the current projects SACRS BOD is working on, to include the 
following: 

• Strategic Planning Meeting 
• Communication and Outreach to Members 
• Rebranding Process for SACRS 
• Legislation to Create Options for Systems 
• Survey SACRS Members 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F {916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER CO UNTY EMPLOYEES RETIR EMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEO 



CRS 
~~l~~~of County Retirement Systems -----------------------

S/.0 * TntUII * AJfltlaUJ * Satcrn 
A C.l,fu"'l.. s.,. P'Nfit COC'JKW1il._a 

Questions: Chris Prevatt, OCERS, asked about the number of Affiliates that responded to 
the SACRS Survey. Suggested that the survey results be reviewed so that the questions 
that do not apply to them get updated. 

No action was taken. 

5. SACRS Strategic Consultant Report - No Action 
Jim Lites, Strategic Consultant 

• Projects for 20 15-20 16 
Jim Lites gave a verbal update on the current projects underway at SACRS. 

• CERL- develop an index for the CERL. Working with Dave Muir 
• UC Berkeley Ad Hoc Committee - update on committee activity, review of the 

program, review of the value added, marketing, structure of program, sponsorship 
opportunities, and the budget. 

No action was taken. 

7. SACRS Nomination Committee - No Action 
Ray McCray, Nomination Committee Chair (absent - presented by staff) 

• Schedule for the Spring 2016 Board of Directors Election 

DEADLINE DESCRIPTION 

February 1, 2016 Nominating Committee receives nominations 

from SACRS membership 

March l, 2016 Nominating Committee submits its 
recommended ballot to each 1937 Act Board 

March 23, 2016 Nominating Committee receives nominations 

from any 1937 Act Board 

April I, 2016 Nominating Committee submits final ballot to 
each 1937 Act Board- ballot consists of 
recommended ballot plus anybody else who is 

nominated but not recommended by the NC 

May 13, 2016 Conduct elections during the SACRS 
Business Meeting (at end of the May 2016 

conference) 

May 13,2016 Board of Directors take office for 1 year 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 l F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT lAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



:~~mfiiJDxor County Retirement Systems ------------------------
St.U * 7,.11~•• * AJiill.ltJ * Swcrn 

A C.allrw•&. N .. PntrJC Cnrpondoa 

8. SACRS Committee & Breakout Reports: 

Committee 

Affiliate Michael Bowman 
reported that the 
committee has 3 open 
seats and will be holding 
their elections in the 
Spring. 

Audit Steve Delaney reported 
that the Audit is 
underway, and that the 
committee has met with 
the auditors. 

Bylaws Deanna McCormick, 
reported that the 
committee is working on 
Bylaw updates to the 
voting delegate section 
and will report to the 
Board in January. 

Education Christie Porter reported 
that the conference 
feedback has been very 
positive, the conference 
has received high 
remarks. A complete 
report will be presented to 
the Board in January. 
Online and paper options 
are available to complete 
evaluations. 

Legislative Report accepted under 
item on agenda. 

Nomination Report is in the packet, 
see deadlines for 
elections. 

Breakout 
Reports 
Administrators Donald Kendig, Fresno 

CERA, reported a great 
meeting, and Linda Webb, 
VCERA, will be the Spring 
rep. 

Counsels Michael Herrera, LACERA, 
reported that the attorneys 
had a good meeting, David 
Lantzer, OCERS, will be 
the Spring rep. 

Disability Kathy Foster, ACERA, 
reported that they need a 
Spring rep. 

Internal Auditors No report 

Investment Don Pierce, SBCERA, 
Officers would like to know if they 

can have longer time for 
their meeting. Steve Marsh, 
SCERA will be the Spring 
rep. 

Operations & Jeanine Smart, LACERA, 
Benefits will be the Spring rep. 

1415 L St. Su ite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 1 T (916) 441 -1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPER A TING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOY EES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



r~~·u:.t..'ii!.a:of County Retirement Systems----------- ---------- ---
51~* Tnalna • ..vJIU.In * S•t'"•u 

A Uhf.-nia fl-·oa rNr;1 Cnrporalk»e 

Program Gabe Rodrigues thanked 
all committee members 
that helped develop the 
agenda. Great program 
and thanks to staff. 

9. Adjournment 

Safety Trustees 

General Trustees 

No report 

Sulema Peterson offered 
information as to why the 
Safety and General trustees 
meet at two different 
times/group. Response, 
because the Safety members 
like to have their own 
meeting. The meeting used 
to take place on Tuesdays, 
but the group asked to be 
moved to Wednesday so 
that Safety members could 
attend other sessions on 
Tuesday. 

Motion: A motion to adjourn the meeting at 1 I :22 am was submitted by Dan McAllister, 
SACRS Treasurer. 
2"d: Sonoma CERA 
Yes: Alameda, Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, Mendocino, Merced, Orange, 
Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Tulare, 
Ventura 
No: 0 
Absent: Contra Costa, Santa Barbara, Marin, San Diego 
Motion Passes: 16-0 

Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, May 13, 2016 
at the Westin South Coast Plaza, Costa Mesa, CA. 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATI NG UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT COOE 31450 ET SEQ 



:1\'s~m.tf!Jlh.lof County Retirement Systems ------------------- ------ -
St.U. r,. .. ,#,. • AJ!lll•'" •. ~•cnu 

A Uhfun.Lt S•ft ..,_r., C•rpot•cluta 

3. Treasurer's Report- Receive and File 
Dan McAllister, SACRS Treasurer 

A. July 2015 - February 2016 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 J Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441·1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER CO UNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



State Association of County Retirement Systems 
Balance Sheet 

As of February 29, 2016 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Banner Bank - Checking 
Banner Bank - CD FLEX #0642 
Bank of Sacramento- MMA #0719 
Bank of America Interest Checking #4389 

Total Bank Accounts 

Other Current Assets 
CaiTrust - Medium Term 
CaiTrust- MMA 

Total Other Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Retained Earnings 

Net Income 
Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Page 1 of 1 

Total 

211,163.63 
57,149.90 

93,279.88 
$ 361,593.41 

$ 1 '112,458.52 
755,347.23 

$ 1,867,805.75 

$ 2,229,399.16 

$ 

$ 

$ 2,225,071.64 
4,327.52 

$ 2,229,399.16 

$ 2,229,399.16 



State Association of County Retirement Systems 
Budget vs. Actuals 
July 2015- February 2016 

Over/Under 
July 2015- July 2015- July 2015- Percentage of 

February 2016 February 2016 February 2016 Annual Budget 
Actual Budget Budget Recognized 

Income 
Conference Registration 616,080.00 680,000.00 (63,920.00) 60.40% 
Membership Dues- Affiliates 196,229.00 143,328.00 52,901.00 91 .27% 
Membership Dues- Non Profit 13,000.00 5,664.00 7,336.00 152.94% 
Membership Dues - Systems 90,000.00 62,664.00 27,336.00 95.74% 
Sales of Product Income 725.00 328.00 397.00 145.00% 
UC Berkeley Registration 52,500.00 50,000.00 2,500.00 70.00% 
UC Berkeley Sponsorships 16,450.00 43,328.00 (26,878.00} 25.31% 

Total Income $ 984,984.00 $ 985,312.00 $ {328.00} 66.64% 

Gross Profit $ 984,984.00 $ 985,312.00 $ (328.00) 66.64% 

Expenses 
Administrative Fee 110,172.52 101,584.00 8,588.52 72.30% 
Administrative Services 17,141.64 14,000.00 3,141 .64 81 .63% 
AudioNisual Equipment 73,358.00 56,664.00 16,694.00 86.30% 
Awards - 664.00 (664.00) 0.00% 
Bank Charges/Credit Card Fees 25,598.49 30,000.00 (4.401.51) 56.89% 
Berkeley & Symposium 21,015.41 126,664.00 (1 05,648.59) 11 .06% 
Credit Card Holding Account 993.36 - 993.36 
CERL - 16,664.00 (16,664.00) 0.00% 
Commissions & Fees 2,176.00 3,328.00 (1, 152.00) 43.52% 
Consulting 17,799.61 21,744.00 (3,944.39) 54.56% 
Dues & Subscriptions 767.26 2,464.00 (1 ,696.74) 20.74% 
Hotels 506,239.40 300,000.00 206,239.40 112.50% 

Page 1of 2 

Annual Budget 

1 ,020,000.00 
215,000.00 

8,500.00 
94,000.00 

500.00 
75,000.00 
65,000.00 

$ 1 ,478,000.00 

$ 1,478,000.00 

152,376.00 
21,000.00 
85,000.00 

1,000.00 
45,000.00 

190,000.00 

25,000.00 
5,000.00 

32,622.00 
3,700.00 

450,000.00 



State Association of County Retirement Systems 
Budget vs. Actuals 
July 2015 - February 2016 

Over/Under 
July 2015- July 2015- July 2015- Percentage of 

February 2016 February 2016 February 2016 Annual Budget 
Actual Budget Budget Recognized Annual Budget 

Insurance 5,004.00 5,000.00 4.00 66.72% 7,500.00 
Legal & Professional Fees 12,240.00 16,664.00 (4,424.00) 48.96% 25,000.00 
Lobby 35,714.84 35,184.00 530.84 67.66% 52,787.00 
Magazine 4,589.15 16,664.00 (12,074.85) 18.36% 25,000.00 
Meals and Entertainment 45,904.92 56,664.00 ( 10, 759.08) 54.01% 85,000.00 
Office Expenses - 664.00 (664.00) 0.00% 1,000.00 
Postage 3,494.34 1,328.00 2,166.34 174.72% 2,000.00 
Program Material 34,294.93 23,328.00 10,966.93 97.99% 35,000.00 
Speakers 27,530.83 40,000.00 (12,469.17) 45.88% 60,000.00 
Stationery & Printing 1,373.65 800.00 573.65 114.47% 1,200.00 
Strategic Facilitator 26,100.00 50,000.00 (23,900.00) 34.80% 75,000.00 
Supplies 55.50 1,000.00 (944.50) 3.70% 1,500.00 
Taxes & Licenses 10.00 64.00 (54.00) 10.00% 100.00 
Travel 16,757.92 16,664.00 93.92 67.03% 25,000.00 

Total Expenses $ 988,331.77 $ 937,800.00 $ 50,531 .77 70.25% $ 1 ,406, 785.00 

Net Operating Income $ (3,347.77) $ 47,512.00 $ (50,859.77) -4.70% $ 71,215.00 

Other Income 
Interest Earned 7,675.29 1,176.00 6,499.29 1,765.00 

Total Other Income $ 7,675.29 $ 1,176.00 $ 6,499.29 0.00% $ 1,765.00 

Net Income $ 4,327.52 $ 48,688.00 $ (44,360.48) -4.70% $ 72,980.00 

Page 2of2 



State Association of County Retirement Systems 
Profit & Loss 
February 2016 

Income 
Conference Registration 
Membership Dues -Affiliates 
Membership Dues- Non-Profit 
Membership Dues-Systems 
Sales of Product Income 
UC Berkeley Registration 
UC Berkeley Sponsorships 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expenses 
Administrative Fee 
Administrative Services 
AudioNisual equipment 
Bank Charges/Credit Card Fees 
Berkeley & Symposium 
BofA Credit Card Holding Account 
CERL 
Commissions & Fees 
Consulting 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Hotels 
Insurance 
Legal & Professional Fees 
Lobby 
Magazine 
Meals and Entertainment 
Office Expense 
Postage 
Program Material 
Speakers 

Page 1 of 2 

$ 

$ 

Total 

20,680.00 

20,680.00 

20,680.00 

13,913.08 
2,720.00 

905.88 

1,465.50 
2,500.00 

1,125.00 
10,064.84 

136.20 

14.58 
722.43 

1,768.47 



State Association of County Retirement Systems 
Profit & Loss 

Stationery & Printing 
Strategic Facilitator 
Supplies 
Taxes & Licenses 
Travel 

Total Expenses 

Net Operating Income 

Other Income 
Interest Earned 

Total Other Income 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

February 2016 

Page 2 of 2 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,600.00 

10.00 
365.10 

37,311.08 

(16,631.08) 

1,065.86 
1,065.86 

1,065.86 

(15,565.22) 



~:s!";!el1!h!of County Retirement Systems----- --------- ------------
SJ.n. ,,..,,,. • ~,,.,,. ... s.u.u 

A Cahl-.nLa SoA l"n~ril C"J'or•lkla 

4. SACRS President Report - No Action 
Yves Chery, SACRS President 

No printed materials for this item 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RET I REMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



¥-',ilOCI!I!ll!JII:U\,.IOf County Retirement Systems ----------- ---------------
Sl-'1 '* fnJI,J * A/fltlaUS • S•t'C.'IJ 

A C.llrueale :"'ll'oa Pruftl C..'l""'•lkta 

5. SACRS Audit Report - No Action 
Steve Delaney, SACRS Audit Committee Chair 

A. Update on 2014-2015 Audit 

No printed materials for this item 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPL OYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



~~~1:":!1 "- of County Retirement Systems -----------------------
sz.u. r,.,,, • AJ11tf•ln .. S•tt'fU 

A c...urond.• ~o• Pta fir C• tJIOC'•tlon 

6. SACRS Legislative Committee Update- Vote 
Richard Stensrud, SACRS Legislative Committee Chair 

A. AB 1853 (Cooper)- 1937 Act Operating Authority 
B. AB 2376 (Assembly PERS Committee)- SDCERA Proposal 
C. 2016 SACRS Legislation Update 
D. Jim Lites, SACRS Consultant Update 

CERL & UC Berkeley (No Action) 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



CRS 
~~ilmtlln~\.of County Retirement Syslems ---------------------------

SI•U • r,...,~n • Afflll•''• • S•cc•n 
A C..lil.,na. Son rralit Urp.,.lkl• 

A. AB 1853 (Cooper) - 1937 Act Operating Authority 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



AB 1853- MODERNIZATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
OPERATING AUTHORITY 

AB 1853 would authorize the retirement boards that govern the twenty county public 
employee retirement systems operating under the County Employees' Retirement Law of 
1937 (1937 Act or CERL) to modernize the operating authority structure for their system 
so that they can continue to fulfill their mission and meet the fiduciary responsibilities they 
owe to their stakeholders. County retirement systems are much larger and more complex 
than when they were established in the years following passage of the 1937 Act. The 
environment in which county retirement systems operate is also considerably more 
complex than when the retirement systems were first established. As a result, in many 
cases the operating authority structure established in 1937 is no longer effectively aligned 
with the duties of the retirement system. AB 1853 would address this disconnect between 
authority and responsibilities by allowing the retirement board to shift to one of three 
alternative operating authority structures within the 1937 Act. Changing from the 
retirement system's current operating authority structure would be permitted, but not 
mandated. The decision of which operating authority structure to use would be made by 
the retirement board based on the retirement board's fiduciary judgment of what is in the 
best interests of the participants of the retirement system. 

What Does Operating Authority Mean? 

The term 'operating authority' encompasses the wide array of decisions that must be 
made in administering 1937 Act retirement systems. The key decisions that present 
problems under the current operating authority structure are: (1) Establishing the 
appropriate staffing levels and staffing structure for the retirement system; (2) 
Establishing the appropriate job descriptions and duties for the necessary staff; and (3) 
Establishing the terms and conditions of employment of necessary staff, including 
appropriate levels and forms of compensation. 

The 'default' operating authority structure for 1937 Act retirement systems is established 
via various provisions in the 1937 Act, many of which literally date from 1937. In the 
beginning, the retirement systems were small, simple operations within the County 
Treasurer and Tax Collector's office. At that time, and for a number of years after, the 
retirement systems had fewer members and lower levels of assets under management; 
the benefit plans and operating rules were simpler; and the financial markets were not as 
complex, sophisticated and global in nature. In that operating environment it made sense 
to have decisions such as those noted above be made through the same processes as 
those used for the rest of county government. This meant the county was deemed to be 
the employer of retirement system personnel and that final decisions regarding staffing 
levels, staff structure, job descriptions and duties, and compensation rested with the 
Board of Supervisors, implemented through salary resolutions and/or job classifications 
established under the county Civil Service structure. 

1 



Today, a 1937 Act retirement system is a very different entity. County retirement systems 
have evolved and grown into autonomous organizations, serving thousands of members, 
managing billions of dollars in assets, and operating a highly specialized business that is 
unique relative to the rest of county government. The retirement systems are staffed by 
knowledgeable pension professionals and governed by retirement boards that focus their 
expertise and experience on fulfilling the mission of the organization. 

In recognition of this and the importance of having uncompromised decisions with respect 
to the long term obligations of the retirement system, in 1992 the voters approved an 
amendment to the California Constitution (Article XVI, Section 17), which placed both the 
fiduciary responsibility and the plenary authority for the administration of the retirement 
system on the governing retirement board. Consistent with this delegation of authority 
and grant of responsibility, the budget for the retirement system is established by the 
retirement board and the funding for that budget is drawn fully from the assets of the 
pension trust. 

Unfortunately, however, the legacy operating authority structure under the 1937 Act has 
largely failed to keep up with these developments. Over time, certain key personnel at 
the retirement system were designated as employees of the system, with the retirement 
board setting the terms and conditions of employment, but the implementation of those 
decisions continues to require action by the Board of Supervisors. Similarly, broader 
decisions regarding staffing levels, staff structure, job descriptions and duties, and 
compensation made in the first instance by the retirement board continue to require 
implementation by the Board of Supervisors. In some cases, this has resulted in the 
fiduciary decisions of the retirement board not being implemented, complicating the ability 
of the retirement system to carry out its duties. 

Given this situation, beginning in 2003, 1937 Act systems began efforts to gain a more 
modernized operating authority structure. The primary mechanism for achieving this was 
to make the retirement system a separate employer participating in the retirement system 
from the county, thereby making the retirement board the final decision maker and 
implementer of certain personnel matters. 

How Has Operating Authority Evolved Under the 1937 Act? 

The first system to establish a different operating authority structure within the 1937 Act 
was the Orange County Employees' Retirement System (OCERS). * Under the OCERS 
operating authority model, the management personnel of OCERS are deemed to be 
employees of OCERS, and the OCEAS Board establishes the positions and terms of 
employment for those positions. 

In 2004, the San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement Association (SBCERA) 
obtained legislative approval to operate under the same operating authority model. Then, 
in 2006, SBCERA gained legislative approval of a new operating authority model, which 
expanded the category of SBCERA employees to those positions deemed to require 

2 



specialized retirement system knowledge or expertise, the practical effect of which was 
to allow virtually all SBCERA personnel to be SBCERA employees. 

Between 2006 and 2012 efforts were initiated by other 1937 Act systems to follow a 
similar track as OCERS and SBCERA, but for various political reasons, those efforts were 
not successful. 

Then, in 2012, the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA) 
entered into litigation with Contra Costa County regarding the scope of CCCERA's 
operating authority. As part of the settlement of that litigation, legislation was approved 
that designated CCCERA as the employer of all personnel at CCCERA. 

This was followed in 2015 by legislation giving the Ventura County Employees' 
Retirement Association (VCERA) operating authority over a set of identified executive 
management positions. 

In sum, under the 1937 Act, there are now four models that re-allocate operating authority 
relative to the legacy 1937 Act structure, with the scope of that re-allocation increasing as 
follows: (1) The VCERA model; (2) The OCERS model; (3) The SBCERA model; and (4) 
The CCCERA model. 

*The Los Angeles County Employees' Retirement Association (LACERA) has had an 
operating authority agreement with Los Angeles County for many years, under which the 
county recognizes the authority of the LACERA Board over the administration of the 
retirement system and further agrees to take any ministerial action necessary to 
implement the decisions made by the LACERA Board. As a result of this agreement, 
LACERA has not needed to pursue a change in operating authority under the 1937 Act. 

What Would A81853 Do? 

As reflected by the discussion above, the efforts to-date to obtain modernized operating 
authority have been made on a system-by-system basis. Those efforts were largely 
driven by the recognition by those systems that they had reached a 'tipping point,' where 
their size and the scope of their responsibilities required that operational decisions 
needed to be addressed in a different manner. 

This perspective gained more wide spread acceptance with the passage of PEPRA. The 
drafters of PEPRA recognized that the new duties imposed on 1937 Act systems by 
PEPRA increased the potential conflicts of interest between the retirement systems and 
the dominant participating employer, the county. The drafters further recognized that the 
legacy operating authority model could be used to compromise the ability of a 1937 Act 
system to carry out its responsibilities. For that reason, early drafts of PEPRA authorized 
1937 Act system retirement boards to shift to a different operating authority model. This 
change did not ultimately make it into the final version of PEPRA, but it continues to be 
viewed as a sensible measure to protect the ability of the 1937 Act retirement systems to 
carry out their duties. 

3 



AB 1853 addresses the growing realization that change in operating authority is 
necessary, widely desired across the 1937 Act systems, and will produce beneficial 
results for all the stakeholders of these systems. AB 1853 would remove the need for 
pursuing ongoing piece meal modernization of operating authority by putting in place a 
standing mechanism for 1937 Act retirement boards to take such steps if and when they 
believe it is in the best interests of the participants in the system. 

Under AB 1853 the individual system retirement boards can decide if they want to shift 
from their current operating authority model to one of the three main operating authority 
options in the 1937 Act - i.e., the OCERS, SBCERA or CCCERA operating authority 
structures. This decision would be at the discretion of each retirement board, with no 
approval or concurrence required by the county. At the same time, the retirement board 
is also free to coordinate/collaborate with the county in any such decision as it sees fit, 
and the retirement board is not required to change its operating authority model if it does 
not deem it advisable. 

Flexibility rather than imposing a 'one size fits all' solution is a key component of AB 1853, 
with the right fit determined by each system. If systems are happy where they are, they 
can stay there. If systems want to change, there are options for how far they go, again 
contingent on what works best for their circumstances. 

Another key component of AB 1853 is that the question of appropriate operating authority 
is not a 'one and done' decision. For example, a system can choose to start at the smaller 
end of the operating authority spectrum and then expand that authority if and when they 
believe it makes sense. This approach essentially allows a system to 'test and verify' that 
a change in operating authority works, and to be able to illustrate that as support for any 
subsequent increase in operating authority. 

AB 1853 also contains various provisions that protect the rights of the retirement system 
personnel that would shift from being county employees to retirement system employees, 
including the right to be represented and the right to participate in any employee benefit 
plans and programs available to county employees. 

What will Not Change Under AB 1853? 

When the 1937 Act systems began to move out of the Treasurer/Tax Collectors' office 
and become more autonomous, some people predicted that it would be disastrous. That 
did not happen then and, as evidenced by the experience in those systems that have 
already changed their operating authority model, will not happen now. 

• The governance of the retirement systems will remain the same, with all the 
stakeholders having the same degree of representation and oversight as they have 
now. If a retirement board acts irresponsibly, the stakeholders can change its 
members. 

4 



• Transparency and accountability will not change. The 1937 Act contains a cap on 
administrative expenses, which will continue to be in effect. Meetings and records will 
still be public. Budgets will be public. Salaries will be public. 

• Retirement board members will continue to be liable as fiduciaries for the decisions 
they make. 

How will the Stakeholders of the Retirement System Benefit from AB 1853? 

AB 1853 will allow the 1937 Act retirement systems to establish the staff structure and 
staffing levels necessary to successfully carry out their responsibilities. It will also enable 
the retirement system to attract and retain the skilled professionals necessary to 
successfully execute those responsibilities. 

The ability to operate a more sophisticated investment program will benefit participating 
employers (and the taxpayers) through better investment returns and lower risk, resulting 
in lower employer cost. A stronger investment program will also benefit active members 
and retirees, by helping to maintain the funded status of the plan, thereby protecting their 
retirement security. 

Appropriate staffing levels will benefit both employers and system participants through 
better customer service. 

5 



AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 29, 2016 

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE-2015-16 REGULAR SESSION 

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 1853 

Introduced by Assembly Member Cooper 

February I 0, 2016 

An act to amend Sections3J../59./, 31468,31522.5,31522.7,31522.9, 
31528,31529.9,31535,31557.3, and 31580.2 of, and to add Section 
31522.75 to, the Government Code, relating to county employees' 
retirement. 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 1853, as amended, Cooper. County employees' retirement: 
districts: retirement system governance. 

The County Employees Retirement Law of 193 7 (CERL) authorizes 
counties to establish retirement systems pursuant to its provisions in 
order to provide pension benefits to their employees. CERL defines a 
district for these purposes, includes specified county retirement systems 
within that definition, and permits a district to participate in CERL 
retirement systems. CERL generally provides that the personnel of a 
county retirement system are county employees, subject to county civil 
service provisions and salary ordinances, but also authorizes the boards 
of retirement in specified counties to adopt provisions providing for the 
appointment of personnel who are to be employees of the retirement 
system, as well as other administrative provisions that reflect the 
independence of the retirement system from the county. 

The California Public Employees' Pension Refonn Act of 2013 
(PEPRA) requires a public retirement system, as defined, to modify its 
plan or plans to comply with the act and establishes new retirement 
fonnulas that a public employer offering a defined benefit pension plan 

98 



AB 1853 - 2 -

for employees first hired on or after January I, 2013, may not exceed .. 
PEPRA authorizes individuals who were employed by any public 
employer before January I, 2013, and who became employed by a 
subsequent public employer for the first time on or after January I, 
2013, to be subject to the retirement plan that would have been available 
to employees of the subsequent employer who were first employed by 
the subsequent employer on or before December 31, 2012, if the 
individual was subject to reciprocity, as specified. 

This bill would authorize the retirement board of any retirement 
system operating under CERL to elect, by resolution, to be a district 
under the Jaw. The bill would authorize a board to adopt, by resolution, 
specified administrative provisions that would classify various personnel 
of the retirement system as employees of the retirement system and not 
employees of the county. In regard to county employees who would 
become retirement system employees, the bill would prescribe 
requirements in connection with their compensation and employment 
benefits and status. These provisions would include maintaining their 
county retirement benefits that would otherwise be reduced under 
PEPRA, keeping their employment classifications, and affording 
employees the opportunity to continue participation in group health and 
dental plans, among other plans and programs. The bill would also 
prescribe requirements regarding labor negotiations and the continuity 
of labor agreements. The bill would grant a retirement system electing 
these provisions the authority to adopt the regulations and enter into 
the agreements necessary to implement them. The bill would authorize 
retirement systems currently operating under alternative administrative 
structures also to adopt these provisions. The bill would also e.r:tend this 
authorization and the associated provisions to a board of inveslmenl, 
as specified. The bill would make various technical and conforming 
changes. 

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: no. 
State-mandated local program: no. 

The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

I SECTION / . Section 31-159.1 of the Government Code is 
2 amended to read: 
3 31459.1. (a) In a county in which a board of investments has 
4 been established pursuant to Section 31520.2: 



-3- AB 1853 

t (I) As used in Sections 31453, 31453.5, 31454, 31454.1, 
2 31454.5, 31472, 31588.1' 31589.1' 31591' 31592.3, 31594, 
3 31595.1' 31595.9, 31596, 31596.1' 31601.1' 31607, 31610, 31611' 
4 31612, 316] 3, 31616, 31618, 3162].] ] '3] 625, 31639.26, 31784, 
5 and 31872, "board" means board of investments. 
6 (2) As used in the first paragraph of Section 31592.2 and the 
7 first paragraph and subdivision (c) of the second paragraph of 
8 Section 31595, "board" means a board of investments. 
9 (3) Sections 31521, 31522, 31522.1, 31522.2, 31523, 31 524, 

10 31525,31528,31529,31529.5,31535.1,31580.2,31614,31680, 
It and 31680.1, apply to both the board of retirement and board of 
12 investments, and "board" means either or both the board of 
13 retirement and board of investments. 
14 (4) Subdivision (a) of Section 31526 and subdivisions (a) and 
15 (b) of the second paragraph of Section 31 595 apply to both the 
16 board of retirement and board of investments, and "board" means 
17 either or both the board of retirement and board of investments. 
18 (5) Paragraph (5) of subdivision (I) of Section 31468 and 
19 Sections 31522.5, 31522.7, 31522.75, and 31522.9 apply to bolh 
20 the board of retirement and board of inveslments. For these 
21 purposes, "board" means both the board of retirement and board 
22 of inveslments. "Board of retirement" also means both the board 
23 of retirement and board of investments. 
24 (b) In Article 17 (commencing with Section 31880) of this 
25 chapter, "board" means the Board of Administration of the Public 
26 Employees' Retirement System. 
27 (c) In all other cases, "board" means the board of retirement. 
28 (d) This section shall apply only in a county of the first class, 
29 as defined in Section 28020, as amended by Chapter 1204 of the 
30 Statutes of 1971, and Section 28022, as amended by Chapter 43 
31 of the Statutes of 196 1. 
32 SECTION 1. 
33 SEC. 2. Section 31468 of the Government Code is amended 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

to read: 
31468. (a) "District" means a district, formed under the laws 

of the state, located wholly or partially within the county other 
than a school district. 

(b) "District" also includes any institution operated by two or 
more counties, in one of which there has been adopted an ordinance 
placing this chapter in operation. 

98 



AB 1853 - 4 -

I (c) "District" also includes any organization or assoc1at10n 
2 authorized by Chapter 26 of the Statutes of 1935, as amended by 
3 Chapter 30 of the Statutes of 1941, or by Section 50024, which 
4 organization or association is maintained and supported entirely 
5 from funds derived from counties, and the board of any retirement 
6 system is authorized to receive the officers and employees of that 
7 organization or association into the retirement system managed 
8 by the board. 
9 (d) "District" also includes, but is not limited to, any sanitary 

I 0 district fonned under Part 1 (commencing with Section 6400) of 
11 Division 6 of the Health and Safety Code. 
12 (e) "Distrid' also includes any city, public authority, public 
13 agency, and any other political subdivision or public corporation 
14 formed or created under the constitution or Jaws of this state and 
15 located or having jurisdiction wholly or partially within the county. 
16 (t) "District" also includes any nonprofit corporation or 
17 association conducting an agricultural fair for the county pursuant 
18 to a contract between the corporation or association and the board 
19 of supervisors under the authority of Section 25905. 
20 (g) "District" also includes the Regents of the University of 
21 California, but with respect only to employees who were employees 
22 of a county in a county hospital, who became university employees 
23 pursuant to an agreement for transfer to the regents of a county 
24 hospital or of the obligation to provide professional medical 
25 services at a county hospital, and who under that agreement had 
26 the right and did elect to continue membership in the county's 
27 retirement system established under this chapter. 
28 (h) "District" also includes the South Coast Air Quality 
29 Management District, a new public agency created on February 
30 I, 1977, pursuant to Chapter 5.5 (commencing with Section 40400) 
31 of Part 3 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code. 
32 (I) Employees of the South Coast Air Quality Management 
33 District shall be deemed to be employees of a new public agency 
34 occupying new positions on February I, 1977. On that date, those 
35 new positions are deemed not to have been covered by any 
36 retirement system. 
37 (2) No retirement system coverage may be effected for an 
38 employee of the South Coast Air Quality Management District 
39 who commenced employment with the district during the period 
40 commencing on February I, 1977, and ending on December 31, 

98 



-5- AB 1853 

I 1978, unless and unti I the employee shall have elected whether to 
2 become a member of the retirement association established in 
3 accordance with this chapter for employees of Los Angeles County 
4 or the retirement association established in accordance with this 
5 chapter for employees of San Bernardino County. The election 
6 shall occur before January 1, 1980. Any employee who fails to 
7 make the election provided for herein shall be deemed to have 
8 elected to become a member of the retirement association 
9 established in accordance with this chapter for the County of Los 

10 Angeles. 
II (3) The South Coast Air Quality Management District shall 
12 make application to the retirement associations established in 
13 accordance with this chapter for employees of Los Angeles County 
14 and San Bernardino County for coverage of employees of the South 
15 Coast Air Quality Management District. 
16 (4) An employee of the South Coast Air Quality Management 
17 District who commenced employment with the district during the 
18 period commencing on February I, I 977, and ending on December 
19 31, 1978, and who has not terminated employment before January 
20 I, 1980, shall be covered by the retirement association elected by 
21 the employee pursuant to paragraph (2). That coverage shall be 
22 effected no later than the first day of the first month following the 
23 date of the election provided for in paragraph (2). 
24 (5) Each electing employee shall receive credit for all service 
25 with the South Coast Air Quality Management District. However, 
26 the elected retirement association may require, as a prerequisite 
27 to granting that credit, the payment of an appropriate sum of money 
28 or the transfer of funds from another retirement association in an 
29 amount detennined by an enrolled actuary and approved by the 
30 elected retirement association's board. The amount to be paid shall 
31 include all administrative and actuarial costs of making that 
32 detennination. The amount to be paid shall be shared by the South 
33 Coast Air Quality Management District and the employee. The 
34 share to be paid by the employee shall be detennined by good faith 
35 bargaining between the district and the recognized employee 
36 organization, but in no event shall the employee be required to 
37 contribute more than 25 percent of the total amount required to be 
3 8 paid. The elected retirement association's board may not grant that 
39 credit for that prior service unless the request for that credit is 
40 made to, and the required payment deposited with, the elected 

98 



AB 1853 -6 -

I retirement association's board no earlier than January I, 1980, and 
2 no later than June 30, 1980. The foregoing shall have no effect on 
3 any employee's rights to reciprocal benefits under Article 15 
4 (commencing with Section 31830). 
5 (6) An employee of the South Coast Air Quality Management 
6 District who commenced employment with the district after 
7 December 31, 1978, shall be covered by the retirement association 
8 established in accordance with this chapter for employees of San 
9 Bernardino County. That coverage shall be effected as of the first 

I 0 day of the first month following the employee's commencement 
II date. 
12 (7) Notwithstanding paragraphs (2) and (4) above, employees 
13 of the South Coast Air Quality Management District who were 
14 employed between February I, 1977, and December 31, 1978, and 
15 who terminate their employment between February 1, 1977, and 
16 January t, 1980, shall be deemed to be members of the retirement 
17 association established in accordance with this chapter for the 
18 employees of Los Angeles County commencing on the date of 
19 their employment with the South Coast Air Quality Management 
20 District. 
21 (i) "District" also includes any nonprofit corporation that 
22 operates one or more museums within a county of the 15th class, 
23 as described by Sections 28020 and 28036 of the Government 
24 Code, as amended by Chapter 1204 of the Statutes of 1971, 
25 pursuant to a contract between the corporation and the board of 
26 supervisors of the county, and that has entered into an agreement 
27 with the board and the county setting forth the terms and conditions 
28 of the corporation's inclusion in the county's retirement system. 
29 G) "District" also includes any economic development 
30 association funded in whole or in part by a county of the 15th class, 
31 as described by Sections 28020 and 28036 of the Government 
32 Code, as amended by Chapter 1204 of the Statutes of 1971, and 
33 that has entered into an agreement with the board of supervisors 
34 and the county setting forth the terms and conditions of the 
35 association's inclusion in the county's retirement system. 
36 (k) "District" also includes any special commission established 
37 in the Counties ofTulare and San Joaquin as described by Section 
38 14087.31 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, pursuant to a 
39 contract between the special commission and the county setting 
40 forth the terms and conditions of the special commission's 

98 



- 7- AB 1853 

I inclusion in the county's retirement system with the approval of 
2 the board of supervisors and the board of retirement. 
3 (f) (I) "District" also includes the retirement system established 
4 under this chapter in Orange County. 
5 (2) "District" also includes the retirement system established 
6 under this chapter in San Bernardino County at such time as the 
7 board of retirement, by resolution, makes this section applicable 
8 in that county. 
9 (3) "District" also includes the retirement system established 

I 0 under this chapter in Contra Costa County. 
II (4) "District" also includes the retirement system established 
12 under this chapter in Ventura County. 
13 (5) "District" also includes a retirement system established under 
14 this chapter at the time that the board of retirement, by resolution, 
15 makes this seeti6n subdivision applicable to the retirement system 
16 in that county. 
17 (m) "District" also includes the Kern County Hospital Authority, 
18 a public agency that is a local unit of government established 
19 pursuant to Chapter 5.5 (commencing with Section I 0 1852) of 
20 Part 4 of Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code. 
21 SEC. 2. 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

SEC. 3. Section 31522.5 of the Government Code is amended 
to read: 

31522.5. (a) In a county in which the board of retirement has 
appointed personnel pursuant to Section 31522.1, the board of 
retirement may appoint an administrator, an assistant administrator, 
a chief investment officer, senior management employees next in 
line of authority to the chief investment officer, subordinate 
administrators, senior management employees next in line of 
authority to subordinate administrators, and legal counsel. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the personnel 
appointed pursuant to this section may not be county employees 
but shall be employees of the retirement system, subject to terms 
and conditions of employment established by the board of 
retirement. Except as specifically provided in this subdivision, all 
other personnel shall be county employees for purposes of the 
county's employee relations resolution, or equivalent local rules, 
and the terms and conditions of employment established by the 
board of supervisors for county employees, including those set 
forth in a memorandum of understanding. 

98 



AB 1853 - 8 -

1 (c) Except as otherwise provided by Sections 31529.9 and 
2 31596.1, the compensation of personnel appointed pursuant to this 
3 section shall be an expense of administration of the retirement 
4 system, pursuant to Section 3 I 580.2. 
5 (d) The board of retirement and board of supervisors may enter 
6 into any agreements as may be necessary and appropriate to carry 
7 out the provisions of this section. 
8 (e) Section 31522.2 is not applicable to any retirement system 
9 that elects to appoint personnel pursuant to this section. 

10 (t) This section shall apply in Orange County. 
II (g) This section shall apply to the retirement system established 
12 under this chapter in San Bernardino County at such time as the 
13 board of retirement, by resolution, makes this section applicable 
14 in that county. 
15 (h) This section shall apply to a retirement system established 
16 under this chapter at the time that the board of retirement, by 
17 resolution, makes this section applicable in that county. 
18 SEC. 3. 
19 SEC. .J. Section 31522.7 ofthe Government Code is amended 
20 to read: 
2 I 31522.7. (a) In addition to the authority provided pursuant to 
22 Section 31522.5, the board of retirement in the County of San 
23 Bernardino, or in any other county in which this section has been 
24 made applicable, may appoint an administrator, an assistant 
25 administrator, a chief investment officer, senior management 
26 employees next in line of authority to the chief investment officer, 
27 subordinate administrators, senior management employees next 
28 in line of authority to subordinate administrators, supervisors and 
29 employees with specialized training and knowledge in pension 
30 benefit member services, investment reporting compliance, 
3 I investment accounting, pension benefit tax reporting, pension 
32 benefit financial accounting, pension law, and legal counsel. 
33 (b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the personnel 
34 appointed pursuant to this section may not be county employees 
35 but shall be employees of the retirement system, subject to terms 
36 and conditions of employment established by the board of 
37 retirement. Except as specifically provided in this subdivision, all 
38 other personnel shall be county employees for purposes of the 
39 county's employee relations resolution, or equivalent local rules, 
40 and the terms and conditions of employment established by the 

98 



- 9 - AB 1853 

1 board of supervisors for county employees, including those set 
2 forth in a memorandum of understanding. 
3 (c) Except as otherwise provided by Sections 31529.9 and 
4 31596.1, the compensation of personnel appointed pursuant to this 
5 section shall be an expense of administration of the retirement 
6 system, pursuant to Section 31580.2. 
7 (d) The board of retirement and board of supervisors may enter 
8 into any agreements as may be necessary and appropriate to carry 
9 out the provisions of this section. 

I 0 (e) Section 31522.2 is not applicable if the retirement system 
It elects to appoint personnel pursuant to this section. 
12 (t) This section shall apply to the retirement system established 
13 under this chapter in San Bernardino County at such time as the 
14 board of retirement, by resolution, makes this section applicable 
I 5 in that county. 
16 (g) This section shall apply to a retirement system established 
17 under this chapter at the time that the board of retirement, by 
18 resolution, makes this section applicable in that county. 
19 SEC. 4. 
20 SEC. 5. Section 31522.75 is added to the Government Code~ 
21 immediately following Section 31522.7, to read: 
22 31522.75. (a) Any retirement system established under this 
23 chapter, including a retirement system that, at the time of the 
24 enactment of this section, is operating pursuant to Section 31522.5, 
25 31522.7, or 31522.9, may elect to make this section, paragraph 
26 (5) of subdivision (/) of Section 31468, and Section 31522.5, 
27 31522.7, or 31522.9, applicable to the retirement system upon 
28 adoption of a resolution by the board of retirement. 
29 (b) A board of retirement may elect to appoint personnel, or 
30 may authorize the retirement administrator to appoint personnel, 
31 to administer the system as provided in this section. 
32 (c) (1) Notwithstanding any other law, the personnel appointed 
33 pursuant to this section and the sections referenced in subdivision 
34 (a) shall not be county employees, but shall be employees of the 
35 retirement system, subject to terms and conditions of employment 
36 established by the board of retirement and the provisions of this 
37 section. 
38 (2) A county employee to whom the California Public 
39 Employees' Pension Reform Act of2013 (Article 4, e6mmeneins 
40 .J (commencing with Section~ 7522) ofChapter21 of Division 

98 



AB 1853 - tO -

I 7 of Title 1) did not apply before becoming a retirement system 
2 employee shall maintain that status as an employee of the 
3 retirement system. 
4 (3) For purposes of employment by a subsequent public 
5 employer, as described in paragraph (I) of subdivision (c) of 
6 Section 7522.02, the retirement system shall have the status of the 
7 county as a subsequent employer. 
8 (4) With regard to an individual who was employed by the 
9 county before January 1, 2013, and who becomes a retirement 

1 0 system employee and then changes employment positions as 
II described in paragraph (2) of subdivision (c) ofSection 7522.02, 
12 the retirement system shall have the former obligations of the 
13 county to provide a defined benefit plan that otherwise would have 
14 been available to the employee had he or she remained a county 
J 5 employee. 
16 (d) Any employees who were previously appointed to retirement 
I 7 system personnel positions pursuant to Section 31522.2 er 31522.3 
18 31522.2, 31522.3, or 31522.4 shall cease to be county employees 
19 and shall become retirement system employees at their existing or 
20 equivalent classifications as of the date the board of retirement 
21 makes this section applicable pursuant to subdivision (a), subject 
22 to any subsequent revisions the retirement board may make 
23 pursuant to regulations governing terms and conditions of 
24 employment, and when applicable, the provisions of a subsequent 
25 memeranda memorandum of understanding or bargaining 
26 agreement covering the employee. 
27 (e) Any employees who were previously appointed to retirement 
28 system personnel positions pursuant to Section 31522.1 and are 
29 subsequently appointed as retirement system employees pursuant 
30 to subdivision (a) shall cease to be county employees and shall 
31 become retirement system employees at their existing or equivalent 
32 classifications as of the date the board of retirement makes this 
33 section fll'l'lieable. applicable, subject to any subsequent revisions 
34 the retirement board may make pursuant to regulations governing 
35 terms and conditions of employment and, when applicable, the 
36 provisions of a subsequent memorandum of understanding or 
3 7 bargaining agreement covering the employee. 
38 (t) A retirement system that elects to make this section 
39 applicable shall recognize as the exclusive representative of those 
40 former county employees who become retirement system 

98 



-11- AB 1853 

I employees the employee organization that represented those 
2 employees, if any, and shall honor the provisions in any 
3 memoranda memorandum of understanding or bargaining 
4 agreement in effect on the date the board of retirement makes this 
5 section applicable for the duration of the memoranda memorandum 
6 of understanding or bargaining agreement. 
7 (g) The following shall apply to those persons who become 
8 retirement system employees pursuant to this section: 
9 (I) Employment seniority of a retirement system employee, 

1 0 including, but not limited to, an employee's continuous service 
II date used for purposes of retirement or other benefits, as calculated 
12 and used under the county system in effect before the date this 
13 section becomes applicable, shall be calculated and used in the 
14 same manner by the retirement system at the time the county 
15 employee becomes a retirement system employee, subject to any 
16 subsequent revisions the retirement board may make pursuant to 
17 regulations governing terms and conditions of employment, and 
18 when applicable, the provisions of a subsequent memoranda 
19 memorandum of understanding or bargaining agreement covering 
20 the employee. 
21 (2) Retirement system employees shall have the same status 
22 they had as probationary, permanent, or regular employees under 
23 the county system in effect on the date this section becomes 
24 applicable, subject to any subsequent revisions the retirement board 
25 may make pursuant to regulations governing terms and conditions 
26 of employment, and when applicable, the provisions of a 
27 subsequent memoranda memorandum of understanding or 
28 bargaining agreement covering the employee. 
29 (3) Retirement system employees shall receive their same salary 
30 rates, leaves of absence, leave accrual rates, including all related 
31 compensation rules and provisions applicable to those salary rates, 
32 leaves, and accrual rates as under the county system on the date 
33 this section becomes applicable, subject to any subsequent revisions 
34 the retirement board may make pursuant to regulations governing 
35 terms and conditions of employment, and when applicable, the 
36 provisions of a subsequent memoranda memorandum of 
37 understanding or bargaining agreement covering the employee. 
38 (4) (A) Retirement system employees shall be afforded the 
39 opportunity to participate in county benefit plans and programs, 
40 including, but not limited to, group health, dental and life insurance, 

98 



AB 1853 - 12 -

I workers' compensation, and deferred compensation that existed 
2 on the date this section becomes applicable, under the same terms 
3 and conditions as those programs were available to county 
4 employees. The retirement board shall contract with the county to 
5 administer the county benefit plans and programs for retirement 
6 system employees, under the same terms and conditions applicable 
7 to county employees, and shall provide the employer cost for 
8 participation in the programs unless and until the retirement board 
9 chooses to provide different benefits or different benefit levels 

J 0 through another provider. 
1 I (B) The participation of retirement system employees in county 
12 benefit plans or programs, and the county's administration of 
13 certain compensation or benefits for retirement employees pursuant 
14 to this section, shall not create or be construed to create, a meet 
15 and confer obligation between the county and any employee 
16 organization recognized to represent retirement system employees. 
17 (h) The board of retirement and the county may enter into any 
18 agreements necessary and appropriate to carry out this section. 
19 (i) Sections 31522.1, 31522.2 anc:t 31522.3 31522.2, 32522.3, 
20 and 32522.4 shall no longer apply to a retirement system that has 
21 made this section applicable. 
22 G) Upon adoption of this section, the board of retirement may 
23 make regulations consistent with this chapter, and the provisions 
24 of Section 31525 that require approval of retirement board 
25 regulations by the board of supervisors shall no longer apply. 
26 (k) The compensation of personnel appointed pursuant to this 
27 section shall be an expense of administration of the retirement 
28 system pursuant to Section 31580.2, except as provided in Section 
29 31522.5, 31522.7, or 31522.9, as those sections may apply to a 
30 retirement system that has adopted them. 
31 (f) This section shall not be construed as to modify any authority, 
32 or to require any subsequent action by, a retirement system that 
33 has made paragraph (5) of subdivision (/) of Section 3 I 468 and 
34 Section 31522.5, 31522.7, 3 I 522.9, or 3 I 522.1 0 applicable to the 
35 retirement system prior to the effective date of this section. 
36 (m) Any retirement system that has elected to make either 
37 Section 31522.5,31522.7, or 31522.9 applicable upon adoption 
38 of a subsequent resolution by the board of retirement may make 
39 a different section apply. 

98 



-13- AD 1853 

SEC. 5. I 
2 SEC. 6. Section 31522.9 of the Government Code is amended 
3 to read: 
4 31522.9. (a) The board of retirement of a county may appoint 
5 a retirement administrator and other personnel as are required to 
6 accomplish the necessary work of the board. The board may 
7 authorize the administrator to make these appointments on its 
8 behalf. Notwithstanding any other Jaw, the personnel so appointed 
9 shall not be county employees but shall become employees of the 

l 0 retirement system, subject to terms and conditions of employment 
It established by the board of retirement, including those set forth in 
12 mem6randa a memorandum of understanding executed by the 
13 board of retirement and recognized employee organizations. 
14 (b) Sections 31522.1 and 31522.2 shall not apply to a retirement 
15 system that appoints personnel pursuant to this section. 
16 (c) The retirement system that appoints personnel pursuant to 
17 this section is a public agency for purposes of the 
18 Meyers-Milias-BrownAct (Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 
19 3500) of Division 4). 
20 (d) The compensation of personnel appointed pursuant to this 
21 section shall be an expense of administration of the retirement 
22 system, pursuant to Section 31580.2, except as provided in Sections 
23 31529.5, 31529.9, and 31596.1. 
24 (e) The board of retirement and the board of supervisors may 
25 enter into agreements as they determine are necessary and 
26 appropriate in order to carry out the provisions of this section. 
27 (t) The retirement system, upon the effective date of this section, 
28 shall retain, for a 90-day transition employment period, 
29 nonprobationary employees who, upon the effective date of this 
30 section, were covered by a county memorandum of understanding 
31 and employed by the county at the retirement system's facilities, 
32 unless just cause exists to terminate the employees or legitimate 
33 grounds exist to lay otT these employees. If during the 90-day 
34 period the retirement system determines that a layoff of these 
35 employees is necessary, the retirement system shall retain the 
36 employees by seniority within job classification. The terms and 
37 conditions of employment of the employees retained pursuant to 
38 this subdivision shall be subject to the terms and conditions 
39 established by the applicable mem6randa memorandum of 
40 understanding executed by the board of retirement and the 

98 



AB 1853 - 14 -

I recognized employee organizations. During the 90-day transition 
2 period, probationary employees shall maintain only those rights 
3 they initially acquired pursuant to their employment with the 
4 county. 
5 (g) Subject to the employees' rights under the 
6 Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (Chapter I 0 (commencing with Section 
7 3500) of Division 4), the retirement system, upon the effective 
8 date of this section, shall recognize as the exclusive representative 
9 of the employees retained pursuant to subdivision (f) the recognized 

I 0 employee organizations that represented those employees when 
II employed by the county. The initial terms and conditions for those 
I 2 employees shall be as previously established by the applicable 
13 memtH'ftHcls memorandum of understanding executed by the county 
14 and recognized employee organizations. 
15 (h) This section shall apply in Contra Costa County. 
16 (i) This section shall apply to a retirement system established 
17 under this chapter at the time that the board of retirement, by 
18 resolution, makes this section applicable in that county. 
19 SEC. 6. 
20 SEC. 7. Section 31528 of the Government Code is amended 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

to read: 
31528. (a) Unless permitted by this chapter, a member or 

employee of the board shall not become an endorser, surety, or 
obligor on, or have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in the 
making of any investment for the board, or in the gains or profits 
accruing from those investments. A member or employee of the 
board shall not directly or indirectly, for himself or herself, or as 
an agent or partner of others, borrow or use any of the funds or 
deposits of the retirement system, except to make current and 
necessary payments authorized by the board. 

(b) A member or employee of the board shall not, directly or 
indirectly, by himself or herself, or as an agent or partner or 
employee of others, sell or provide any investment product that 
would be considered an asset of the fund, to any retirement system 
established pursuant to this chapter. 

(c) An individual who held a position designated in Section 
31522.3, 31522.4, 31522.5, or established pursuant to Section 
31522.75, or was a member of the board or an administrator, shall 
not, for a period of two years after leaving that position, for 
compensation, act as agent or attorney for, or otherwise represent, 

98 



- 15 - AB 1853 

I any other person except the county, by making any formal or 
2 informal appearance before, or any oral or written communication 
3 to, the retirement system, or any officer or employee thereof, if 
4 the appearance or communication is made for the purpose of 
5 influencing administrative or legislative action, or any action or 
6 proceeding involving the issuance, amendment, awarding, or 
7 revocation of a permit, license, grant, contract, or sale or purchase 
8 of goods or property. 
9 SEC. 7. 

I 0 SEC. 8. Section 31529.9 of the Government Code is amended 
II to read: 
I 2 3 I 529.9. (a) In addition to the powers granted by Sections 
13 31522.5,31522.75,31522.9,31529,31529.5,31614, and 31732, 
14 the board of retirement and the board of investment may contract 
15 with the county counsel or with attorneys in private practice or 
16 employ staff attorneys for legal services. 
17 (b) Notwithstanding Sections 31522.5, 31522.7, 31522.75, 
18 31529.5, and 31580, the board shall pay, from system assets, 
19 reasonable compensation for the legal services. 
20 (c) This section applies to any county ofthe 2nd class, 7th class, 
21 9th class, 14th class, 15th class, or the 16th class as described by 
22 Sections 28020, 28023, 28028, 28030, 28035, 28036, and 28037. 
23 (d) This section shall also apply to any other county if the board 
24 of retirement, by resolution adopted by majority vote, makes this 
25 section applicable in the county. 
26 SEC. 8. 
27 SEC. 9. Section 31535 of the Government Code is amended 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

to read: 
31535. The board may issue subpoenas and subpoenas duces 

tecum, and compensate persons subpoenaed. This power shall be 
exercised and enforced in the same manner as the similar power 
granted the board of supervisors in Article 9 (commencing with 
Section 25170) of Chapter I, Part 2, Division 2; except that the 
power shall extend only to matters within the retirement board's 
jurisdiction, and committees of the board shall not have this power. 
Reasonable fees and expenses may be provided for by board 
regulation for any or all of such witnesses regardless of which 
party subpoenaed them. 

Subpoenas shall be signed by the chairman or secretary of the 
retirement board, except that the board may by regulation provide 

98 



AB 1853 - 16 -

I for express written delegation of its subpoena power to any referee 
2 it appoints pursuant to this chapter or to any administrator 
3 appointed pursuantto Section 31522.2,31522.5,31522.7,31522.9, 
4 or 31522.1 0. 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

to 
II 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 

Any member of the board, the referee, or any person otherwise 
empowered to issue subpoenas may administer oaths to, or take 
depositions from, witnesses before the board or referee. 

SEC. 10. Section 3155 7.3 of the Government Code is amended 
to read: 

31557.3. On the date a district, as defined in subdivision (I) of 
Section 31468, is inc 1uded in the retirement system, any personnel 
appointed pursuant to Sections 31522.5, 31522.9, 31522.10, 
31522.7, 31522. 75, and 31529.9 who had previously been in county 
service shall continue to be members of the system without 
interruption in service or Joss of credit. Thereafter, each person 
entering employment with the district shall become a member of 
the system on the first day of the calendar month following his or 
her entrance into service. 

SE€.9. 
SEC. 11. Section 31580.2 of the Government Code is amended 

to read: 
31580.2. (a) In counties in which the board of retirement, or 

the board of retirement and the board of investment, have appointed 
personnel pursuant to Section 3 I 522. I, 31522.5, 31522.7, 
31522.75, 31522.9, or 31522.1 0, the respective board or boards 
shall annually adopt a budget covering the entire expense of 
administration of the retirement system which expense shall be 
charged against the earnings of the retirement fund. The expense 
incurred in any year may not exceed the greater of either of the 
following: 

(I) Twenty-one hundredths of I percent of the accrued actuarial 
liability ofthe retirement system. 

(2) Two million dollars ($2,000,000), as adjusted annually by 
the amount of the annual cost-of-Jiving adjustment computed in 
accordance with Article 16.5 (commencing with Section 31870). 

(b) Expenditures for computer software, computer hardware, 
and computer technology consulting services in support of these 

98 



-17- AB 1853 

I computer products shall not be considered a cost of administration 
2 of the retirement system for purposes of this section. 

0 



il.i!.\:IUWDI County Retirement Systems ---------------------------
• Tnut11r * A/JllJ.t,. '* S1111C't'I'U 

A CaiUurnUl'!ion Pmric Cnrponlioa 

B. AB 2376 (Assembly PERS Committee) - SDCERA Proposal 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETI REMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



YEAR 2016 SACRS LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM WORKSHEET 

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN BY SEPTEMBER 4, 2015 

Title of Issue: Sworn Statement Requirement 

Association: San Diego County Employees Retirement Association (SDCERA) 

Contact Person: Johanna Shick, Chief Service Officer 
Elaine Reagan, Chief Legal Officer 

Phone#: 619.515.6815 
619.515.6804 

Fax#: 619.515.5071 
619.515.5067 

Please answer the following questions as fully as possible: 

1. Description of issue. 

Government Code §31526 states "The regulations shall include provisions: (a) 
For the election of officers, their terms, meetings, and all other matters relating to 
the administrative procedure of the board. (b) For the filing of a sworn statement 
by every person who is or becomes a member, showing date of birth, nature and 
duration of employment with the county, compensation received, and such other 
information as is required by the board. (c) For forms of annuity certificates and 
for such other forms as are required." 

Some retirement systems receive date of birth, nature and duration of 
employment with the county and compensation automatically via electronic 
payroll feed from the County. At the time the statute became effective in 1947 
electronic payroll feeds did not exist, making the collection of this information 
critical for enrolling members into the system. 

When counties automatically enroll eligible employees into the retirement 
system, and collect and report to the retirement system the required information, 
the requirement of collecting a sworn statement from each eligible employee is 
duplicative and unnecessary. Further, requiring the collection of a sworn 
statement from each eligible employee creates compliance issues and 
inefficiencies. Because not all employees return their sworn statements, 
additional staff time and resources must be expended to obtain the form from 
employees in order to comply with Government Code §31526; however, the 
retirement system already has the necessary information from the employer via 
the payroll feed. 

2. Recommended solution. 

Add language that would allow counties to collect members' date of birth, nature 
and duration of employment with the county, and compensation received from 
the employer in lieu of requiring the member to complete a sworn statement. 
This would enable those counties that have implemented procedures to 
automatically enroll eligible employees into the retirement system, and collect 
and report the required information to the retirement system automatically to 
streamline processes, thus making the administration of the benefit more efficient 
and bringing statute in alignment with modem-day technology. 



3. Specific language that you would like changed in, or added to, '37 Act Law, and 
suggested code section numbers. 

§31526: The regulations shall include provisions: (a) For the election of officers, 
their terms, meetings, and all other matters relating to the administrative 
procedure of the board. (b) For the filing of a sworn statement by every person 
who is or becomes a member, showing date of birth, nature and duration of 
employment with the county, compensation received, and such other information 
as is required by the board or. altemativelv and in lieu of a sworn statement. for 
sucb information to be provLded b)• tbe member's emplover to the retirement 
assodation in a form to be delermined.by the retirement association. (c) For 
forms of annuity certificates and for such other forms as are required. 

4. Why should the proposed legislation be sponsored by SACRS rather than by your 
individual retirement association? 

The requested addition to Government Code §31526 affects all CERL systems, 
not only SDCERA. 

5. Do you anticipate that the proposed legislation would create any major problems, 
such as conflicting with Proposition 162 or create a problem with any of the other 
19 SACRS retirement associations? 

No 

6. Who will support or oppose this proposed change in the law? 

The proposed amendment is unlikely to raise opposition as it is designed to allow 
the status quo for those systems that prefer it. It does not prohibit systems from 
continuing to use sworn statements; it simply allows those systems gathering this 
information electronically to streamline their processes and more reliably collect 
the information. 

7. Who will be available from your association to testify before the Legislature? 

Johanna Shick, Chief Service Officer 
Elaine Reagan, Chief Legal Officer 

E-mail or mail your legislative proposals to: 

Jim Lites 
California Strategies, LLC 
980 9'h Street, Suite 2000 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Phone: (916) 266-4575 

Email: jlites@calstrat.com 



AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 9, 2016 

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE-2015-16 REGULAR SESSION 

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 2376 

Introduced by Committee on Public Employees, Retirement, and 
Social Security (Assembly Members Cooper (Chair), Bonta, 
Cooley, Gonzalez, and O'Donnell) 

February 18, 2016 

An act to amend Sections 31494.2, 31494.5, and 31526 6f 31526, 
and 3164/ . .J of, and to add Sections 31495.7 and 31520.6 to, the 
Government Code, relating to county employees' retirement. 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 2376, as amended, Committee on Public Employees, Retirement, 
and Social Security. County employees' retirement: Los Angeles 
County. 

The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL) establishes 
retirement plans, known as Retirement Plan D and Retirement Plan E, 
that are applicable in the retirement system in Los Angeles County and 
prescribes procedures for members to transfer between those plans. 
CERL defines "Retirement Plan E" to mean the noncontributory 
retirement plan established by specific provisions, and defines 
"Retirement Plan D" to mean the contributory retirement plan otherwise 
available to new members of the retirement system on the transfer date. 

This bill would revise the definition of Retirement Plan D to, instead, 
refer to the contributory retirement plan otherwise available to members 
of the system between June I, 1979, and December 31, 2012, inclusive. 

CERL provides for the retirement system in Los Angeles County 
specific ages and pension allowances for normal and early retirement. 
Under CERL, a member of a CERL reliremenl ~yslem who is eligible 

98 



AB 2376 -2-

to retire at 50 years of age pursuant to specified statute, or who is 
required to retire because of age while a member of the Public 
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), a CERL retirement system in 
another county, the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), or a 
retirement system of any other public agency of the state that has 
established reciprocity with PERS subject to certain conditions, but 
who cannot retire concurrently fi·om PERS, a CERL retirement system 
in another county, STRS, or a retirement system of any other public 
agency of the state that has established reciprocity with PERS subject 
to certain conditions, is entitled to have final compensation and service 
determined under specific .statutes as if the member had retired 
concurrently under that other system (concurrent retirement exception). 
Provisions of CERL specifically applicable to Los Angeles County, 
among other things, apply reciprocal benefits, including the concurrent 
retirement exception, to the retirement system in Los Angeles County. 

This bill would amend provisions ofCERL specifically applicable to 
Los Angeles County to provide !hat the concurrent retirement exceplion 
applies to a member of the retirement system in Los Angeles County 
eligible to retire at 55 years of age and would stale that the amendment 
is dec/aratmy of existing lmt•. 

CERL sets forth the membership composition for boards ofretirement, 
as specified. Under that law, the retirement board in specified counties 
is comprised of9 members and an alternate membe1; as specified. That 
law also authorizes specified counties to appoint an alternate retired 
member to the office of the 8th member of the board and authorizes the 
alternate retired member to vote as a member of the board only in the 
event the 8th member is absent from a board meeting for any cause. 

This bill would additionally authorize the allernate refired member 
to vole as a member of the board if the 8th member is present and both 
the 2nd and 3rd, both the 2nd and 7th, or both the 3rd and 7th members 
are absent for any cause. 

Under CERL, except as specified, the management of a retirement 
system is vested in the board of. retirement, with membership 1:1s 
preseribed. retirement. CERL authorizes such a board to make 
regulations not inconsistent with that law, and requires that the 
regulations include specific provisions, including provisions for the 
filing of a sworn statement by every person who is or becomes a 
member, showing date of birth, nature and duration of employment 
with the county, compensation received, and other information as is 
required by the board. 

98 



-3- AB2376 

This bill would authorize those regulations, in lieu of a sworn 
statement, to provide for the submission by a member's employer to 
the retirement association of the information otherwise required in a 
sworn statement, in a form determined by the retirement association. 

CERL requires that a safety member who receives credit for prior 
employment in public service, the principal duties of which consisted 
of active law enforcement or active fire suppression, or active service 
in the Armed Forces of the United States during time of war or national 
emergency, have his or her pension or retirement allowance for that 
service calculated on the same basis as the calculation of the retirement 
allowance the member would receive as a safety member under certain 
laws relating to the retirement of safety members for service. 

This bill would require instead that the allowance be calculated on 
the same basis as the calculation of the retirement allowance the 
member would receive as a safety member under the safety benefit 
formula in effect on the date of the member's initial safety membership. 

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: no. 
State-mandated local program: no. 

The people ofthe Stale of California do enact as follows: 

1 SECTION 1. Section 31494.2 of the Government Code is 
2 amended to read: 
3 31494.2. (a) A general member whose benefits are governed 
4 by Retirement Plan D may, during a period of active employment, 
5 elect to change plan membership and become a member, 
6 prospectively, in Retirement Plan E. The election shall be made 
7 upon written application signed by the member and filed with the 
8 board, pursuant to enrollment procedures and during an enrollment 
9 period established by the board, which enrollment period shall not 

1 0 occur more frequently than once every three years for that member. 
II The change in plan membership shall be effective as of the transfer 
12 date, as defined in subdivision (d). Except as otherwise provided 
13 in this section, the rights and obligations of a member who elects 
14 to change membership under this section shall be governed by the 
15 terms of this article on and after the transfer date. Prior to the 
16 transfer date, the rights to retirement, survivors', or other benefits 
17 payable to a member and his or her survivors or beneficiaries shall 
18 continue to be governed by Retirement Plan D. 



AD 2376 -4-

1 (b) Except as otherwise provided in this section, effective as of 
2 the transfer date, a member who has transferred to Retirement Plan 
3 E pursuant to this section and his or her survivors or beneficiaries 
4 shall receive retirement, survivors', and other benefits that shall 
5 consist of: ( 1) the benefits to which they are entitled under the 
6 terms of Retirement Plan E, but based on the member's service 
7 credited only under that plan, and payable at the time and in the 
8 manner provided under Retirement PlanE, and (2) the benefits to 
9 which they would have been entitled under the terms of Retirement 

10 Plan D had the member remained a member of Retirement Plan 
It D, but based on the member's service credited only under that 
12 plan, and payable at the time and in the manner provided under 
13 Retirement Plan D. Except as otherwise provided in this section, 
14 the calculation of the member's, survivors', or beneficiaries' 
15 benefits under each plan shall be subject to that plan's respective, 
16 separate terms, including, but not limited to, the definitions of 
17 "final compensation" and provisions establishing cost-of-living 
18 adjustments, establishing minimum retirement age and service 
19 requirements, and governing integration with federal social security 
20 payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate service 
21 credited under both retirement plans shall be taken into account 
22 for the purpose of determining eligibility for and vesting of benefits 
23 under each plan. 
24 (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of Retirement Plan D 
25 or Retirement Plan E: 
26 (I) A member who has transferred to Retirement Plan E pursuant 
27 to this section may not retire for disability and receive disability 
28 retirement benefits under Retirement Plan D. 
29 (2) If a member who has transferred to Retirement Plan E 
30 pursuant to this section dies prior to retirement, that member's 
31 survivor or beneficiary may not receive survivor or death benefits 
32 under Retirement Plan D but shall receive a refund of the member's 
33 contributions to Retirement Plan D together with all interest 
34 credited thereto. 
35 (d) As used in this section: 
36 (I) "Period of active employment" means a period during which 
37 the member is actively performing the duties of a full-time or 
38 part-time employee position or is on any authorized paid leave of 
39 absence, except a leave of absence during which the member is 
40 totally disabled and is receiving, or is eligible to receive, disability 

98 



-5- AD 2376 

I benefits, either during or after any elimination or qualifying period, 
2 under a disability plan provided by the employer. 
3 (2) "Retirement Plan D" means the contributory retirement plan 
4 otherwise available to members of the system between June I, 
5 1979, and December 31, 2012, inclusive. 
6 (3) "Retirement PlanE" means the noncontributory retirement 
7 plan established under this article. 
8 (4) "Transfer date" means the first day of the first month that 
9 is at least 30 days after the date that the application is filed with 

10 the board to change plan membership under subdivision (a). 
11 (e) This section shall only be applicable to Los Angeles County 
12 and shall not become operative until the board of supervisors of 
13 that county elects, by resolution adopted by a majority vote, to 
14 make this section operative in the county. 
15 SEC. 2. Section 3 I 494.5 of the Government Code is amended 
16 to read: 
17 31494.5. (a) A general member whose benefits are governed 
18 by Retirement Plan E may, during a period of active employment, 
19 elect to change plan membership and become a member, 
20 prospectively, in Retirement Plan D. The election shall be made 
21 upon written application signed by the member and filed with the 
22 board, pursuant to enrollment procedures and during an enrollment 
23 period established by the board, which enrollment period shall not 
24 occur more frequently than once every three years for that member. 
25 The change in plan membership shall be effective as of the transfer 
26 date, as defined in subdivision (g). Except as otherwise provided 
27 in this section, the rights and obligations of a member who elects 
28 to change membership under this section shaii be governed by the 
29 terms of Retirement Plan Don and after the transfer date. Prior to 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

the transfer date, the rights to retirement, survivors', or other 
benefits payable to a member and his or her survivors or 
beneficiaries shall continue to be governed by Retirement Plan E. 

(b) If a member has made the election to change plans under 
subdivision (a), monthly contributions by the member and the 
employer under the terms of Retirement Plan D shall commence 
as of the transfer date. For the purposes of calculating the member's 
contribution rate under Retirement Plan D, his or her entry age 
shall be deemed to be his or her age at his or her birthday nearest 
the transfer date; however, if the member exchanges service credit 
in accordance with subdivision (c), with regard to contributions 

98 



AB 2376 -6-

I made for periods after that exchange, his or her entry age shall be 
2 adjusted and deemed to be the member's age at his or her birthday 
3 nearest the date on which begins the most recent period of 
4 unbroken service credited under Retirement Plan D, taking into 
5 account service purchased under subdivision (c). In no event shall 
6 the exchange of service under subdivision (c) affect the entry age 
7 with respect to, or the cost of, employee contributions made, or 
8 service purchased, prior to the exchange. 
9 (c) (I) A general member who has elected to change plans 

10 under subdivision (a) also may elect to exchange, at that time or 
II any time thereafter, but prior to the earlier of his or her application 
12 for retirement, termination from employment, or death, some 
13 portion designated in whole-month increments, or all of the service 
14 credited under Retirement Plan E for an equivalent amount of 
15 service credited under Retirement Plan D, provided, however, that 
16 the member may not exchange less than 12 months' service or, if 
17 less, the total service credited under Retirement Plan E. The 
18 exchange shall be effective on the date when the member completes 
19 the purchase of that service by depositing in the retirement fund, 
20 by lump sum or regular monthly installments, over the period of 
21 time determined by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of the 
22 board of retirement, or both, but in any event prior to the earlier 
23 of his or her death or the date that is 120 days after the effective 
24 date of his or her retirement, the sum of: (I) the contributions the 
25 member would have made to the retirement fund under Retirement 
26 Plan D for that length of time for which the member shall receive 
27 credit as service under Retirement Plan D, computed in accordance 
28 with the rate of contribution applicable to the member under 
29 Retirement Plan D, based upon his or her entry age, and in the 
30 same manner prescribed under Retirement Plan D as if that plan 
31 had been in effect during the period for which the member shall 
32 receive service credit, and (2) the regular interest thereon. 
33 (2) For the purposes of this subdivision, a member's entry age 
34 shall be deemed to be the member's age at his or her birthday 
35 nearest the date on which begins the most recent period of 
36 unbroken service credited under Retirement Plan D following 
37 completion of the service exchange under this subdivision. A 
38 member may receive credit for a period of service under only one 
39 plan and in no event shall a member receive credit for the same 



-7- AB 2376 

I period of service under both Retirement Plan D and Retirement 
2 Plan E. 
3 (3) A member who fails to complete the purchase of service as 
4 required under this subdivision shall be treated as completing an 
5 exchange of service under Retirement Plan E for an equivalent 
6 amount of service under Retirement Plan D only with regard to 
7 the service that actually has been purchased through completed 
8 deposit with the retirement fund of the requisite purchase amount, 
9 calculated in accordance with this subdivision. 

I 0 (d) Except as otherwise provided in this section, effective as of 
II the transfer date, a member who has transferred to Retirement Plan 
12 D pursuant to this section and his or her survivors or beneficiaries 
13 shall receive retirement, disability, survivors', death, or other 
14 benefits that shall consist of: (1) the benefits to which they are 
15 entitled under the terms of Retirement Plan D, but based on the 
16 member's service credited only under that plan, and payable at the 
17 time and in the manner provided under Retirement Plan D, and 
18 (2) the benefits to which they would have been entitled under the 
19 terms of Retirement Plan E had the member remained a member 
20 of Retirement PlanE, but based on the member's service credited 
21 only under that plan, and payable at the time and in the manner 
22 provided under Retirement Plan E. Except as otherwise provided 
23 in this section, the calculation of the portion of a member's or 
24 beneficiary's benefit that is attributable to each plan is subject to 
25 that plan's respective, separate terms, including, but not limited 
26 to, the definitions of "final compensation" and provisions 
27 establishing cost-of-living adjustments, establishing minimum age 
28 and service requirements, and governing integration with federal 
29 social security payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
30 aggregate service credited under both Retirement Plan D and 
31 Retirement Plan E shall be taken into account for the purpose of 
32 determining eligibility for, and vesting of, benefits under each 
33 plan. 
34 (e) Notwithstanding any other provision of Retirement Plan D 
35 or Retirement Plan E, a member who transfers into Retirement 
36 Plan D under this section may retire for service-connected or 
37 nonservice-connected disability and receive disability benefits 
38 under Retirement Plan D only if he or she has either (I) completed 
39 two continuous years of active service after his or her most recent 
40 transfer date, or (2) earned five years of retirement service credit 

98 



AB 2376 -8-

I under Retirement Plan 0 after his or her most recent transfer date. 
2 Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, a member 
3 who becomes disabled and does not meet either of these conditions 
4 (I) may apply for and receive only a deferred or service retirement 
5 allowance, or (2) may elect to transfer prospectively back to 
6 Retirement Plan E, and for the purposes of calculating his or her 
7 retirement benefits under this section, shall in lieu of credit under 
8 Retirement Plan D be credited with service under Retirement Plan 
9 E as provided under subdivision (g) of Section 31488 during any 

10 period he or she is totally disabled and is receiving, or eligible to 
11 receive, disability benefits, either during or after any elimination 
12 or qualifying period, under a disability plan provided by the 
13 employer up to the earlier of the date he or she retires or no longer 
14 qualifies for disability benefits. )fa member dies before he or she 
15 is eligible to retire and before completing either two continuous 
16 years of active service after the transfer date into Retirement Plan 
17 D or after earning five years of retirement service credit under 
18 Retirement Plan 0 after that transfer date, that member's 
19 beneficiary shall not be entitled to the survivor allowance under 
20 Section 31781.1 or 31781.12, if operative. 
21 (f) Notwithstanding any other provisions of Retirement Plan D 
22 or Retirement PlanE, a member who has transferred to Retirement 
23 Plan D pursuant to this section and who retires for disability when 
24 eligible under this section and Retirement Plan D, may not also 
25 retire for service and receive service retirement benefits under 
26 Retirement Plan E. However, for the purpose of calculating 
27 disability benefits under Retirement Plan 0, the "sum to which he 
28 or she would be entitled as service retirement" or his or her "service 
29 retirement allowance," as those terms are used in Sections 31726, 
30 31726.5, and 31727.4, shall consist ofthe blended benefit to which 
31 the member would be entitled under subdivision (d) if he or she 
32 retired for service, not just the service retirement benefit to which 
33 he or she would be entitled under Retirement Plan D. 
34 (g) As used in this section: 
35 (I) "Active service" means time spent on active, on-the-job 
36 performance of the duties of a full-time or part-time position and 
37 on any authorized paid leaves of absence; provided, however, that 
38 any authorized paid leave of absence or part-time service shall not 
39 constitute active service if the leave of absence or part-time service 
40 is necessitated by a preexisting disability, injury, or disease. The 

98 



- 9 - AB2376 

1 board of retirement shall determine whether or not a leave of 
2 absence or part-time service is necessitated by a preexisting 
3 disability, injury, or disease, and thus excluded from the member's 
4 active service, based upon evidence presented by the employer 
5 and the member upon request by the board. 
6 (2) "Entry age" means the age used for calculating the normal 
7 rate of contribution to Retirement Plan D with respect to a member 
8 who has transferred membership to Retirement Plan D under this 
9 section. 

10 (3) "Period of active employment" means a period during which 
II the member is actively performing the duties of a full-time or 
12 part-time employee position or is on any authorized paid leave of 
13 absence, except a leave of absence during which the member is 
14 totally disabled and is receiving, or is eligible to receive, disability 
15 benefits, either during or after any elimination or qualifying period, 
16 under a disability plan provided by the employer. 
17 (4) "Retirement Plan D" means the contributory retirement plan 
18 otherwise available to members of the system between June I, 
I 9 1979, and December 31, 2012, inclusive. 
20 (5) "Retirement PlanE" means the noncontributory retirement 
21 plan established under this article. 
22 (6) "Transfer date" means the first day of the first month that 
23 is at least 30 days after the date that the application is filed with 
24 the board to change plan membership under subdivision (a). 
25 (h) This section shall only be applicable to Los Angeles County 
26 and shall not become operative until the board of supervisors of 
27 that county elects, by resolution adopted by a majority vote, to 
28 make this section operative in the county. 
29 SEC. 3. Section 31495.7 is added to the Government Code, to 
30 read: 
31 31-195.7. Section31835.1 applies to a member eligible to retire 
32 at 55 years of age pursuant to Section 31491. This section is 
33 declaratory of existing law. 
34 SEC. 4. Section31520.6 is added to the Government Code, to 
35 read: 
36 31520.6. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in 
3 7 Section 31520.3 or 31520.5, in any county in which there is an 
38 alternale retired member, if the eighth member is present, the 
39 alternate retired member may also vote as a member of the board 
40 in the event both the second and third, or both the second and 

98 



AB 2376 -10-

1 seventh, or both the third and seventh members are absent for any 
2 cause. 
3 SEC. 3. 
4 SEC. 5. Section 31526 of the Government Code is amended 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

to read: 
31526. The regulations shall include provisions: 
(a) For the election of officers, their terms, meetings, and all 

other matters relating to the administrative procedure of the board. 
(b) For one of the following: 
( 1) The filing of a sworn statement by every person who is or 

becomes a member, showing date of birth, nature and duration of 
employment with the county, compensation received, and other 
information as is required by the board. 

(2) In lieu of a sworn statement, the submission by the member's 
employer to the retirement association of the information otherwise 
required in paragraph (I), in a form determined by the retirement 
association. 

(c) For forms of annuity certificates and other forms as required. 
SEC. 6. Section 31641.4 of the Government Code is amended 

to read: 
31641.4. (a) A member shall receive credit for employment 

in public service only for such service as he or she is not entitled 
to receive a pension or retirement allowance from~ the public 
agency. The service for which-he the member elects to contribute 
and the fact that no pension or retirement allowance will accrue 
t~ the member by virtue of..ftht the member :0.· employment in 
stteh that public agency-rrttffl shall be certified to by an officer of 
the public agency where he or she rendered-stteh that public service 
or~ shall be established to the satisfaction of the board. 

~~6t\·;itl,stantl i ng 
(b) Notwithstanding any other prevision oflaw, a safety member 

who receives credit for prior employment in public service, the 
principal duties of which consisted of active law enforcement or 
active fire suppression, or active service in the armed serviees 
Armed Forces of the United States during time of war or national 
emergency, shall have his or her pension or retirement allowance 
for-stteh that service calculated on the same basis as the calculation 
of the retirement allowanc~ the member would receive as a 
safety member under Seetion 31664. the safety benefit formula in 
effect on the date of the members initial safety membership. 

98 



- 11 - AB2376 

I -A 
2 (c) A safety member who entered the service as a peace officer 
3 prior to the establishment of the safety membership provisions in 
4 his or her county shall be considered a safety member from his or 
5 her initial hiring date, for the purposes of this section, 
6 notwithstanding any other prer;isien ef law. 

0 



~~iil_T@ij!,:tP._.or County Retirement Systems ------- ---- - ---------------
51.0 * Tr11ttw~1 * A/fliLIItJ 1lr S•Un.l 

A eallrurnla NPn ~ric CCirpotlllkta 

C. 2016 SACRS Legislation Update 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



~· 
Jllll~ 
4- I. I I 'I JIJllll EDELSTUN GILBERT ROilSON & SMITII 

Donald B. Gilbert Michael R. Robson Trent E. Smith Alan L. Edelstein 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

by Mike Robson and Trent Smith 
April 7, 2016 

The 2016 Legislative Session is in full gear. Legislative committee hearings are underway, bills 
are getting amended, and deliberations on the State Budget are taking place in budget 
subcommittees. April and early May are very busy times because bills are being heard and voted 
on for the first time and all the wrinkles to legislation are getting ironed out. This dynamic is 
playing out with State Association of County Retirement Systems' (SACRS) own legislative 
agenda for 2016. 

SACRS SPONSORED LEGISLATION 

AB 2376-- (Assembly Committee on PERSS) 

AB 2376 is the Assembly PERSS Committee Omnibus bill dealing with the County Employee 
Retirement Law (CERL). At this time, it is a three·part bill dealing with what are considered 
technical, nonwcontroversial changes to the CERL, including a SACRS sponsored provision 
pertaining to sworn statements. 

Swom Statements 
Currently, the law requires regulations of every board to include a provision for the filing of a 
sworn statement by every person who is or becomes a member, showing date of birth, nature and 
duration of employment with the county, compensation received, and such other information as 
is required by the board. 

Historically, 1937 Act systems have utilized a signed, hard copy document as the sworn 
statement. However, with advances in technology, some systems are now obtaining the same 
information via an electronic payroll feed from the participating employer. For those systems 
that do this, having to collect a signed, hard copy document from the member can be viewed as 
duplicative, unnecessary, and an inefficient use of resources. At the same time, however, there 
are some systems that view the continued collection of a signed document as valuable, for 
example, in a situation where there is a dispute regarding the age of the member. 

AB 2376 would accommodate both approaches by allowing each system to designate whether it 
will collect the pertinent information via the traditional sworn statement or via some other 
format, including electronically from the employer. 

Alternate Board Members 
Other relevant provisions of this bill include the County Retired Employee Association's 
sponsored provision dealing with alternate members of system boards. Under current law, 

1127 u '" Street sLm 1030 Sacramento, CA 95814 (916) 443-6400 (916)443-6445 

www.edelsteingilbert.com 



Legislative Report 
April 7, 2016 
Page Two 

counties are authorized to appoint an alternate retired member to the office of the eighth member 
of the board and authorizes the alternate retired member to vote as a member of the board only in 
the event the eighth member is absent from a board meeting for any cause. 

AB 2376 would additionally authorize the alternate retired member to vote as a member of the 
board if the eighth member is present and both the second and third, both the second and 
seventh, or both the third and seventh members are absent for any cause. 

Safety Employee Credit 
This section of AB 2376 would update the CERL to ensure that safety members under PEPRA 
who get credit for prior service in safety, fire, or military service are able to calculate their safety 
benefit based on the formula in effect on the date of the member's initial safety membership. 
This provision was brought forward by the Ventura County Retirement System and is supported 
by the SACRS Legislative Committee. 

lAC ERA 
This section of AB 2376 would amend provisions of CERL specifically applicable to Los 
Angeles County to provide that the concurrent retirement exception applies to a member of the 
retirement system in Los Angeles County eligible to retire at 55 years of age and would state that 
the amendment is declaratory of existing law. 

AB 2376 will be heard and voted on in the Assembly PERSS Committee on May 6. 

AB 1853 (Cooper) 

Altemate Operating Authority 
AB 1853 is the SACRS' expected-to-be-sponsored measure to authorize the retirement boards 
operating under the CERL to modernize the operating authority structure for their system so that 
they can continue to fulfill their mission and meet the fiduciary responsibilities they owe to their 
stakeholders. 

As currently written, the bill would give the 1937 Act Boards of Retirement the optional 
authority to be the direct employer of personnel within the system based on one of several 
existing statutory frameworks for doing so. The options available would be the OCERS, 
SBCERA, or CCCERA models. 

AB 1853 removes the need for pursuing ongoing piecemeal modernization of operating authority 
by putting in place a standing mechanism for system's to adopt. The bill would continue to 
protect the rights of the retirement personnel that would shift from county employment to system 
employment and the governing structure of the boards would not change. This bill will bring a 



Legislative Report 
April 7, 2016 
Page Three 

needed level of system autonomy while maintaining all transparency, budgeting accountability, 
and fiduciary responsibility. 

AB 1853 will be heard in the Assembly PERSS Committee on May 6. 

Pension Initiatives and Pension Legislation 

Two initiatives aimed at capping pensions and eliminating defined benefit plans being pushed by 
former San Jose Mayor Chuck Reed and former San Diego City Councilmember Carl De Maio 
had received title and summary from the Attorney General and were eligible to begin collecting 
signatures to qualify for the November 2016 ballot However, the proponents of the initiatives, 
fearing poor voter reception pulled their initiatives and are re-evaluating their approach to 
pension reform. 

AB 1812 (Wagner) Pension Caps 
Consistent with the above mentioned initiatives and proponents, Assemblyman Don Wagner 
from Orange County introduced AB 1812 which would cap public employee pensions at 
$100,000 for those employees without Social Security and $80,000 for those with Social 
Security. This bill was set for hearing on April 6, but was pulled from the calendar by the author 
prior to the hearing. 



CRS 
County Retirement Systems ---------------------------

51•0 * Tntftll '* AJ1ill•ft1 * Sur~u 
A c.urutnlil Na• Ptufic Cntpotl'tkln 

D. Jim Lites, SACRS Consultant Update 
CERL (No Action) 

No printed materials 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER CO UNTV EMPL OYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



CRS 
County Retirement Systems --------------------------

Sl'4/1 * T,.,,,., • AJ!ill•' .. ' • S•n~u 

·" C...l•futtd.a --.:ow Prufil C..rp.,..cktn 

D. Jim Lites, SACRS Consultant Update 
UC Berkeley Ad Hoc Cmte Recommendation (No Action) 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441·1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNOER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETI REMENT LAW Of 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



SACRS I UC Berkeley 
Public Pension Management Program 

Ad Hoc Committee 

Final Recommendations 

March 1, 2016 

Introduction 

In 2015, the SACRS Board of Directors created an Ad Hoc Committee to review 
and examine the SACRS UC Berkeley Public Pension Management Program. The 
Committee met throughout 2015 and early in 2016 to examine what, if any, 
program modifications, updates or improvements may be identified. The 
Committee examined program data, such as attendance statistics, financial 
sponsorships, and curriculum content for UC Berkeley and other similar programs. 
With a goal of building and sustaining long-term interest in attendance of SACRS 
trustees and senior staff, the Committee found modifications to the program 
were warrented. This report outlines the Committee's final recommendations to 
the SACRS Board of Directors for UC Berkeley Public Pension Management 
Program to be effective in the 2017 program year. 

SACRS would like to thank the members that served on the Ad Hoc Committee for 
their dedication and work to examine and improve the program: 

Members: 
Yves Chery- LACERA, SACRS President 
Zandra Cholmondeley- Santa Barbara 
Gloria Dominguez- Kern 
Linda Jordan- Mesirow Financial 
Daniel Lass- BNYMellon 
J.J. Popowich- LACERA 
Graham Schmidt- Cheiron 
Michal Settles- San Mateo 
Jeff Wickman- Marin 

Staff: 
Jim Lites 
Sulema Peterson 

1 



Ad Hoc Committee Findings 

The Committee identified various trends and facts about the program that 
informed and guided the recommendations. The Committee found the program 
content well-positioned compared similar programs offered by CALAPRS at 
Pepperdine & UCLA and IFEBP at Wharton. The Committee utilized data points 
from a 2015 SACRS survey, which seemed to indicate once an individual attended 
a Berkeley conference, there was little intent to attend a second time. This is 
something the Committee examined and sought to address. Below is a chart that 
highlights the various types of content offered by SACRS at Berkeley and similar 
programs. 

SACRS UC Berkeley 
Public Pension Investment Management Program 

Peer Program Content Comparison Matrix 

Program 
Content 
Matrix 

Investment Introduction 

Investment/Portfolio 
Theory 

Fiduciary Principles 

Governance
Effective Board 

Traits/Leadership/ 
Role of the Board 

Disability 

Asset Allocation 
---

Mean-Variance Analysis 

Performance Evaluation 

Macro Economics 
--- -- -·- -

Risk 

Actuarial 
Princi pies/Practice 

Real Assets 

Alternative Investments 

Valuation 

Behavioral Finance 

Current Event Topics (ie, 
Municipal Bankruptcy) 

SACRS 
UC Berkeley 

Program 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

CALAPRS 
Pepperdine 

X 
X (Most 

comprehensive 
-full day 
session) 

X 
X 

2 

CALAPRS 
UCLA (lodging 
mandatory) 

X (Broad 
topic of 

"investments") 

X 

X 

X 

-r .. -- .. "":r -;;f-:- ...... 
· .. ·-· <e:.·-:.:;; -.~. _J 

Wharton 

X 

X 
X 
X 

X 



One of the primary goals of the Berkeley program was to provide investment 
education and training for SACRS trustees and senior staff. After trending 
downward in the last two years, trustee and staff attendance fell below affiliates 
for the first time in 2015. The Committee found improved marketing both within 
SACRS and to other potential attendees, could strengthen participation of our 
primary target audience. The chart below shows the Berkeley attendance 
breakdown over the last four years. 

35 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

2012 

UC Berkeley Program Participation 
2012-2015 

I II 
2013 2014 2015 

• SACRS Trustees/Staff • Affiliate Other 

With respect to the financial health of the program, sponsorships have increased 
steadily over the last five years, a positive trend that has allowed the program to 
expand to four days, yet hold flat the SACRS financial commitment. The revenue 
and expenditures of the last four years are attached to this report. 

Committee Recommendations 

1. Maintain Current Program in 2016. In order to prevent any loss in continuity 
or momentum for the current program, the Committee recommends moving 
forward with the 2016 as scheduled. The proposed program modifications are 
proposed for the 2017 program year. 



2. Return to a 3-day program. The fourth day of the program, added at the 
beginning, has provided a day of introductory investment topics since 2013. 

3. Annual Alternating Curriculum. The Committee proposes to alternate the 
curriculum every other year with introductory topics in the first year and more 
advanced investment topics and trends in the second year. 

A. Introductory Curriculum -In this year's program, the Haas faculty is 
asked to concentrate on introductory concepts for newer trustees and 
staff with an emphasis on practical application of the concepts presented, 
such as model asset allocations and portfolio efficiency. 

B. Advanced Curriculum -In this alternate year's program, the Haas faculty 
is asked to focus on a more seasoned investment audience, and to focus 
on current trends within the institutional investor marketplace that might 
be useful for more advanced trustees and staff as they consider 
investment options for their systems. 

4. Augment & Broaden Marketing of the Program. The Committee recommends 
SACRS augment the marketing of the Berkeley program. The targets of 
increased marketing efforts will include trustees and senior 1937 Act 
retirement system staff and other public retirement system professionals from 
other in-state and possibly out-of-state systems. The marketing materials 
should position the Berkeley program vis-a-vis the Pepperdine, UCLA and 
Wharton programs. Should these efforts increase the total number of 
attendees, it could be positive for the long-term goals of the program. 

5. Attendance Fee Pricing. While general marketing efforts have extended 
beyond the SACRS community, the program had not established any pricing 
differentials based on SACRS membership. The Ad Hoc Committee 
recommends that pricing be adjusted to reflect a higher price for attendance 
by non-SACRS members. 

In addition, the Committee recommends consideration of an internal SACRS 
pricing differential based on total system assets. Systems with $3 billion or 
less in assets could be offered a lower attendance fee than systems over $3 
billion. This recommendation is intended to make the program more 
economical for smaller systems that may have limited resources or policies 
that limit travel expenditures. 

4 



6. Integrate Program Elements at SACRS Conferences. At the fall 2015 SACRS 
Conference, Haas School of Business faculty member Professor Greg LaBlanc, 
spoke during one of the general sessions. This provided the attendees with a 
strong flavor of the types of presentations and topics they might expect during 
the SACRS Berkeley program. 

This recommendation suggests the Board of Directors and the Program 
Committee examine how more of the Berkeley program content could be 
integrated in the SACRS Conference agendas. 

Conclusion 

The goal of the Committee was to examine the Berkeley program and identify any 
modifications that may be warranted to ensure the program was structured to be 
sustainable over the long-term. The recommendations contained herein are 
designed to fulfill this goal. The program feedback has been positive and the 
Berkeley offering is viewed as valuable and fulfilling an information segment for 
investment education that compliments, rather than conflicts, with similar 
programs. The recommendations are intended to build upon this value and 
further enhance it. 

5 



,,,_.,."..,"""'of County Retirement Systems-------------------------
SUf/1 * Tnt.ll##l * .AJ!fli•l#f ..,. S•tC'IJI 

A c .. urdfl'la Son Prulil Cnrporat5nn 

7. SACRS Bylaws Committee Report - Vote 
Vivian Gray, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 

A. Amendment to Article IV - Delegates 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916} 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERAT I NG UNDER CO UNTY EMP LOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



~~tmfl~orCounty Retirement Systems ------------------------
stll/1 * rnu•u• • A/]fll~•u • .~tttust 

A Callretrni. N~~tn f"nlril U.I')Htrat5Pn 

To: SACRS Membership 
From: Vivian Gray, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 

SACRS Bylaws Committee 
Re: Amendment to SACRS Bylaws - Article IV- Delegates 

April I, 2016 

At the request of Tulare CERA (TCERA), the Bylaws committee was asked to review 
TCERA's concerns regarding who may serve as an "Alternate Delegate" at SACRS 
Business meetings. After thoughtful review, the Bylaws committee determined that 
additional clarification would be helpful. The Committee developed the following 
language, enlisted SACRS Attorney to review and presented to the Board of Directors in 
September. SACRS attorney certified the language conforms with the Bylaws and 
presents no conflicts. 

The following amendments to the SACRS Bylaws are being proposed for the 
Membership's approval: (delete language, new language) 

Article IV- DELEGATES 
Section 2-- Alternate Delegates 

Alternate delegates may be designated in writing by the member County Retirement 
Board. All alternates shall be Fegular members consistent '+\'ith Article III, Section I (a) 
keFeiR. 

Insert New Section 3. 

Section 3-- Voting by Delegates/ Alternate Delegates 

Voting delegates serve as a proxy ¥ate for their system respective County Retirement 
System. The delegate or alternate delegate shall vote according te the direction ef as 
directed by their respective County Retirement System. 

Section 3-Credentials will need to be amended as well to reflect the additional section. 

Renumber Credentials: 

Section 4--Credentials 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



:~~mtiJ!Il\!of County Retirement Systems ------------~---~---------
51•0 '* ,,..,,,, • AJfili•l#f * Sattr"J 

A Calirul'ala No• Pnlit Corpor•lkte 

8. SACRS Nomination Committee- 2016-2017 SACRS BOD Elections- Vote 
Ray McCray, Nomination Committee Chair 

A. SACRS BOD 2016- 2017 Ballot 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEO 



CRS 
County Retirement Systems -------------------~---

l'-11'* Tnur••• * AJ111Mln + Su~•n 
A C.la.-lo N• Prwfoo c..,.-oloo 

Attn: SACRS Administrators 

SACRS MEMORANDUM 

From: Raymond McCray, SACRS Nominating Committee Chair 
SACRS Nominating Committee 

Re: SACRS Board of Directors Elections 2016-2017 - Final Ballot 

March 31,2016 

Per SACRS Bylaws, Article VI - Section 2 - Election, Qualification and Term of Office 

"The officers of SACRS shall be regular members of SACRS. The officers shall be 
elected by majority vote of the quorum of delegates and alternate delegates present at the 
first meeting in each calendar year and shall hold office for one (I) year and until a 
successor is elected." 

Per SACRS Bylaws, Article VI - Section 4 - Officer Elections 

" ... The Board of any regular member County Retirement System may submit write-in 
candidates to be included in the Nominating Committee's final ballot provided the 
Nominating Committee receives those write-in candidates prior to March 25th. 
The Nominating Committee will report a final ballot to each regular member County 
Retirement System prior to April I. 

The Administrator of each regular member County Retirement System shall be 
responsible for communicating the Nominating Committee's recommended ballot and 
final ballot to each trustee and placing the election of SACRS Officers on his or her 
Board agenda. The Administrator shall acknowledge the completion of these 
responsibilities with the Nominating Committee ... " 

Below is the final ballot for the upcoming election. As in the past, a voting delegate may 
entertain a motion to vote by individual officer positions or by complete ballot. Please be 
sure to authorize your voting delegate to vote either way. 

The elections will be held at the upcoming SACRS Spring Conference May I 0-13, 2016 
at the Westin South Coast Plaza Hotel in Costa Mesa. Elections will be held during the 
Annual Business meeting on Friday, May 13,2016. 

Please distribute the ballot to all standing/eligible board members for approval and 
authorization for your voting delegate. As stated above, Administrators are required to 
send acknowledgement of completion to our office at su lema@sacrs.org. 

Continued 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 1 T (916) 441 ~1850 j F (916) 441~6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERA TI N G U N DER COU NTY EM PLO YEES RETI REM EN T L AW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



CRS 
Counry Retirement Systems -------------~-~--------

SMJI• T,.,,,. •• AJIUMI~• .. S•~NII 
,\ C..llfanlo N- Ptwfoo C..,...-

SACRS Nominating committee recommended 2016-2017 final ballot: 

• President 
• Vice President 
• Treasurer 
• Secretary 

Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA 
Gabe Rodrigues, Contra Costa CERA 
Larry Walker, San Bernardino CERA 
Art Goulet, Ventura CERA 

If you have any questions or require assistance, please contact me directly at 209-468-
2163 or raym I @sbcelobal.net. Thank you for your prompt attention to this timely 
matter. 

Sincerely, 

Raymond McCray, San Joaquin County 
SACRS Nominating Committee Chair 

CC: SACRS Board of Directors 
SACRS Nominating Committee Members 
Sulema H. Peterson, SACRS Administrator 

RMC:shp 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 1 www.sacrs.org 
OPERATING UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



~~~~· nJc !l._co£ County Retirement Systems ------------------------
51..0 * TnuluJ * A.DIIl•l#t * .fA~C'tiU 

A CalifiKIIIla Son Pntfit CftTJ"''NIIu• 

9. SACRS Committee & Breakout Reports: 

Committee Chair 
Affiliate Michael Bowman 
Audit Steve Delaney 
Bylaws Vivian Gray 
Education Christie Porter 
Legislative Richard Stensrud 
Nomination Ray McCray 
Program Gabe Rodrigues 

Breakout Reports Representative 
Administrators Linda Webb 
Attorneys David Lantzer 
Disability Crista) Rodriguez 
Internal Auditors Harsh Jadhav 
Investment Officers Steve Marsh 
Ops & Benefits Jeannine Smart 
Safety Trustees Trac_y Towner 
General Trustees Vivian Gr<!y 

Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, 
November 11,2016, at the Renaissance Esmeralda Resort & Spa, Indian Wells, CA. 

1415 L St. Suite 1000 I Sacramento, CA 95814 I T (916) 441-1850 I F (916) 441-6178 I www.sacrs.org 
OPERATI NG UNDER COUNTY EMPLOYEES RET I REMENT LAW OF 1937, GOVERNMENT CODE 31450 ET SEQ 



April 26, 2016 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SAN M ATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' R ETIREM ENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

Board of Retirement ~ 

Scott Hood, Chief Executiv~ 
Report on Status of SamCERA's 2016-17 Strategic Plan 

Staff Recommendation 

Agenda Item 7.3 

Staff recommends the Board accept the status report on SamCERA's 2016-2017 Strategic 
Plan. 

Background 
The Strategic Plan is the product of staff's annual retreat and subsequent discussions of 
proposed actions, consistent with the mission and goals of SamCERA, that should be 
undertaken in the 2016-17 fiscal year. Staff also discusses whether or not there should be 
any recommended changes to SamCERA's Mission and Goals, and there were no 
recommended changes. 

Discussion 
The following process was used to create the 2016-17 Strategic Plan. In January, in 
preparation for the February lOth staff retreat, staff reviewed the progress of the current 
2015-16 Strategic Plan. This staff pre-review was performed as a whole and within each of 
the separate divisions: Benefits, Finance, Investments, Administration, Technology and 
Communications. At the retreat, each division presented its own Strengths, Weaknesses 
Opportunities and Threats {SWOT) analysis to the entire group. A consolidated SWOT list 
was discussed and an issue list developed. A total of 37 separate items were identified as 
issues and made the list as a "raw idea." Over the next few weeks, staff and management 
worked through the list to categorize the issues. Some of the issues overlapped those in 
the current year's Strategic Plan, some were essentially the same issue just expressed 
differently, and some were subparts of an overarching issue. After this vetting, the issues 
were tied to specific goals. The proposed Strategic Plan reflect the staff's proposed actions 
to achieve each of these goals. 

Not surprisingly, the Strategic Plan focuses on Technology as the Pension Administration 
Software System {PASS) project nears the Go-live date. Directly related to that is the 
communication outreach to staff, active and retired members, and employers that are 
required to make the transitions as smoothly as possible. Due to the PASS Go-Live 
deadlines and the dedicated staff resources required for the launch, strategic goals for the 
Finance and Benefits divisions unrelated to the PASS project were not identif ied for the 
upcoming fiscal year. In addition to addressing the Technology and Communication 
actions and goals, the Strategic Plan also focused on Investment related goals. 



SAN M ATEO COUNT Y EMPLOYEES' RETI REMENT A SSOCiATION 

Board of Retirement 

The following is a brief description of the items to be included in this year's Strategic Plan . 

17-1 PASS Communications Plan. Develop and execute SamCERA's member and employer 
communications plan regarding what to expect with the rollout of our new PASS system. 

17-2 Retiree Health Transition. Develop and execute an implementation plan for the 
transition of retiree health accounting to the County and the transition to members' 
control of their own retiree health payment deductions. Coordinate with Human 
Resources staff and its retiree health vendor in regards to the accounting and deduction 
changes. Transition to be completed prior to the launch ofthe PASS system. 

17-3 Social Media Policy. Develop a policy and procedure for SamCERA's use of social 
media. 

17-4 Tech Solution for Investments. Develop a technology solution to assist investment 
staff in the receipt and tracking of investment manager reporting. Explore the use of 
SharePoint as a repository and granting of access to investment managers to deposit 
reports on an ongoing basis. 

17-5 Enhanced Risk Analysis. Perform a cost/benefit analysis to determine if it makes 
sense to add a risk system in our investment strategy. 

17-Ginflation Protection Pool. Develop an "inflation protection pool" asset category to list 
all such assets for better tracking. 

17-7 Enhance Investments Onboarding/Staff Procedure Manuals. Update and maintain 
investment staff procedure manuals. 

17-8 Provide Employers More Frequent and High-Level Performance Updates. Develop a 
quarterly one-page portfolio snapshot that can provide employers high-level performance 
data of Sam CERA's investment portfolio. 

17-9 Standardize Private Equity Reporting. Determine if standardized private equity 
reporting can be required from our private equity investment managers. 


	16-04-0.0 Special Meeting Agenda 4.26-27.16
	16-04-3.1 Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes from March 22, 2016
	16-04-4.0 Consent Agenda April 2016
	16-04-4.1 Galindo Confidential Memo
	16-04-4.1 Galindo Confidential Report
	16-04-4.1 Golda Confidential Memo
	16-04-4.1 Golda Confidential Report
	16-04-4.1 Vogt Confidential Memo
	16-04-4.1 Vogt Confidential Report
	16-04-4.7 Report on Audit Work Plan
	16-04-4.8 Required Documentation for Investments in India
	16-04-4.8 Resolution India Investment
	16-04-4.9 Approval to Renew Fiduciary Liability Insurance Policy
	16-04-6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio 03.31.16
	16-04-6.1 Verus Capital Markets Update 3.16
	Slide Number 1
	Market commentary�
	Major asset class returns
	U.S. large cap equities
	Fixed income
	Global markets
	Style tilts: U.S. large value vs. growth
	Style tilts: U.S. large vs. small
	Commodities
	Appendix
	Periodic table of returns 
	S&P 500 and S&P 500 sector returns
	Detailed index returns
	Notices & disclosures

	16-04-6.1 Northern Trust Preliminary Monthly Performance Report 3.16
	16-04-6.2 Educational Presentation on Mining Opportunities
	16-04-6.2 Verus Mining Education Presentation
	16-04-6.3 Purchase of Alternative Investment
	16-04-6.3 Verus Recommendation OHA Strategic Credit Fund II (confidential)
	16-04-6.3 OHA Strategic Credit Fund II Presentation (confidential)
	16-04-7.1 Introduction of SamCERA's Budget for FY 2016-17
	16-04-7.2 Approval of SACRS Voting Delegates
	16-04-7.2 SACRS BOD Final Ballot 2016-2017
	16-04-7.2 SACRS Biz Mtg Packet May 13
	16-04-7.3 Status of 2016-17 Strategic Plan



